Devon

County Council

Phil Norrey
Chief Executive

To: The Chairman and Members of County Hall
the Development Management Topsham Road
Committee Exeter
Devon
EX2 4QD
(See below)
Your ref : Date : 15 November 2016 Email: 01392 382299
Our ref : Please ask for : Gerry Rufolo

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 23rd November, 2016

A meeting of the Development Management Committee is to be held on the above date at 2.00 pm in
the Committee Suite - County Hall to consider the following matters.

P NORREY
Chief Executive

AGENDA

PART 1 - OPEN COMMITTEE

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Minutes

Minutes of the Meeting held on 19 October 2016 (previously circulated)

3 ltems Requiring Urgent Attention

Items which in the opinion of the Chairman should be considered at the meeting as matters of
urgency.

MATTERS FOR DECISION

4 Minerals and Waste Development Framework: Devon Minerals Plan: Inspector's Report and
Adoption (Pages 1 - 6)

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (PTE/16/57) attached

Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions



Minerals and Waste Development Framework: Cornwall and West Devon Mining Landscape World
Heritage Site: Supplementary Planning Document: Adoption (Pages 7 - 10)

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (PTE/16/58) attached
Electoral Divisions(s): Tavistock; Yelverton Rural

County Matter: South Hams District: Variation of (i) condition 3 of planning permission
9/42/49/0542/85/3 to allow the continued extraction of tungsten and tin, processing and disposal of
mineral wastes until 5 June 2036 and (ii) removal of condition 13 of planning permission
9/42/49/0542/85/3 to remove the restriction on the operating hours of the primary crusher:
Location: Drakelands Mine, Drakelands, Nr PLYMOUTH, Devon PL7 5BS (Pages 11 - 70)

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (PTE/16/59) attached
Electoral Divisions(s): Bickleigh & Wembury

County Matter: Waste East Devon District: Proposed relocation of the EMS Skip Hire and waste
transfer facility including materials recycling building to accommodate the processing, storing and
recycling of general skip waste and office accommodation, Hill Barton Business Park, Clyst St
Mary (Pages 71 - 88)

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (PTE/16/60) attached
Electoral Divisions(s): Broadclyst & Whimple

County Council Development: Teignbridge District: Widening of an existing 60m section of
footway to provide a 4.0m wide cycle/footway at Tucks Plot, A379, Dawlish (Pages 89 - 96)

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (PTE/16/61) attached

Electoral Divisions(s): Dawlish
OTHER MATTERS

Delegated Action - Schedules (to include ROMPS Actions) and Summary Schedule (Pages 97 -
98)

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (PTE/16/62) attached

Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions

PART Il - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO SIGN THE ATTENDANCE REGISTER

Membership

Councillors J Brook (Chairman), P Bowden (Vice-Chair), A Dewhirst, P Diviani, A Eastman, G Gribble,
R Hannaford, J Hawkins, R Hosking, R Julian, E Morse, P Sanders, R Vint, E Wragg and J Yabsley

Declaration of Interests

Members are reminded that they must declare any interest they may have in any item to be considered
at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking place on that item.

Access to Information

Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item
on this agenda should contact Gerry Rufolo.
Agenda and minutes of the Committee are published on the Council’s Website.

Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings

The proceedings of this meeting may be recorded for broadcasting live on the internet via the
‘Democracy Centre’ on the County Council’s website. The whole of the meeting may be broadcast
apart from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the press and




public. For more information go to: http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/

In addition, anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and public
are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the
Chairman. Any filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without
the use of any additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and
having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who may not wish to be filmed.
As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the
Democratic Services Officer in attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is
happening.

Members of the public may also use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social media to report on
proceedings at this meeting. An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available
for meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall. For information on Wi-Fi availability at other
locations, please contact the Officer identified above.

Public Participation

Any member of the public resident in the administrative area of the County of Devon may make a
presentation to the Committee on a planning application being considered by the Committee, or any
consultation on a proposal by a Government Department (but not when the County Council is consulted
on a proposal by a District Council) or a Review of Old Minerals Permissions applications.

Any request to make a presentation must be given to the Office of the Chief Executive's Directorate by
12 noon on the third working day before the date of the meeting. For further information please contact
Exeter 01392 382299.

Emergencies

In the event of the fire alarm sounding leave the building immediately by the nearest available exit,
following the fire exit signs. If doors fail to unlock press the Green break glass next to the door. Do not
stop to collect personal belongings, do not use the lifts, do not re-enter the building until told to do so.

Mobile Phones

Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council Chamber

If you need a copy of this Agenda and/or a Report in
another format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or
other languages), please contact the Information Centre
on 01392 380101 or email to: centre@devon.gov.uk or
write to the Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat at County
Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD.

)

Induction loop system available



http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/
mailto:centre@devon.gov.uk




Agenda Item 4

PTE/16/57

Development Management Committee
23 November 2016

Minerals and Waste Development Framework
Devon Minerals Plan: Inspector’s Report and Adoption

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: It is recommended that:

(a) the Committee note the conclusions and recommendations of the inspector’s
report on the examination of the Devon Minerals Plan;

(b) the Committee endorse the Devon Minerals Plan and associated Polices Map
for consideration by Cabinet on 14 December 2016 and adoption by the County
Council on 23 February 2017, respectively, which incorporate the main
modifications recommended by the inspector and the additional modifications
that were consulted on by the Council;

(c) the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment be given delegated
authority to make further additional modifications prior to adoption of the
Devon Minerals Plan and Policies Map that may be required to address factual
errors, minor updates and formatting matters; and

(d) the Committee note the additional documents proposed in 6.1 to assist in
implementation of the Devon Minerals Plan and the provision for further
reports to the Committee.

1. Summary

1.1 This report outlines the previous stages in the preparation of the Devon Minerals
Plan, explains the findings of the inspector’s report and proposes the adoption of the
Plan. Copies of the modifications consultation report, inspector’s report, the Minerals
Plan as proposed to be adopted and relevant background documents are available
online.

2. Background

2.1 Preparation of the Devon Minerals Plan has involved several rounds of county-wide
and local consultation, culminating in the pre-submission consultation in August to
November 2015, following which the Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State in
February 2016.

2.2 An inspector appointed by the Secretary of State to undertake examination of the
Minerals Plan held hearings in May 2016 to consider its soundness and legal
compliance. The County Council, in submitting the Plan, had invited the inspector to
recommend any modifications required to make the Plan sound and, prior to and
during the hearings, the Council proposed draft modifications for discussion.
Consultation on these modifications was approved by this Committee and the
Cabinet Member for Economy, Growth and Cabinet Liaison for Exeter in July 2016.

1 https://new.devon.gov.uk/planning/planning-policies/minerals-and-waste-policy/devon-minerals-plan

Page 1


https://new.devon.gov.uk/planning/planning-policies/minerals-and-waste-policy/devon-minerals-plan

Agenda ltem 4

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Outcomes of the Modifications Consultation

The County Council undertook consultation on the proposed modifications from
1 August to 23 September 2016. Substantive responses indicating objections or
support were received from 28 organisations and individuals, and these were
forwarded to the inspector for his consideration. Responses from a further 23
organisations and individuals were made on matters falling outside the scope of the
consultation. A summary of the consultation responses received and officer
comments on these is provided in the consultation report that is available online
through the link provided in 1.1.

The modifications attracting most objections were those concerning Straitgate Farm,
with the site’s change in designation from ‘specific site’ to ‘preferred area’ questioned
in view of questions over the processing location and point of access, and 13
objections were made to removal of reference to a one metre unsaturated zone
above the maximum water table. On the latter point, the Environment Agency
indicated its satisfaction with the wording proposed through modification MM58.

A total of 22 responses were submitted by organisations and residents from
Plympton concerning the lateral extension of Drakelands Mine. However, only two of
these made any comment on the proposed modifications relating to this site, and the
remainder were objecting to the principle and impacts of the lateral extension that
were not being consulted on at this stage.

The Inspector’s Report

The inspector’s report was issued on 17 October 2016, and has been published on
the Council’'s website and made available for public inspection. With regard to
matters of legal compliance, the inspector concludes that the County Council has met
the statutory Duty to Cooperate, and has also complied with all other relevant legal
and procedural requirements.

On the matter of soundness, the inspector concludes that, subject to inclusion of the
main modifications that he recommends, the Devon Minerals Plan is ‘sound’ and
therefore capable of adoption.

The main modifications cover a range of issues, including a more concise focus for
the vision and spatial strategy, refinement of the approach to mineral safeguarding,
increased emphasis on secondary and recycled aggregates, consistency of the
approach to aggregates and development management policies with national policy,
and improvements to the monitoring framework. A significant proportion of the
objections made to the Minerals Plan concerned the three site-specific proposals,
and these are considered below.

Drakelands Mine

The inspector concluded that the proposals to enable the extension of the mine’s
timescale and its lateral extension would be “fully justified”, subject to inclusion of
modifications addressing mitigation measures including impacts on Dartmoor
National Park and the relationship with other development in the Plymouth area.

Page 2



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

5.2

5.3

Agenda Item 4

Straitgate Farm, Ottery St Mary

The inspector acknowledged uncertainties with deliverability of the site, notably the
access arrangements, and endorsed the change from a Specific Site to a Preferred
Area. While detailed issues remain to be resolved on the means of access to the
site, the inspector sees “no reason in principle why a safe access could not be
constructed”. On the matter of the location of processing plant, the inspector noted
the nature conservation and highway constraints for Blackhill Quarry, but “would not
rule out the possibility of an acceptable solution”. He also noted the potential
availability of an alternative location at Rockbeare Hill Quarry as “a matter to be
debated...at the application stage”.

With regard to hydrogeological matters, the inspector acknowledged the presence of
sensitive receptors including nature conservation features and water supplies, but
concluded that, with dry working, he could “see no reason why water supplies would
be materially affected”. He also noted the variety of other concerns put forward by
objectors, but concluded that “no matters of overriding importance are raised”.

To ensure that the Minerals Plan is justified and effective in respect of the Straitgate
Farm allocation, the inspector recommends that modifications are made to address
the status, area and resource of the site and to reflect the changed site access and
groundwater protection arrangements.

West of Penslade Cross, Uffculme

The inspector recognised the concerns that were raised over existing traffic
movements associated with existing minerals and waste operations, and
recommended modification of the Plan to make specific reference to the widening of
Clay Lane to accommodate two-way lorry traffic. However, in terms of the wider
traffic network including M5 Junction 27 and the A38, he had “no overriding concerns
with regard to the safety or free flow of traffic’. He concluded that “there is nothing
that should rule out selection of the...site” but recommended modifications to
strengthen the Plan’s requirements for highway improvements and mitigation.

Adoption of the Devon Minerals Plan

Under the provisions of Section 23(3) of the Planning and Compulsory Act 2004, the
County Council must, in adopting the Devon Minerals Plan, incorporate the main
modifications recommended by the inspector. In addition, it is entitled to include any
additional modifications that do not cumulatively have a material effect on the Plan’s
policies. Since the main modifications recommended by the inspector reflect those
proposed by the County Council (subject to minor alterations to improve clarity and
consistency with the National Planning Policy Framework) and have been subjected
to public consultation, it is considered that the Council should proceed to adoption of
the Devon Minerals Plan, together with the associated Policies Map that illustrates
the spatial implications of policies.

Following adoption, a period of six weeks is allowed for legal challenge on the
grounds that the Plan is not within the appropriate power or that a procedural
requirement has not been complied with.

On its adoption, the Devon Minerals Plan will wholly supersede the currently saved
policies of the Devon County Minerals Local Plan that was adopted in 2004.

Page 3



Agenda ltem 4

6.1

7.1

Implementation of the Devon Minerals Plan

To ensure effective implementation of the Minerals Plan by delivery partners
following its adoption, and to address matters that emerged during the Plan’s
preparation, three further documents are envisaged:

(a) a review of mineral planning permissions within the Bovey Basin under the
Habitats Directive and associated regulations is an outstanding requirement to
which the Minerals Plan commits the Council as a matter of priority. In the
event of this review resulting identification of a need to modify or revoke any
existing permissions, a further report will be made to the Committee;

(b) to inform future planning applications in the Bovey Basin, and to take account
of the outcomes of the review proposed above, the Minerals Plan commits the
Council to the preparation of a masterplan for the Bovey Basin to be
undertaken in partnership with relevant stakeholders and published within two
years of adoption of the Minerals Plan. Local members will be engaged in
preparation of a draft masterplan, which will be reported to the Committee prior
to consultation being undertaken; and

(c) the Minerals Plan introduces extensive Mineral Safeguarding Areas that will
require district councils and applicants for non-mineral development to take
greater account of the scope for sterilisation of mineral resources. In a similar
manner to guidance provided for the Waste Plan, it is proposed to prepare a
Supplementary Planning Document to provide advice on the mineral
safeguarding process, and a draft document will be reported to the Committee
prior to consultation.

Reasons for Recommendation/Alternative Options Considered

The Devon Minerals Plan has been subject to extensive consultation and Member
engagement and, subject to relatively minor changes by the inspector, has been
endorsed as ‘sound’ following its rigorous examination and should therefore proceed
to adoption. The only alternative option statutorily available to the County Council
would be to resolve not to adopt the Plan, but this would be strongly inadvisable in
the context of the inspector’s positive report and leave the Council reliant on out of
date ‘saved’ policies that, as they pre-date the National Planning Policy Framework,
would carry relatively little weight.

Dave Black
Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment

Electoral Divisions: All (with site-specific proposals for Bickleigh & Wembury, Ottery
St Mary and Willand & Uffculme)

Page 4



Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Andy Hill

Room No: AB2 Lucombe House
Tel No: 01392 383510
Background Paper File Ref

Report on Modifications Consultation

Devon Minerals Plan Inspector’'s Report

Devon Minerals Plan — Proposed Adoption Version
Draft Adoption Sustainability Appraisal Report

Draft Devon Minerals Plan Policies Map

ah171016dma
sc/cr/devon minerals plan inspectors report and adoption
02 141116

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

Date
September 2016
October 2016
November 2016
November 2016

August 2016






Agenda Iltem 5

PTE/16/58

Development Management Committee
23 November 2016

Minerals and Waste Development Framework
Cornwall and West Devon Mining Landscape World Heritage Site Supplementary
Planning Document: Adoption

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: It is recommended that:

(a) the Committee resolve to jointly adopt, with Cornwall Council and West Devon
Borough Council, the Cornwall and West Devon Mining Landscape World
Heritage Site Supplementary Planning Document;

(b) the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment be given delegated
authority to determine the joint date of adoption of the Supplementary Planning
Document in discussion with Cornwall Council and West Devon Borough
Council; and

(c) prior to adoption of the Supplementary Planning Document, the Committee
resolve to use the draft Document as informal planning guidance.

1. Summary

1.1 This report outlines the work undertaken in the preparation of a Supplementary
Planning Document [SPD] (available through the link provided in 3.2) to provide
guidance for consideration of planning applications within the Cornwall and West
Devon Mining Landscape World Heritage Site [the WHS], and recommends adoption
of the SPD jointly with Cornwall Council and West Devon Borough Council.

2. Background

21 The Cornwall and West Devon Mining Landscape WHS was inscribed by UNESCO
in 2006 and, while predominantly contained within Cornwall, includes parts of
Tavistock and the Tamar Valley within West Devon. Devon County Council is
represented on the WHS Partnership Board and jointly adopted the current WHS
Management Plan in 2013. To ensure that decisions on planning applications within
the WHS have proper regard to its Outstanding Universal Value, the WHS has
undertaken preparation of a SPD to provide guidance to planning authorities,
applicants and other stakeholders.

2.2 Preparation of the SPD was included as a strategic priority in the WHS Management
Plan, and also reflects the findings of the UNESCO Reactive Monitoring Missions
held in 2013 and 2015 that led to UNESCO’s World Heritage Committee
recommending the development of new planning tools, that will result in better
decisions on development proposals that impact on the Outstanding Universal Value
of the Site. A further State of Conservation report is to be considered in July 2017
when it is hoped that a number of measures, including the adoption of the SPD, will
result in a positive recommendation that does not place the WHS on the ‘List of
World Heritage in Danger’.

Page 7



Agenda Item 5

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

Scope and Development of the Supplementary Planning Document

The SPD is primarily aimed at planning officers and elected members responsible for
determining planning applications within or affecting the WHS, but will also be of use
to applicants, consultees and other stakeholders. Guidance is included on the
attributes of the WHS, assessment of impacts and consideration of planning
conditions and obligations.

Preparation of the SPD through a consultancy was overseen by a Working Group on
which Devon County Council was represented and has included workshops with
partner authorities and key stakeholders, followed by formal consultation from
January to March 2016. Responses were received from Historic England, Natural
England, ICOMOS UK, Devon County Council, Cornwall Council and a range of local
organisations and individuals. The draft SPD was generally well received, with the
main issues concerning the document’s structure, clarity and terminology, and these
have been addressed in the final version that is awaiting adoption by the three
planning authorities and is available on the WHS website’. An online interactive
toolkit version of the document is currently being developed that will have a wider
audience and allow for additional background information sources to be easily
accessed by officers, developers and the general public.

Reasons for Recommendation/Alternative Options Considered

Consideration of the Outstanding Universal Value of the WHS and the potential
impacts on it of new development is a complex matter, and the proposed SPD will
greatly assist those in the development management process in meeting statutory
and policy requirements to protect the WHS by clearly explaining how impacts can be
identified and managed. Joint adoption by Devon County Council with the other
partner authorities is therefore recommended.

As the programme for adoption of the SPD by the other two authorities is awaiting
confirmation, the recommendation seeks delegation of the adoption date to the Head
of Planning, Transportation and Environment, with the draft SPD to be used as
informal guidance in the event of any delay in joint adoption.

While the County Council has the option of not adopting the SPD, this would risk
inappropriate decisions being made on planning applications within the WHS.
Furthermore, failure by all partner authorities to adopt the document may result in
UNESCO including the WHS on its ‘in danger’ list in 2017, risking its reputational
damage, financial cost and lost economic opportunities to the area.

Dave Black
Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment

Electoral Divisions: Tavistock, Yelverton Rural

1 https://www.cornish-mining.org.uk/sites/default/files/WHS Supplementary Planning Document 2016.pdf

Page 8


https://www.cornish-mining.org.uk/sites/default/files/WHS_Supplementary_Planning_Document_2016.pdf

Agenda Iltem 5

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Andy Hill

Room No: AB2 Lucombe House

Tel No: 01392 383510

Background Paper File Ref Date
Cornwall and West Devon Mining Landscape World 2016

Heritage Site Supplementary Planning Document

ah201016dma
sc/cr/cornwall and west devon mining landscape WHS supplementary planning document adoption
03 141116

Page 9






Agenda Iltem 6

PTE/16/59

Development Management Committee
23 November 2016

County Matter: Minerals

South Hams District: Variation of (i) condition 3 of planning permission
9/42/49/0542/85/3 to allow the continued extraction of tungsten and tin, processing
and disposal of mineral wastes until 5 June 2036 and (ii) removal of condition 13 of
planning permission 9/42/49/0542/85/3 to remove the restriction on the operating
hours of the primary crusher

Location: Drakelands Mine, Drakelands, Nr Plymouth

Applicant: Wolf Minerals (UK) Ltd

Application No: 9/42/49/0542/85/3

Date application received by Devon County Council: 9 December 2015

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: It is recommended that:

(a) The application to vary Condition 3 (to extend the life of the site from June
2021 to June 2036) and to remove Condition 13 (restriction of hours of
operation of the primary crusher) of the existing permission be granted and;

(b) The remaining conditions be amended as set out in Appendix Il.

(c) That Committee notes the terms of the Unilateral Undertaking attached at

Appendix lll.

(d) That Committee notes the Habitats Regulations Assessment attached at
Appendix IV.

1. Summary

1.1 This application is to extend the permitted life of the Drakelands (previously
Hemerdon) Tungsten Mine until 2036 and to remove a condition relating to
restrictions on the primary crusher. The application was accompanied by an
Environmental Statement.

1.2 It is considered that the main material planning considerations in the determination of
this application are the mineral planning policy context; the operational requirements
of the mine, the economic and social benefits of the operation and the consequences
of the mine not being completed; the impacts likely to be caused by the continuation
of the existing permission post 2021 including continuing impacts on the landscape
and amenity and the current concerns about noise and vibration from the operation of
the processing plant and blasting.

2. The Proposal/Background
2.1 The application site covers some 264 ha and is located some 500m to the north west
of Sparkwell village and 1.6km to the north west of Plympton. It is accessed by road

via the A38 and the B3417 through Plympton which includes a new stretch of road
which was built by the mine linking Newnham Road and Lee Moor Road. The

Page 11



Agenda Item 6

2.2

2.3

24

25

26

2.7

2.8

3.1

3.2

Location Plan attached to this report indicates the relationship of the mine to the
surrounding settlements.

Planning permission was originally granted in June 1986, but due to a fall in world
tungsten prices, the developers discharged the pre-commencement conditions,
achieved a legal “start” but then mothballed the site which was later sold on to the
current applicant.

The original permission was granted for what was expected to be a 35 year project,
but due to the very long delay in the re-commencement of the operations, the
substantive mining operations (processing of minerals) did not commence until 2015
leaving only six years of the original permission left to the mine.

In December 2015 an application was submitted to extend the end date for the
operation to 2036 but, following consultation, additional environmental information
was requested on a number of issues not adequately addressed by the supporting
ES which had become concerns as the mining activity progressed. These were
blasting, noise and vibration and the impact on private water supplies.

The operator has also applied to remove a second condition which restricts the
operating hours of the primary crushing plant. The application, with the additional
Environmental Information, was re-advertised to make this clear.

The Town and Country Planning Act and Planning Practice Guidance advise the
MPA that any decision to vary a condition should repeat the relevant conditions from
the original planning permission unless they have already been discharged.

It does however go on to say that the MPA may also impose new conditions that do
not materially alter the development.

In recognition of the age of the existing permission, there has been a dialogue
between the MPA and the applicant to identify conditions attached to the original
permission that are either discharged; no longer relevant; no longer compliant with
advice given in the National Planning Policy Framework or covered by a separate
consent regime. The proposed revised conditions and the reasons for changes are
attached as Appendix Il. It is important to distinguish between the two conditions that
the applicant has specifically applied to vary and on which a decision is to be made,
(which relate specifically to the life of the site and the hours of operation for the
primary crusher), and the separate assessment by the MPA of the relevance and
legality of the other conditions that were attached to the original 1986 consent and to
the 2010 Modification order which was confirmed by the Secretary of State.

Consultation Responses

There were two periods of consultation and advertisement. Firstly, for the original
application submitted in December 2015 for variation of condition to extend the life of
the mine and subsequently, for the Environmental Information submitted with relation
to the Regulation 22 request for and the additional proposal to vary Condition 12
relating to the primary crusher.

South Hams District Council:

Initial Consultation: The Environmental Health Officer (EHO) for the District Council
requested a noise assessment of the existing and proposed operations to enable an

Page 12



3.3

3.4

3.5

Agenda Iltem 6

assessment of proposed noise conditions that could be enforceable and NPPF
compliant.

The EHO raised concerns that the existing conditions were set so that they could be
breached even when the mine was not operational and therefore enforcement would
be difficult and would means that the condition afforded no protection.

It was also suggested that the blasting conditions be re-assessed and that the issue
of Low Frequency Noise over a further 15 years would be a concern.

Re-consultation: The EHO has confirmed that the noise assessment as submitted
by the operator would indicate that the existing noise limits could be unattainable and
would represent an undue burden on the operator. It is recommended that they are
reviewed in accordance with NPPF with a revised set of conditions for day to day
operations and specific consideration to the initial stages of Phase 2 and the
imposition of a lower noise limit for Sundays.

The EHO supports the conclusions of the Council’'s own Blast Consultant and the
approach of “planning to comply” and recommends the upper limit for ground
vibration should remain at 10mm/s.

With relation to Low Frequency Noise and in respect of the comments from the
operator regarding overnight shut down of the secondary process plant, the EHO has
removed the previous objection to the proposed extension of time and considers that
this matter as well as the operating hours of the primary crusher is now addressed by
the environmental permit. He observes that it would be for the MPA to conclude
whether the overall levels of disturbance are so great that the development is not
sustainable.

Regarding dust and Air Quality the EHO notes the work undertaken to improve
blasting practices and recommends a number of revised dust and air quality
conditions contained in Appendix Il

Dartmoor National Park Authority: Both Consultations: No response.

Plymouth City Council:

Initial Consultation: No response.

Re-consultation: No observations to make noting that the impacts of noise and on
the aquatic life of the stream are being addressed.

Environment Agency:

Initial Consultation: Requested additional information on hydrology and flood risk;
and on biodiversity mitigation and compensation.

Re-consultation: The extension of time is acceptable subject to recommended
conditions. The Agency is the Regulator for the mineral processing plant (including
the Primary Crusher); they attach the conditions of the permit which Wolf Minerals
are required to comply with. Whilst Wolf Minerals are still working towards
compliance they are satisfied that the existing permit conditions provide sufficient
regulatory control.

Page 13



Agenda Item 6

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Sparkwell Parish Council:

Initial Consultation: Concerned about blasting and impact of vibration on people
and their property. The application should be delayed or rejected until the
unacceptable levels of disturbance to residents can be proven to be an extraordinary
occurrence and not likely to re-occur. A track record of blasting impacts needs to be
established.

Re-consultation: Unable to support the application. Current issues should be
resolved before consent is granted for a further 15 years. Their own consultation has
indicated health issues arising from lack of sleep caused by Low Frequency Noise
(LFN) and additional information is required on this matter as 56 households and up
to 103 individuals have stated that they are affected and are experiencing health
impacts with more suspected outside the Parish.

The removal of the Condition restricting the operation of the primary crusher is
unacceptable and the trial was extended without consultation or sufficient data.

Noise levels have increased and levels have been exceeded at the eastern end of
the Parish; DCC stated that the application was not to increase noise levels - this is
misleading and an increase would be unacceptable. Concern that monitoring is not
independent.

Concern that blasting is apparently complying with the existing planning conditions as
the local effects are still unacceptable. The recent trial with electronic detonators has
not led to any improvement and there is concern about how long this might take to
resolve.

Concern about dust and gas emissions from blasting and from general activity and
would welcome the long term use of a mist cannon as anecdotal reports from
residents show that it had a positive effect.

Concerns about loss of water supplies and that this may become worse as the mine
deepens — what might happen once the operations have ceased?

Shaugh Prior Parish Council:

Initial Consultation: Does not wish to raise objections.

Re-consultation: Notes the application to vary the condition relating to the Primary
Crusher but does not wish to comment further.

Cornwood Parish Council: Both Consultations: no response.

Natural England:

Initial Consultation: No specific comment on the details of the consultation. Advice
to consider protected species and potential biodiversity enhancement.

Re-consultation: No comment.

Highways England: Both Consultations: No response.

Page 14



3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

4.1

4.2

Agenda Iltem 6

Historic England:

Initial Consultation: The application should be determined in accordance with
national and local policy guidance, and on the basis of your specialist conservation
advice.

Re-consultation: No response.

National Grid:

Initial Consultation: No response
Re-consultation: No objection.

Health and Safety Executive: No response.

Public Health England: No response.

Public Health Devon: The Director of Public Health notes the concerns about LFN
and the steps the applicant is taking to address the impact on local residents as
specified by the EP. It is also noted that chronic exposure to unwanted low
frequency acoustic sources in the environment may induce non-specific symptoms of
stress, but that these may also be due to audible noise. Impacts that may lead to an
impact on human health including air quality (including dust and particulate matter),
noise and low frequency noise, blasting and vibration and the cumulative impact
thereof must be mitigated to the best available degree through the planning
conditions and environmental permit and other regulatory controls.

Department for International Trade (DIT): DIT submitted a general letter of support,
explaining that it supports overseas companies who set up in the UK and promotes
British Trade around the world.

The application is of critical importance to the continued financing and future lifespan
of the operation.

The £150m investment by Wolf enabled employment of 500 people during
construction and 200 in ongoing operations plus local contractors. Exports are likely
to be US1Billion over the life of the mine and the contribution to the Devon economy
is about £35m with £12m infrastructure projects (new roads) and community
initiatives.

Advertisement/Representations

The application was advertised in accordance with the statutory publicity
arrangements by means of a site notice, notice in the press and notification of
neighbours by letter. From the initial consultation, 30 letters of objection were
received relating to the planning application on the main grounds of continuing
landscape impact; light pollution; noise; low frequency noise; blasting; dust
(potentially toxic); loss of water supplies and pollution of watercourses; ftraffic;
general disturbance; loss of house values; impact on local businesses (including the
z00) and health concerns. There was one letter in general support.

Further advertisement was carried out in respect of the additional Environmental
Information and re-description of the planning application. As a result of these

Page 15



Agenda Item 6

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

5.2

5.3

procedures an additional 34 letters of representation have been received of which 19
were objections based on the following principal issues:

Noise, blasting, Low Frequency Noise and Vibration (LFN), dust & air quality and
impact on health, loss of Hemerdon Ball (a misunderstanding and confusion with
proposals in the Devon Minerals Plan and not relevant to this application).

A number of objections have been received relating to impact on local house prices,
and individual businesses. The land use planning system is concerned with the use
of land in the public interest and is not designed to protect private interests in this
way. The mine has been permitted since 1986 and this has been a mining area for
over 100 years and so to some extent local house prices would be expected to have
reflected that fact.

A further letter was received from Dartmoor Zoo expressing concern about the
impact of in particular vibration and blasting on their endangered animals.

The local Member of Parliament wrote to the MPA expressing his support for the
mine but with concern about a potential increase in levels of noise.

Additionally there were 15 letters of support principally from a number of businesses
who support the mine and also a number of organisations referencing the economic
benefits of the mine. These include the International Tungsten Industry Association,
the Australian Trade and Investment Commission, the Devon and Cornwall Business
Council, the Devon and Cornwall Chambers of Commerce and the British Geological
Survey.

The planning issues raised are considered in more detail in Section 6 of this report.

Copies of representations and the application documentation are available to view on
the Council website under reference DCC/3823/2015 or by clicking on the following
link: https://planning.devon.gov.uk/PlanDisp.aspx?AppNo=DCC/3823/2015.

Planning Policy Considerations

In considering this application the County Council, as Mineral Planning Authority, is
required to have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan insofar as they are
material to the application, and to any other material considerations. Section 38 (6)
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that where regard is to
be had to the Development Plan, the determination shall be in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In this case,
the Development Plan policies are summarised in Appendix | to this report and the
most relevant are referred to in more detail in Section 6 below.

Paragraph 142 of the NPPF highlights that “minerals are essential to support
sustainable economic growth” and that it is “important that there is a sufficient
supply”. Mineral planning authorities are required by paragraph 146 to “plan for a
steady and adequate supply of industrial minerals”, which includes tungsten.

The Devon County Minerals Local Plan was adopted in 2004, and did not include a
policy specifically for Drakelands, reflecting the lack of recent activity at the site at
that time. However, Policy MP38 provides for the extension of existing sites for non-
energy minerals in certain circumstances including where “the proposal would reduce
the adverse environmental impacts of existing mineral development”. Policy MP41

Page 16



54

6.1

6.2

Agenda Iltem 6

provides the overarching development control considerations including the need to
have regard to the amenities of nearby residents and the water environment.

The Devon Minerals Plan has reached an advanced stage in its preparation, with the
Inspector’s report published and adoption anticipated in February 2017; while not yet
formally part of the Development Plan, its policies should be given great weight in
accordance with paragraph 216 of the NPPF. The principal policies in the proposed
adoption version of the Devon Minerals Plan are:

Policy M1: “The extraction of mineral resources of the following descriptions will be
permissible in the areas described below and illustrated on the Key Diagram. (a)
Industrial Minerals ..... Tungsten and Tin: from continued working at....Drakelands”

Policy M9: The steady and adequate supply of tungsten and tin from within the
Drakelands Mineral Working Area defined on the Policies Map will be maintained by
permitting proposals: (a) that will enable completion of the approved development;
and;

Policy M23: Peoples’ quality of life, health and amenity will be protected from the
adverse effects of mineral development and transportation. Development proposals
must demonstrate that the following adverse impacts will be strictly controlled or
mitigated to avoid any significant nuisance being caused to occupiers of dwellings
and other sensitive properties close to the site or its transportation routes and other
users of these routes:

(a) Noise and vibration, including effects on areas of tranquillity;
(b) Dust and other reduction in air quality;

(c) Loss of privacy or natural light; and

(d) Light pollution and visual intrusion.

The application of these policies to the issues raised by the application is considered
in Sections 6 and 7 below.

Comments/Issues

It is considered that the main material planning considerations in the determination of
this application are the mineral planning policy context; the operational requirements
of the mine, the economic and social benefits of the operation and the consequences
of the mine not being completed; the impacts likely to be caused by the continuation
of the existing permission post 2021 including continuing impacts on the landscape
and amenity and the current concerns about noise and vibration from the operation of
the processing plant and blasting.

Mineral Planning Policy Context

The European Commission’s Raw Materials Initiative was adopted in 2008 and seeks
to secure and improve access to raw materials for EU member states. Tungsten is
identified as one of 20 ‘critical minerals’ with the highest economic importance and
risk of supply interruption. While national planning policy provides little reference to
specific industrial minerals, the Minerals Practice Guidance notes that “industrial
minerals being essential raw materials for a wide range of downstream
manufacturing industries....their economic importance therefore extends well beyond
the sites from which they are extracted.

Page 17



Agenda Item 6

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

As mentioned in 5.4, the emerging Devon Minerals Plan is approaching its adoption,
and its policies should therefore accorded significant weight. Policy M9 of that Plan
carries a presumption of “permitting proposals...that will enable completion of the
approved development” at Drakelands Mine, and was not modified by the Inspector.
The relevant policy context therefore favours proposals that will enable the supply of
tungsten to be maintained balanced by the need to control and mitigate the impacts
of mineral development.

Operational, Economic and Social Benefits

One of the principal issues to balance against the environmental impacts of this
operation is the contribution the project has made and is expected to continue to
make to the local and national economy.

This is the only consented source of Tungsten in the UK, and the largest deposit in
Europe, and therefore in terms of its location there are very limited alternative
sources of supply to European markets.

Operational requirements

It is clear that the mine cannot be worked out by the end date of the original 1986
planning permission and therefore the operator has made the case for the extension
of the life of the site which might also enable two periods of “mothballing” should
tungsten prices slip below the level where it is economic to operator the mine. The
operator has made it clear that they have no wish to do this but that the proposed
end date might be nearer than the 2035 which has been requested.

The operator has submitted an economic case for bringing the hours of the primary
crusher into line with the rest of the processing plant. They state that the weekend
shutdowns comprise a reduction of at least 20% of their overall potential production
time and that the stopping and re-starting has knock on effects for the efficiency of
the rest of the process which can equate to a further half day loss of production.
Wolf accepts that it originally planned its operation based on the existing conditions
controlling the permitted hours of working but the current economic impact of the low
tungsten price and the issues that the company has been having with the process
plant generally has led to this request. They already have production shutdowns for
two days in every fortnight and they were asked whether this could be combined with
weekend or Bank Holiday shut downs, but they have advised that the specialist
contract labour that they rely on for maintenance is not available for regular weekend
or Bank Holiday cover.

Economy and Employment

According to the application documentation, and letters of support received from
trade organisations, the contribution currently being made by the mine is as follows:

. 200(+) direct jobs with an annual wage bill of approximately £8 Million and
additional multiplier effects in the local economy; and

. An estimated USD 1 Billion of export turnover is expected at optimum
production.

Page 18



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

Agenda Iltem 6

Tungsten is an element essential for many aspects of industry and enables a range
of specific technologies due to its unique properties. It has the highest melting point
of all metals, a very high specific weight similar to gold and its hardness is close to
diamond in the form of tungsten carbide.

The importance of security of supply is pointed out by the Department for
International Trade (DIT) who have provided a letter of support, pointing out the £150
million of investment already committed, and the “significant contribution to the
Devon economy and environment through the project’s annual spend of about £35
million; the £12 million funding of local infrastructure projects (new roads) and
support for a wide range of local community initiatives........... the DIT is very
supportive of the Wolf Minerals project and acknowledges the contribution the project
is making both locally and nationally through generation of exports expected to total
about US 1Billion over the lifetime of the mine” In terms of security of supply it has
also been suggested that disruption of that supply would have a knock on effect on
other industries which rely on tungsten and potentially a severe negative impact on
the economy.

Letters of support have also been received from more local interests including the
Devon and Cornwall Chambers of Commerce and the Devon and Cornwall Business
Council who have pointed out that the operation provides benefits to some 159 other
companies in Devon and Cornwall. Other support has also been expressed by
companies who are providing services to the mine such as providers of mechanical
and electrical engineering services, recruitment companies and specialist mining
suppliers.

The applicant has stated that an operating period close to the originally envisaged 35
year project length is critical to the refinancing of the project which is necessary to
avoid closure. Whilst the financial health of the applicant is not a land use planning
matter, it does need to be recognised that the operation is taking place in this
location because this is where the tungsten lies. Planning for minerals development
has to be long — term given the investment required to open a new mine and the
operator has made it clear that without an extension to the life of the consent the
tungsten would lie in the ground leading to ongoing uncertainty in the local area
about the future of the site and a potentially significant loss of local employment and
ongoing benefits to the local supply chain.

Education and Training

A number of organisations supporting this proposal have made reference to the
importance of the project to academic interests. The Devon and Cornwall Business
Council has pointed out that the Drakelands project provides strong co-operation
agreements with the Camborne School of Mines, the Universities of Exeter and
Plymouth and with further education and training providers for the development of
apprenticeship opportunities. Additionally a letter of support was received from the
British Geological Survey which states that the project is an unprecedented
opportunity to study the world class tungsten deposit. This continues to make a
contribution to the ongoing scientific research carried out by BGS and its academic
partners which is fundamental in underpinning future security of supply of tungsten
and other important technology metals for the UK and other western economies.

Page 19



Agenda Item 6

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

Noise and Vibration

Following concerns raised by the community about existing noise issues following the
submission of the application, the applicant was asked to provide additional
environmental information on the existing and predicted noise impacts from the mine.

The operator's submitted noise assessments are based on a “worst case scenario”
with the sound modelling and noise contour mapping based on all possible
operations taking place and without mitigation from natural landforms and features.

Low Frequency Noise (LFN)

Most of the objections to any extension to the life of the mine have been based on
concern about the Low Frequency Noise (LFN) including potential health impacts.
Some, including the Parish Council, consider that it is premature to grant an
extension to the life of the site before the matter is resolved.

This issue became apparent in the autumn of 2015 but it took some time to establish
that the secondary processing plant, (and particularly the big screens within it) are
producing a vibration “spike” at 16Hz.

The operator commissioned the Building Research Establishment (BRE) to
investigate the problem and to provide solutions. The walls of the process plant have
already been stiffened with additional steel bars to try to reduce vibration in the
purlins and whilst this has provided a localised reduction, there are still complaints
about the impact. Further potential solutions include stiffening up the roof of the plant
(which was underway at the time of writing this report) and intervention in the actual
screen mountings. It is expected that the roof stiffening will be complete by the time
of determination of this application but any changes monitored will have to be
reported verbally.

The issue of LFN is under constant review through the working of the Drakelands
Technical Liaison Group where the MPA works together with the other regulators (the
Environment Agency and the District Council and with other technical experts as
required).

The nature of the noise has not breached any of the existing noise conditions and
has not to date been measured at levels higher than those specified within the only
available guidance on the matter which is published by Salford University.

The secondary process plant is covered by an environmental permit (EP) and the EA
as lead Regulator has already required the operator to engage in continuous
improvements to reduce the levels of LFN at complainant properties. The EA has
confirmed that the conditions in the EP are sufficient to resolve this matter.

It is not appropriate to seek to impose planning conditions on the operation of the
process plant firstly because there is no agreed NPPF or MPG advice on Low
Frequency noise and secondly because the NPPF makes it clear that the planning
system should not seek to duplicate existing controls.

Operational Noise

The original permission was accompanied by a legal agreement requiring that certain
properties were purchased and empty before substantive works on the mine could
commence. The remaining occupied properties were not on that list and it was

Page 20



Agenda Iltem 6

considered at the time that the mine could operate with these properties remaining as
residential. The nearest occupied properties to the mine are at Galva House (445m
to the SW) and Birchland Farm (310m to the SE) of the site boundary.

6.24 There has been monitoring carried out in respect of complaints from properties
nearest to the mine but given the distances involved and the low background noise
levels at those properties it has been difficult to demonstrate conclusively whether
there are continuing breaches of the conditions by noise coming from the mining
operations.

6.25 Most other complaints and comments have come from the South East of the mine
where the land falls away to Sparkwell Village but there have also been occasional
comments and complaints about noise from other properties around the mine.
Complaints do appear to be wind direction dependent, but the mine operator has in
most cases responded to complaints by working in different areas of the mine.

Guidance on Mining Noise

6.26 Guidance on Noise is found within the NPPF and in the Minerals Practice Guidance
(MPG). It states that MPAs should seek to “ensure that any unavoidable noise, dust
and particle emissions and any blasting vibrations are controlled, mitigated or
removed at source, and establish appropriate noise limits for extraction in proximity
to noise sensitive properties”

6.27 The guidance recommends setting limits as low as practicable to reduce any adverse
impacts, without imposing undue burdens on the operator. For daytime and evening
it recommends limits that do not exceed the existing background level by more than
10dB(A) subject to a maximum daytime and evening level of 55dB(A). At night the
guidance recommends maximum level of 42 dB(A) with no reference to background
level.

6.28 The operator has not formally requested the review of the existing noise conditions
but is aware that the MPA may take steps to review existing conditions that are not
working or are not NPPF compliant.

The existing noise conditions

6.29 An ongoing complaint and investigation has led to the MPA receiving advice from the
EHO that the existing conditions based as they are on fagade level measurements
and with a tonal penalty are no longer NPPF compliant and are likely to result in parts
of the mine being incapable of being worked.

6.30 These conditions (which are set out in Appendix Il) are set lower than the NPPF
Guidance as the facade level measurement effectively reduces the maximum level
by about 3dB. The limits were likely set based on the lower background levels in
1986 when the original consent was determined.

6.31 Objectors are understandably concerned that applying modern noise conditions will
result in higher levels of noise from the mine. However, if the existing conditions are
set at a lower level than the existing guidance and furthermore would present an
unreasonable burden on the mine, then they would not meet the NPPF tests and are
consequently unlikely to give the expected protection for the amenity of local
residents as they may be unenforceable.

Page 21



Agenda Item 6

6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

6.36

6.37

6.38

6.39

Proposed Conditions

Discussions with the applicant and the EHO have been ongoing to find a range of
conditions and a monitoring methodology that can balance the requirements of the
NPPF tests, protect the amenity of local residents and do not represent an
unreasonable burden on the mine - in that they would not effectively prevent the mine
from being worked.

The Guidance in the MPG makes it clear that noise conditions are not intended to
ensure that adverse effects cannot occur at any time and that a balance needs to be
struck between maximum impacts on residential amenity and the practical operation
of the mine. It is clear that at Drakelands such impacts may occur for limited periods
of time during certain “in combination” circumstances of operational activities and
weather and it has been identified that the first phases of Stage 2 of the pit when it is
worked out to its maximum extent near the southern boundary will need special
consideration.

Nevertheless the background levels which will inform the proposed limits have been
derived on the basis that the mine is not in operation. The levels are higher than they
were in the 1980s, but other circumstances have changed since then with the
development of the power station and higher levels of traffic in general and on the
A38.

The MPG states that the determination of noise impacts should take account of the
prevailing acoustic environment. It is acknowledged that background noise levels
before the mine commenced working were extremely low, but in the context of this
planning application it is a fact that this is now an existing mining environment and
therefore is no longer undeveloped countryside.

When considering “tonal” noise (e.g intermittent noises) the MPG makes specific
reference to reversing alarms and the operator is already using white noise alarms
which can be reflected as a separate condition. In terms of the activities on the site it
is reasonable to consider that the mining and extraction operations themselves
represent “normal” mining activities that should be dealt with by a single noise level
condition and that tonal noise from drilling, blasting and reversing alarms should be
dealt with by separate conditions.

As a result of ongoing discussions with the operator it is suggested that conditions be
derived for “normal operational activities” and that the circumstances where there
may be greater impacts in working out Phase 2 of the Pit be considered separately
and require the submission of further information and proposed mitigation before this
phase of the pit is commenced.

The EHO has suggested revisions to the noise conditions should consent be granted
that take on board the modelling supplied by the applicant, but present a more
challenging target for daytime noise levels than those suggested by the applicant in
their supporting documentation.

Careful consideration of the tolerances built into the applicant’'s model (including the
3dB(A) “margin” would indicate that with mitigation it would not be necessary or
reasonable to set a noise condition building in the worst case scenario for 100% of
the time and that generally it should be possible for the operator to achieve (lowest)
background + 10dB(A) at the nearest residential receptor (Birchland Farm) during the
daytime and 42dB at night.

Page 22



Agenda Iltem 6

6.40 It is therefore proposed that if planning permission is granted, the noise limits could
be set as following:

Noise levels arising from the development shall not exceed the following limits at any

noise sensitive property:

(i) Between the hours of 0700 and 1900 (daytime) 50 dBLAeq. 1 hour free field

(i) Between the hours of 1900 and 2200 (evening) and between 0700 and 2200
on Sunday 45 dBLAeq. 1 hour free field

(iii) Between the hours of 2200 and 0700 (night-time) 42 dBLAeq. 1hour free field.

6.41 The condition for the night time noise limit would also include a caveat that there
should be no mining operations at night except for between 0600 and 0700 when it
would be permissible to carry out refuelling and bringing equipment into position to
commence the 0700 shift.

6.42 The proposed restriction on noise limits on a Sunday reflects the concerns of local
people that weekend impacts should be lower and the recent decision by the
Planning Inspectorate in respect of the a drilling consent in Lancashire. The NPPF
does not however offer any support for such lower levels and therefore it is
suggested that an interim evening level of 45dB is appropriate.

6.43 There is no guidance in the NPPF regarding the special treatment of Bank Holidays,
and so there is no provision for requiring lower levels on those days. However, the
previous conditions did restrict Bank Holiday working to Sunday levels and so the
applicant has offered to restrict the operations to 45dB on the 8 Bank Holidays which
were protected in the original permission.

Phase 2 of the Pit Development

6.44 Para 143 of the NPPF recognises that: “some noisy short-term activities, which may
otherwise be regarded as unacceptable, are unavoidable to facilitate minerals
extraction...” and that noise limits should be developed to recognise this fact.

6.45 The guidance accords a general dispensation to higher levels (up to 70dB) during
temporary noisy activities such as soil stripping based on the likelihood that this may
be unavoidable to develop a mine but that the impact should only be for short periods
of time. This is a normal dispensation and would cover periods of soil stripping for
Phase 2 but the guidance no longer includes overburden removal.

6.46 The modelling indicates that until the operator has achieved a bench level at least
10m below existing ground level in certain parts phase 2 of the pit, there may be
higher noise levels which are unavoidable if the mine is to be developed in
accordance within its existing planning consent. Discussions with the applicant have
however indicated that with careful mitigation this limit could be reduced to 53dB
(A)[freefield] for short periods of time while working in that particular area.

6.47 The operator has pointed out that the mine could not be worked without the
development of Phase 2 but the imposition of a new condition with a scheme would
enable the community to be aware of the precise periods when this working is
proposed in certain parts of the pit and the modelling indicates that this would only be
necessary whilst taking out the overburden and achieving the first 10m bench to the
170m AOD level in a specific part of the pit.

Page 23



Agenda Item 6

6.48

6.49

6.50

6.51

6.52

6.53

6.54

Mitigation

In terms of mitigation, the operator has in the past attempted to vary their operations
to reduce impacts at the nearest residential property to the south east although this
has not always been consistent or successful in the view of the neighbour.
Additionally, this has led to problems with the way the mine has been developed
which needs to be fully considered taking into account the need to balance the
impacts on local residential amenity and the advice not to impose unreasonable
burdens on the operator.

In consideration of the potential impact on neighbours even for relatively short
periods of time, the development of a noise management and mitigation strategy with
associated complaints procedure is commonly used in mineral operations as a way
to identify likely issues, and the actions that the operator can take to deal with them.

Clearly as this is an existing mine there is no mitigation that can be achieved by
increasing separation distances without undue burden on the operator as it would
effectively mean that the mine could not be developed, however the operator has
stated that with relation to certain sensitive properties and during particular weather
conditions they would remove certain machinery to other parts of the site and reduce
the numbers of pieces of plant and machinery. This is considered to be the most
significant at Portworthy (when the tip toe is constructed) and for Birchland farm
(when Phase 2 of the pit is being created).

Noise Monitoring

There have been difficulties with monitoring noise at nearest occupied residential
property whose owners have required the monitoring equipment installed by the
operator to be removed. Clearly this is a risk for future monitoring and there needs to
be a representative location where the equipment is protected and has the required
power supply.

The recording equipment has been moved to a residential property that is currently
empty and closer to the mine and the measurements at that location will be modelled
to infer a level at the nearest occupied property. In terms of long term dependability
of monitoring and to overcome the issue of the very low background levels having
breaches “trigger” by ancillary environmental noise like wind/birdsong and passing
vehicles, it is suggested that a permanent location be installed at the edge of the pit
with an absolute level which has been “modelled back” from the nearest occupied
property. Therefore the achievement of specific levels at the edge of pit location
would reasonably be expected, using the modelling, to achieve the required level at
the occupied property.

It is proposed that this approach, with a detailed monitoring, mitigation and
complaints scheme would enable the noise to be measured in a manner that is more
representative of the impact of the actual noise from the mining operations and less
affected by other environmental noise.

Additionally, to provide confidence in the impartiality of the monitoring the operator
has offered to fund independent auditing by a third party of the monitoring data and
to investigate complaints, and to have the Technical Liaison Group agree the
consultant to be chosen to carry out day to day monitoring.

Page 24



Agenda Iltem 6

6.55 It is hoped that this will allay some of the concerns expressed about the nature of
monitoring at this site although there is no reason to conclude that the information
received to date has been in any way inaccurate.

The Primary Crusher

6.56 The applicant has specifically requested the removal of the existing condition which
prevents the operation of the primary crusher from 1800 on a Saturday night to 0600
on a Monday morning during public holidays.

6.57 The crusher is a twin shaft rolls crusher using counter rotating toothed drums, rather
than a jaw action which would have been common when the original permission was
granted. It is housed within a building constructed in an excavated “pocket” of land.
The crusher feeds the Secondary Process Plant which is already able to operate for
24 hours, seven days per week, and both of these parts of the plant are separately
covered by an Environmental Permit granted by the Environment Agency which does
not restrict the hours of operation but has its own conditions regarding noise.

6.58 Given the importance of the continuous use of the process plant as set out in Para
6.7, the operator had asked the MPA for a number of “trial” periods for 24/7 working.
This was approved for economic reasons and also to enable the applicant to provide
data on the contribution of this plant to overall noise levels on the understanding that
if the Primary Crusher was itself demonstrated to be causing noise problems then the
trial would be ended.

6.59 The noise modelling submitted with the application indicated that the noise from the
primary crusher does not significantly increase the overall noise levels generated by
operations at the mine. The movement on the loading pad (the ROM pad) was the
most likely part of this operation to contribute to noise and the submitted information
indicates that the contribution to the overall sound power from this is in the region of
an additional 1.2dB at Birchland Farm at night.

6.60 There had been complaints from that property that the loading on the ROM pad is
audible at night and as a result the operator has installed the quietest available “white
noise” alarms on the two loaders operating at that location.

6.61 The NPPF Guidance states that a permitted operation should be dealt with by those
controls and whilst it is understandable that a condition could be used to seek
controls over the secondary processing plant by cutting off its supply, it is very
doubtful whether such a condition would be held to be either reasonable or
necessary under the NPPF tests for planning conditions if this plant is not in itself
causing night time noise and there is a general EP condition controlling all noise from
the plant at night in any case.

6.62 As the remainder of the plant can operate for 24 hours a day and the whole of the
site is subject to a night time noise condition, then it is considered that a condition
relating to the primary crusher alone would not meet the tests in the NPPF, not being
necessary or reasonable, as noise from this is already controlled by the permit and
the proposed general night time noise condition. Furthermore as the secondary
process plant already operates unrestricted this would impose an unreasonable
burden on the operator.

Page 25



Agenda Item 6

6.63

6.64

6.65

6.66

6.67

6.68

6.69

Operational Noise: Conclusion

It is important to attempt to strike a reasonable balance between the expectations of
those residents who have historically lived with very low background noise levels, the
recognition that this mine already has planning permission and that the existing noise
conditions are no longer compliant with Government advice. The existing conditions
impose lower levels than those suggested in the current guidance but afford little
realistic protection if they are out of date and unenforceable. Reiterating the previous
conditions would not be NPPF compliant.

The protection to be afforded to residents has to be balanced with the reality of the
scale of this particular mining operation which is one of the largest mines in Western
Europe. Sound emissions from the site may on occasion and for short periods
exceed the NPPF recommended levels due to the proximity of the mine but it is not
reasonable to expect that the operation will never be heard in the village or from
surrounding land.

It is proposed that the overall noise conditions be amended to reflect current
guidance, which would deal with all noise emitting from the site at daytime and at
night “in combination” which would overcome confusion or duplication about
permitted/non permitted processes (the process plant) and be a much clearer and
more enforceable condition.

The proposed amendment to the noise conditions, along with a noise management
and monitoring scheme would represent a reasonable balance between setting the
noise limit as low as possible as suggested by the NPPF and the ability of the
operator to work the mine.

A local resident has engaged an independent noise consultant to assess the
environmental noise information provided by the operator. They have questioned
both the methodology and the conclusions of the noise reports.

The MPA asked the applicant’s noise consultants to comment on this report and they
have produced a document in rebuttal of its conclusions. Advice from the EHO and
the Council’'s own noise expert is that the operator’s noise assessment provides a
reliable indication of the likely level of noise, and that the methodology is a
reasonable approach. The proposed condition in relation to noise limits and the
removal of the penalty for tonality and distinctive noises is seen by the noise
consultant acting for the closest neighbour as raising the overall level, this is
identified in the response from the District Environmental Health officer as well,
however since permission was originally granted guidance has changed significantly
in regards to what is best practice for the measurement of noise and what would be
viewed as an acceptable level of noise. The proposed conditions seek to control
“tonal” noise sources by requiring the use of appropriate reversing alarms and
controlling the hours of drilling. It is acknowledged that there will be occasional noise
caused by mining operations themselves that might raise the very short term
recorded noise levels (such as a clang or a siren) but that the application of a tonal
‘penalty” to day to day mining operations is likely to constitute an unreasonable
burden to the mining operation.

The proposed noise limits are therefore considered to be compliant with the NPPF

guidance as being set a low as practicable whilst enabling the mine to be operated
without imposing an “unreasonable burden” on the operator.

Page 26



Agenda Iltem 6

6.70 The objections that it is unreasonable to extend the life of the site whilst there are
existing noise issues is noted, however it needs to be recognised that this operation
could carry on until 2021 under the existing conditions. Any benefits to be gained by
updating the conditions as well as the monitoring and mitigation schemes to control
the early development of the mine would not have been gained unless a new consent
is granted. As the mine develops and deepens it is expected that these issues will
lessen in any case.

Dust and Air Quality

6.71 Some objectors have mentioned higher levels of “nuisance” dust in the village,
especially over the summer and since blasting commenced although no formal
complaints have been received separate to the planning consultation.

6.72 There is already dust monitoring carried out and dust gauges were installed before
mining commenced to give a clear indication of any changes caused by mining
activity, but the monitor at Birchland Farm which carried out the PM10 monitoring has
recently been disconnected by the landowner.

6.73 The most recent Q2 and Q3 2016 quarterly monitoring reports (April to June and July
to September) which followed the commencement of blasting indicated that there
were no exceedances of the National Air Quality Strategy guidelines for PM10
particulates at Birchland Farm during this period. Of the 9 dust deposition monitors
arranged around the mine none presented rates of dust deposition higher than the
200mg/m2/day which is normally used for assessing dust “nuisance”, except for the
gauge within the mine itself on the MWF.

6.74 Nevertheless, there is a concern in the village that dust levels have increased and so
the current blast impact minimisation operations include damping down before
blasting to prevent there being any source of dust from this activity as well as the use
of a mist cannon where appropriate. The haul ways and open areas are already
sprayed with bowsers and there is a complaints procedure in accordance with the
existing dust monitoring scheme.

6.75 The EHO has suggested that the monitoring scheme be revised to include more
recent guidance from the Institute of Air Quality Management (2016) on the impacts
of dust arising from mineral operations and has suggested some amended conditions
should consent be granted. These are included in the Schedule at Appendix .

6.76 A revised dust minimisation monitoring, and complaints scheme with an element of
independence in the monitoring carried out would then be consistent with similar
schemes for noise and blasting.

Blasting

6.77 Blasting at the mine commenced in February 2016 and resulted in a large number of
complaints and concerns expressed by residents and the Parish Council about noise,
vibration and potential structural damage.

6.78 Monitoring of the blast results has established that neither the maximum ground
borne vibration, which is measured as Peak Particle Velocity (PPV), or airborne
vibration (air overpressure)(AOP) limits in the existing planning conditions were being
breached.

Page 27



Agenda Item 6

6.79

6.80

6.81

6.82

6.83

6.84

However, the concern expressed was so great that, following a public engagement
event, the County Council commissioned blasting experts to advise on whether the
operator was following Best Available Techniques and carrying out blasting so as to
minimise its impacts in terms of airborne vibration, ground borne vibration, dust and
fumes. At the same time, the County Council encouraged the operator to appoint
consultants with community mediation and blasting expertise given the difficult
relationship and barriers to effective communication that had developed between the
operator and the public.

Blast Log Ltd, which is the DCC consultant, has carried out its own monitoring and
has audited the information provided by the operator and by their blast consultant
from Leicester University. They note that, whilst the blasting has not at any time
breached the upper limits set in the existing conditions relating to ground borne
vibration and air borne vibration (air overpressure), there is significant amplification of
vibration levels inside some properties which causes alarm and distress over and
above that which would normally be expected at the levels of ground borne vibration
measured to date outside the properties.

They note that a number of steps have been taken by Wolf over the summer to
improve matters such as ensuring that the blasts are designed to minimise dust
emissions, to alter the explosive mix to reduce Nitrogen Dioxide emissions and to
use and measure the effects of using electronic detonators in an attempt to reduce
vibrations inside local properties by avoiding the resonant frequencies of the
properties affected and so minimise the amplification effects.

In relation to trials with electronic detonators, these are ongoing and the operator’s
consultant has recently reported in a briefing on blasting that: “the design and
execution of the blast is now of the highest standard, and has significantly reduced
some of the early issues such as fume and dust. However, this has not reduced the
blast vibrations that many local residents continue to be deeply concerned about, and
so this has been the recent focus. ....... After the initial analysis, it seems that the
electronic detonators have not delivered all of the benefits which were hoped for. In
some locations the vibration levels have decreased, and the amplification factor
between outside and inside a property has been reduced in some places. However,
there are other locations where the vibration levels seem to have increased, and the
reasons for this are at present unclear....... The use of electronic detonators is
continuing for the time being, but further investigation is required to take into account
other factors. Through this and other briefings, the operator has also made it clear
that it will incorporate the community feedback on blasting in the ongoing analysis.”

Blast Log consider that the lack of attention paid in the early months to investigating
and understanding the public reaction to blasting and committing to minimise its
effects (irrespective of the maximum levels of ground vibration and air overpressure
in the planning conditions) has contributed to the communication difficulties
mentioned above and to the delay in taking the additional measures now in hand to
reduce the impacts.

Improvements have been made in communications since the start of blasting.
Currently the operator is communicating by e-mail with local people to let them know
when each blast will take place (usually at about 3.15 Tuesday to Friday); how much
material the blast would be expected to move in cubic metres and a description of the
type of blast (e.g. whether it is a full “production” blast or whether it is a “trim shot”
which is used to remove smaller amounts of material for specific purposes such as
creating a sump or a stable bench face at its final position). The notification also
states in which part of the pit the blasts will take place. The operator has also

Page 28



Agenda Iltem 6

recently set up a local website, which gives the vibration and air overpressure results
for each of the blasts, some general information about blasting, the blasting
programme for the coming week and contact information for complaints and
comments. It has recently involved its consultant from Leicester University in
preparing periodic briefings sent to the community by email, hard copy, via the parish
magazines and via the website. The consultant’s contact details are available in
these briefings so that members of the public can approach him directly if they wish.

6.85 What is becoming clear from the current work being undertaken by Leicester
University, is that the location of blasting activity in the pit, along with the detonator
type and the type of affected property all have an effect on the experience within an
individual dwelling. Modelling and monitoring is continuing to inform the model and
the operator has made a commitment to operating its blasting in accordance with the
concept of “Planning to Comply”. This entails the establishment of a comprehensive
database that records all the key blasting parameters and monitoring data. Using
this concept, the database is updated after each blast and the resulting analysis used
to inform the design of the next blast, as well as prediction of the likely levels of blast
vibration that will be induced at key locations.

6.86 Blast Log Ltd (for the MPA) has provided a report recommending that as a part of
any new condition, the operator provides a blast impact minimisation and monitoring
scheme (along with a complaints scheme) with recommendations for particular types
of measurement and monitoring and the continued reporting of measured impacts.

6.87 Ongoing discussion with the operator has led to agreement that they would produce
such a scheme within a month of permission being granted, and they would continue
to adopt the “Planning to Comply” approach, rather than concluding that blasting
within the prescribed levels of a planning condition is sufficient action.

6.88 The submission of a scheme would enable the operator to continue to try to plan for
improvements based on the best possible information and the monitoring information
would be in the public domain as the operator has offered to pay for independent
monitoring to be provided to the Mineral Planning Authority.

6.89 The applicant did not formally apply to vary the blasting conditions but has accepted
that the current situation required further review over and above that required to
ensure that the existing conditions are merely NPPF compliant.

6.90 The very specific objection from the Dartmoor Zoo is noted but there was a zoo in
this location when the original permission was granted and so this would have been
taken into consideration at the time of the original consent. The applicant’s
consultant has stated that the only published evidence in respect of the potential
impact on zoo animals concluded that although animals were observed to notice the
first few blasts they “quickly became used to the effects and there was no evidence
of chronic stress responses.” It is acknowledged that the current zoo management is
concerned about the impact of the mine but the concern mostly reflects that of the
community as a whole. Given that the current conditions are not being breached at
the zoo and the applicant's commitment to using Best Available Techniques to
minimise the impact of blasting (incorporating the “Planning to Comply” approach),
implementation of the Blast Impact Minimisation and Monitoring Scheme, which
documents the approaches they will use, in conjunction with new conditions
presents the most positive way forward.

Page 29



Agenda Item 6

6.91

6.92

6.93

6.94

6.95

6.96

6.97

Proposed blasting conditions

It is suggested that the blasting conditions be re-cast (See Appendix IlI) to be
consistent with established best practice that combines the imposition of a maximum
limit on vibration with a requirement that 95% of blasts are below a lower level, and
also to require the submission and approval of the Blast Minimisation, Monitoring and
Complaints scheme described above. There is no current guidance on air
overpressure but local concerns about the potential loss of this condition are noted
and having a limit (even if not breached to date) would safeguard the community
from any increases. This has been accepted by the operator and the management of
this would also form part of the management and complaints scheme.

The recommended conditions would reduce the overall permitted blasts from a
maximum of 24 in a single week (Mon to Sat) and a maximum of 6 in a single day to
2 a day. There was considerable concern when blasting commenced about the
potential increase in the numbers of blasts given the locally perceived impacts and
information given by the operator that full production had not yet been reached.

Amendment of this condition to refer to the lower numbers provides welcome clarity.
Objectors have pointed out that, in fact, the reduction in the number of blasts is little
concession because the operator has admitted that it would be impossible to blast 6
times per day, however, the reduced numbers provide reassurance that there should
be a regular and reasonably predictable programme of blasting in the future.

It is suggested that blasting also be controlled on a Saturday except for a reduced
number of 6 per year to enable the operator to carry out a blast if for any reason the
weather or other factors prevent the blast taking place on a Friday.

Health Impacts

A number of concerns have been raised by local people and by Sparkwell Parish
Council about the health impacts of the existing operation. The Parish Council is
known to have carried out a survey of local people asking whether the mine is
causing them health impacts. The Parish has not however shared the survey
questions or the detail of the response except within their general response to the
planning application.

The applicant has provided a statement on public health which explores the threshold
levels for impacts on human health but concludes that the measured levels from
LFN, blasting and operational noise are not reaching levels that would cause actual
harm although it is accepted that fear and general anxiety about the mine and its
impacts can have a debilitating effect and that the Low Frequency Noise can affect
some individuals more acutely.

The Director of Public Health has observed that there is limited guidance in the area
of LFN and notes that the applicant is taking steps to address the impact on local
residents as specified by the Environmental Permit. A Health Protection Agency
Report of the Independent Advisory Group on Non-ionising Radiation (2010) entitled
the ‘Health Effects of Exposure to Ultrasound and Infrared’ concluded that at lower
levels of exposure there is sparse literature and no confirmed biological effects to
support action above those proposed by the applicant.

Page 30



Agenda Iltem 6

6.98 However, the review also notes that there are reports that chronic exposure to
unwanted, low frequency acoustic sources in the environment may also induce
non-specific symptoms of stress including headaches, nausea and loss of sleep, but
the possibility could not be excluded that these effects are due to audible noise.

6.99 The potential pollution and other environmental hazards which might lead to an
adverse impact on human health including air quality (including dust and particulate
matter), noise and low frequency noise, blasting and vibration and the cumulative
impact thereof must be mitigated to the best available degree through the planning
conditions and environmental permit and other regulatory control

6.100 The MPA has copied the Parish Council’s response to the Regulator (the EA) who
will take it on board in their ongoing assessment of whether the operator has taken
reasonable steps to remedy the problem.

6.101 The Director of Public Health recognises that “in combination” effects may be adding
to the problem and makes it clear that it is essential to try to mitigate effects that may
alone or in combination potentially impact on human health. It is possible that these
matters “in combination” are exacerbating fear and concern in some individuals. It is
extremely difficult to evidence any specific health impact associated with such
general worries however and no medical evidence has been presented to support the
health concerns expressed by the Parish Council.

Communication

6.102 It is also observed that the relationship between the applicant and local residents
contributes to the impacts and that the promotion of good relationships and
communication between the operator, the regulators and the community can help to
address the issues that arise.

6.103 A recurring complaint has been the lack of engagement between the operator and
the community in acknowledging and dealing with community concerns. Complaints
about blasting led to the operator engaging consultants to carry out community
mediation and they have recently engaged additional environmental and community
liaison staff. Communication has recently improved with the creation of a community
web page by the mine, daily blasting notifications and occasional community briefing
notes about progress with blasting and LF Noise. Representatives from the mine
have been attending Parish Council Meetings for the last 4 years and there are
technical and formal liaison groups set up to deal with issues relating to this mine.
The compliance of the operator in continuing to engage with the community on
matters related to environmental concerns, as well as the joint regulatory approach
and the ongoing liaison groups should help to reduce concerns over time.

Mitigation

6.104 The advice in the NPPF is that in granting planning permission for mineral
development, there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on human health taking
account of the cumulative effect of multiple impacts from individual sites or from a
number of sites in the locality.

6.105 The opportunity to review some of the existing conditions and to require updated

monitoring, mitigation and complaints schemes would accord with the advice on
securing the best available mitigation given by the Director of Public Health.

Page 31



Agenda Item 6

6.106

6.107

6.108

6.109

6.110

6.111

6.112

Landscape

A number of representations have been made objecting to the proposed loss of
Hemerdon Ball plantation but it needs to be made clear that this is not a part of this
planning application. It appears that there has been confusion locally about the
proposal in the Devon Minerals Plan for a south west lateral extension, and this
current application to extend the life of the existing permission. The south west
lateral extension would involve the loss of the plantation, but that would require a
completely separate planning application and so is not a consideration as a part of
this process.

The application is accompanied by a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
which is again based on the 2021 “baseline” and therefore the residual impacts from
2021 would be a deepening of the pit and an increase in the height of the MWF but
on the already established final “footprint”.

The ES concludes that on this basis there would be no significant landscape or visual
effects predicted as a result of the working continuing between 2021 and 2036. The
presence of open cast mining is already a key characteristic of this landscape and
reflected in the Landscape Character Type.

Additionally, there has been progress with the restoration of the china clay operations
to the north and whilst these have consent until 2042 and are predicted to develop to
become contiguous with this mine; the consents already exist and the impacts can be
mitigated by the requirements for ongoing phased restoration.

The ongoing disturbance from mining will clearly have an impact but the restoration
proposals have been assessed in terms of the overall landscape type and the long
term impacts assessed as neutral if the site is restored in accordance with the
permitted scheme which is a mix of moorland; farmland and woodland albeit with the
pit left as a water body.

The original consent permitted a 35 year life for the mine but as this development did
not commence until 2014 then the additional 15 years would amount to a total of 22
years disturbance before the pit is complete and the tip is restored.

Lighting Impact

During the setting up of the plant there were some concerns expressed about night
time lighting of the plant and across the Mine Waste Facility. As a result of these
observations the Company was asked to reconsider the lighting on some of the
conveyors and this has been removed. The lighting of the MWF is the subject of an
approved scheme which involves lighting gantries being towed into position with
movement sensors to minimise the time period when they are switched on and this
balances the Health and Safety requirements of the Mines and Quarries Inspectorate
with the amenity considerations of an operation relatively close to the National Park
Boundary. In general these are issues that have come up only in the winter months
and where specific problems have been picked up by members of the public they
have been raised at the Technical Liaison group and the operator has responded
where it would not constitute a breach of the mines and quarries legislation. It is
proposed that any grant of consent has a new condition requiring a review of the
night time lighting and that the operator takes steps to minimise external lighting to
the minimum consistent with Health and safety requirements in order to minimise any
external impact on the dark skies and tranquillity associated with the Dartmoor
National Park.

Page 32



Agenda Iltem 6

Nature conservation

European Sites

6.113 The Environment Agency produced 4 separate Habitat Regulation Assessments
(HRAs) for abstractions, discharges, the mine waste facility and kiln emissions. The
County Council produced a HRA for the remaining activities; dewatering, the process
building, mineral extraction, soil stripping and associated infrastructure in 2014. No
part of the mine is within a European protected site and the only potential indirect
impacts related to water quality, air quality, water flows/levels and disturbance. All
HRAs concluded that with mitigation there would be no adverse effects on any
European Wildlife Site.

6.114 All impacts on European Sites from this proposal remain as they were for previous
HRAs and no new European Sites have been proposed or designated since 2014. It
is therefore considered that, with appropriate mitigation in place (as set out in the
previous assessments), this application will not have a likely significant effect on any
European site.

Protected and priority species and habitats (other than European sites)

6.115 Natural England has stated that they have no comment to make on the proposed
variation of conditions. The proposed extension of time will have no further impact
on protected habitats and species. However as the mine deepens and dewatering
commences, the potential impact on fish will be a consideration in the Smallhanger
flow compensation scheme (see hydrology 6.119 onwards below). This is proposed
as a new condition and for which the MPA will take advice from the Environment
Agency regarding fish passage and other riverine species.

Mitigation/restoration requirements

6.116 The footprint of the mine has already been established and by 2021, there will
already have been progress with restoration of the outer faces of the tip and much of
the mitigation planting will be well established and providing wildlife links. The only
wildlife mitigation measures that would not have been implemented by 2021 would
be the restoration and management of the final phases of the Mine Waste Facility.

6.117 There is the opportunity for an ongoing dialogue with the operator through the annual
reviews of restoration and aftercare as well as the monitoring and reporting
mechanisms already required through the Environmental Permit and reported
annually as an Environment Development Management Plan (EDMP) which splits
the site into Biodiversity Enhancement Zones (BEZ). The Environment Agency has
commented that as the mine evolves, the success and scope of the existing BEZs
should be reviewed to ensure that any potential for their extension and improvement
is considered through the existing EDMP.

6.118 Much of the control over environmental review and ecological monitoring was
previously contained within the Unilateral Undertaking attached to the 2010
modification order. This application affords the opportunity to bring these within the
planning conditions and it is proposed to apply a new condition requiring the
implementation and review of the EDMP to ensure that the habitats and species
within the Biodiversity Enhancement Zones and finalisation of restoration of the Mine
Waste Facility is kept under review.

Hydrology, Hydrogeology and Flood Risk Management

6.119 The application was supported by a Chapter in the ES dealing with hydrology and
hydrogeology and it is accepted that by 2021 most of the impacts on watercourses

Page 33



Agenda Item 6

6.120

6.121

6.122

6.123

6.124

6.125

6.126

6.127

would have taken place. Nevertheless, the EA requested further information on
Flood Risk and on the ecology of the Smallhanger Brook.

Potential for Flooding

The applicant has submitted further information in the form of a Flood Risk
Assessment. This has been accepted in principle by the Environment Agency as
much of the site is already covered by the EP which also deals with flooding.

The remaining part of the site that was not covered by the EP, the Smallhanger
Valley, requires the submission of a more detailed surface water and flood risk
management and mitigation scheme. This would be covered by a proposed new
condition. This approach has been supported by the Flood Risk Management Team.

The Smallhanger Brook

In its original response to the planning application, the Environment Agency raised
concerns about the impact of pit dewatering (and potential consequent impact on the
local water table) on the flow levels in the Smallhanger Brook. The original ES
predicted a reduction of flow between 16 and 27% by 2021 and they wished to have
an assessment of the likely significant effects on wildlife within the stream and the
proposed means of augmentation of the flow from pit dewatering operations.

The applicants have provided a series of Technical Notes to cover these points and
the Environment Agency has indicated that they are content with the principle so long
as the submission of a detailed scheme is a condition of any new permission. The
new condition will require a more comprehensive assessment on the flow regime in
the Smallhanger Brook taking into account the various surface water management
structures existing and proposed within the valley and the management of flood risk
as referred to in the previous paragraph.

Impact on private water supplies

When the original permission was granted it was accompanied by a legal agreement
which required investigation if there were any concerns about the loss of private
water supplies.

There are two outstanding complaints that the development of the mine has led to
the loss of private water supplies to two existing ponds which have become dry.
These are not potable water supplies but the ponds are local wildlife features and it is
undesirable that they should be lost.

The Operator was asked to provide an investigation into these matters and to
propose remediation if it was found that the supplies had been lost due to the
activities of the mine. A report has been provided by hydrogeological consultants
and in both cases it appears that the supply began to drop in 2014 but there is no
evidence that there has been any drop in groundwater and indeed dewatering has
only just commenced in the pit. There is a suggestion that slight disruption in the
surface water catchment may have been the reason for the losses but there are a
number of possibilities and the report concludes that further investigation is required.

The operator has committed to continue to investigate this and the Environment
Agency has confirmed that they are satisfied with the investigation and proposals
supplied in the technical note submitted with the Regulation 22 information. The EA
does not consider that a condition is necessary to require detailed measures to

Page 34



Agenda Iltem 6

mitigate the impact on water supplies and in the absence of firm evidence that the
mine is at fault a condition would not be enforceable.

6.128 Although one of the affected residents has raised some issues with the content of the
technical note and the further work done by the consultants, the operator has
undertaken to update the legal agreements to commit to this investigative work and
to firm up the steps to be taken regarding remediation and arbitration to secure an
earlier resolution.

6.129 The extension of the life of the mine post 2021 does not have any bearing on this
matter which is covered by the existing legal agreement regarding derogation of
water supplies. The updated unilateral undertaking proposes specific actions by the
operator and will clarify the steps to be taken to provide remediation.

Archaeology and Historic Environment

6.130 The likelihood of any impact on heritage assets has been considered under the
general duty under s.66 of the (Planning Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas
Act 1990). There are no listed buildings within or adjacent to the site and the
extension to the life of the operation would not result in harm to any heritage asset.
The original condition relating to the programme of archaeological investigation still
requires the updating of the archaeological framework document in the light of the
results of the fieldwork undertaken. The Historic Environment team recommend that
the archaeological condition is reiterated to ensure that the outstanding work is
completed. There are no other heritage issues.

Highways and Access

6.131 There are no significant highway issues associated with this development and the
Highway Authority has raised no objection. The Operator has already constructed a
“link road” to bypass a narrow stretch of the public highway at Newnham and this has
been open for some time as adopted public highway. In order to construct the Mine
Waste Facility it was also necessary (and a part of the original consent) to construct
a new length of the B3417 (Plymouth to Lee Moor) road. This is under construction
and anticipated to open as adopted highway in early 2017 which will enable the full
tip footprint to be implemented.

6.132 There have been occasional issues with drivers following their satnav instructions
into Hemerdon and Sparkwell villages. The operator has taken steps to deal with
such reported incidents by stressing the correct postal code on their correspondence
and putting up dedicated signage to the mine. The B3417 is regularly used by heavy
traffic to and from the China Clay quarries to the north and the traffic from
Drakelands is restricted to deliveries and staff. Unlike the china clay quarries to the
north, there are not large numbers of HGVs exporting materials as the tungsten and
tin concentrate equates to approximately one HGV movement per day. The Parish
Council and local people have been asked to take registrations of HGVs in the village
that they attribute to the mine in order that the operator can take action if the vehicle
is recorded as having come through their weighbridge.

6.133 There is an agreed travel plan already in place for this mine and an updated version
of this can be required by condition.

Page 35



Agenda Item 6

6.134

6.135

6.136

6.137

6.138

6.139

Restoration

The NPPF requires that restoration and aftercare is provided at the earliest
opportunity. In recognition that the original plans were based on best practice in the
1980s, in 2010 the operator offered a revised restoration and aftercare concept
based on more recent practice whereby the lower slopes of the tip would be restored
to broadleaved woodland and the land above the natural treeline would be managed
as acid grassland and heathland to reflect the natural characteristics of the
pre-mining landscape. While the mine waste facility is being developed the mine is
still technically under construction, but when the new road is completed and final tip
toe can be constructed then the tipping will proceed back towards the tailings dam
with progressive restoration and planting of the lower slopes. The existing legal
agreements build in review of the restoration and require annual reporting of
progress. Where possible, these requirements have been transposed to the new
conditions for clarity.

There is already in existence a restoration bond with Wolf Minerals which was
required as a part of the original legal agreement associated with the 1986 planning
permission. Whilst the NPPF states that such bonds are only required in exceptional
circumstances, the large scale nature of the development combined with the volatile
markets in metal prices indicated that the public interest should be protected. The
value of the bond was calculated by the Mineral Valuer in 2014 to be in the region of
£15 million and whilst it was not necessary to do so until the project was at its
maximum “exposure” calculated to be years 5-7 of the project, the operator has
already posted the full amount into an Escrow Account to ensure that the finance
remains available for this purpose.

Need and Overall Sustainability Considerations

Tungsten is identified by the Government as a “Critical Mineral” and clearly its
location cannot be altered — it must be worked where it is found. This is the only
consented source of Tungsten in the UK or in Western Europe and therefore in terms
of its location there are clearly no alternative sources of supply.

The extraction of primary mineral is by its very definition a non-renewable natural
resource; however, the way in which the mineral is worked will have a bearing on the
environmental impact. Although there are ongoing issues with impacts from noise
and blasting, this site is also controlled by a number of Environmental permits and
the works to date in terms of planting, bridleway diversion and creation and
ecological mitigation have been of very high quality.

Relationship to other consent regimes

Paragraph 122 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that “...local
planning authorities should focus on whether the development itself is an acceptable
use of the land, and the impact of the use, rather than the control of processes or
emissions themselves where these are subject to approval under pollution control
regimes. Local planning authorities should assume that these regimes will operate
effectively.”

The mine already has planning permission and the location of what is identified as a
“critical mineral” cannot be altered. The applicant is currently taking steps to amend
the existing Environmental Permit (EP) which deals with the Mine Waste Facility (the
tip); the process plant (including the primary crusher) and discharges to watercourses

Page 36



Agenda Iltem 6

but it is not expected that this would have any significant impact on the existing
consent and the EA will consult with the MPA in any case.

6.140 The EP would therefore manage matters such as noise or any other nuisance from
the process plant and although the planning system would have regard to general
amenity issues, it is a matter for the Environment Agency to manage the EP and to
take decisions on what are “reasonable steps” to manage noise and nuisance
emanating from the plant; including requiring the plant to shut down if the permitting
agency does not consider that the operator is taking reasonable steps to manage the
impacts of the permitted operations.

The proposed Unilateral Undertaking

6.141 At present the original consent is still tied to the original s.52 agreement which
accompanied the 1986 permission and most of its provisions have been enacted. It
remains valid as it has the requirement for dealing with derogation of water supplies
and is tied to the land. Other matters controlled by this agreement such as the
purchase of properties, the posting of a restoration bond and the diversion of paths
have all been dealt with or updated in the separate Unilateral Undertaking which
accompanied the Modification Order in 2010. That legal Undertaking set a revised
and enhanced restoration concept as well as higher standards for the provision of
public rights of way and environmental mitigation which had not been considerations
in 1986.

6.142 In order to rationalise the existing legal obligations and to offer new ones, the
operator has offered a revised Unilateral Undertaking drawing together the remaining
relevant clauses of the 1986 and the 2010 legal agreement. Some of those previous
clauses have been expressed as new conditions.

6.143 The new undertakings include the sharing of environmental information, funding of
independent monitoring audit and investigation of complaints; to continue to
investigate derogations of water supplies, to clarify the arbitration timetable and to
undertake any additional monitoring required by the MPA or other regulators
expressed through the Technical Liaison Group. It has been pointed out to the
operator that commitments regarding derogation of water supplies would also need
to bind subsequent landowners to overcome fears expressed by the community
about what might happen at the end of the mining operation.

6.144 If a new planning permission is granted, it will also be necessary for the operator to
agree that only the new consent can be implemented and not to object to any
modification or prohibition order to remove the original underlying consent.

6.145 The outline of this Agreement is attached to this report as Appendix (llI).
7. Reasons for Recommendation/Alternatives Options Considered

7.1 The Committee has the option of approving, deferring or refusing this planning
application.

7.2 The existing permission will continue to run until 2021 and so a refusal would not
preclude the operation from carrying on until that date, but it would do so without a
suite of new, enforceable and compliant conditions. It would also lend a considerable
amount of uncertainty to the future of the project which may have a consequential
impact on employment and the local economy. The Devon Minerals Plan, which is
due to be adopted in February 2017 and therefore carries significant weight, includes

Page 37



Agenda Item 6

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

a presumption in Policy M9 for permission to be granted for proposals that enable
completion of the approved mine development.

A number of objectors have requested that this decision is deferred until such time as
the existing issues are resolved. This is understandable, but although the regulators
are working together and will continue to do so, to try to resolve the current problems,
the only way to achieve revised conditions on noise and blasting in particular would
be the issuing of a new consent without which the applicant could merely resort to
the existing consent and with the existing conditions.

The resolution of some of the issues will require more time and the deferral of this
application would not result in an immediate improvement.

Planning Balance

Paragraph 144 of the NPPF affords great weight to the benefits of Mineral Extraction
including to the economy but goes on to say that in granting permission there should
be no unacceptable adverse impacts on the natural and historic environment, human
health or aviation safety, and take into account the cumulative effect of multiple
impacts from individual sites and/or from a number of sites in a locality. It goes on to
say that unavoidable noise, dust and particle emissions and blasting vibrations
should be controlled, mitigated or removed at source and to establish appropriate
noise levels for extraction in proximity to noise sensitive properties.

It has to be acknowledged that there are general amenity impacts on the surrounding
communities and it is clear that the operation of the mine has had an adverse impact
on some individuals and properties. Due to the scale of the operation some impacts
are unavoidable and have to be balanced against the importance of economic
prosperity and meaningful employment for the health and wellbeing of local people
and what this application represents in that regard. This is a point that was also
made by the Director of Public Health.

The operator has provided considerable information to explain the impacts of the
current and permitted operations on the most proximate residential properties and
their contention is that they can, through operating practices, keep the impacts to a
minimum whilst enabling them to operate the mine.

The site has already almost reached its maximum physical extent and so the
extension of the life of the site would increase the duration of impacts on landscape
and amenity post 2021 but it is anticipated that by 2021 the existing issues of for
example Low Frequency Noise would have been dealt with by the permit, and the
impacts of blasting and noise would be attenuated to some degree by the deepening
of the mine over the next 5 years. Granting consent for an extension to the life of the
mine would not therefore make any significant difference to the existing situation
except for the opportunity for the conditions and legal agreements to be amended
and updated.

In terms of what is a reasonable impact from a large mining operation, the balance
would indicate that the controls, especially with new and more enforceable conditions
would be a reasonable check on the impacts especially where there are built in
requirements for monitoring and review but would not present an undue burden on
the operator which would prevent them from implementing their permitted consent
bearing in mind that the location of the existing tungsten ore deposit cannot be
moved.

Page 38



7.10

7.11

712

713

Agenda Iltem 6

It is clear that there are remaining planning issues that need to be worked on with
relation to impacts on the local community especially with relation to noise, blasting
and water supplies.

The original 35 year project would have ended in 2021 but the delay in commencing
would mean that if the total time for the original project was taken, the end date
would naturally be 2049. The proposal therefore reduces the overall period of
disturbance from 35 years to 22 and it may also be borne in mind that had this
project gone through the Environment Act Schedule 13 Review it is very likely that
the end date would have been set to 2042 in line with the other long term mineral
operations in the County. In any case the issue of a new consent would mean that
the new permission would be subject to a 15 year review of conditions under sch. 14
of the Environment Act 1995.

In conclusion, this represents an opportunity to issue a revised and up to date
permission with compliant conditions that are not duplicated by other consent
regimes; and an updated legal undertaking which offers enhanced and updated
environmental monitoring and controls that could not be the subject of planning
conditions.

It is recommended that following the receipt of the Unilateral Undertaking:

(i) Condition 2 of the existing permission be varied to the extend the life of the
operation for a further 15 years to 5 June 2036;
(i) Condition 13 of the existing permission requiring the weekend and Bank

Holiday shut down of the primary crusher is removed and;
(iii) The schedule of revised Conditions attached as Appendix Il are attached to
the re-issued consent.

Dave Black
Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment

Electoral Division: Bickleigh & Wembury

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Sue Penaluna

Room No: AB2, Lucombe House, County Hall

Tel No: 01392 383000

Background Paper Date File Ref.
Casework File 7 December 2015 DCC/3823/2015
sp091116dma

sc/cr/variation of conditions drakelands mine

04 141116

Page 39



Agenda Iltem 6

Location Plan

=

=

s
&
b

Purps Em /g Y

P _ . in{tlav;*ﬁWnrklnlz_'js ﬁ;‘?
: g

" e ] . " X RS
R L . S RV, N
\ 3
= BN er ) X I'. =t o
| et 3 ! B
‘:"1|Ik A I'. J f -

"

-,
S Taminli
ke M 4

Centre of Mine
In' Vel S
‘r?“uhl;f_rlﬂ,iel

o

mler ko

= id) S
: il G 7
Hemerddr Ball
i

T

Page 40



Agenda Iltem 6

Site Plan

Wl Tailings facility

Tory Pond

Page 41



Agenda Item 6

Appendix |
To PTE/16/59

Planning Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Guidance: Minerals

Devon County Minerals Local Plan

Policy MP1

Policy MP2

Policy MP10
Policy MP11
Policy MP12
Policy MP14
Policy MP41
Policy MP45
Policy MP47
Policy MP50
Policy MP56
Policy MP57

International designations

Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty and effect on National Parks
Maintenance of the County’s nature conservation resource
Environmentally sensitive sites not having statutory designation
Protected Species

Mineral Consultation Areas

Development Control Considerations

Water resource protection

Flood Risk and Floodplains

Removal of Permitted Development rights

Restoration

Securing effective restoration

Devon Minerals Plan (Proposed Adoption version)

Policy M1

Policy M9

Policy M16
Policy M17
Policy M18
Policy M19
Policy M20
Policy M21
Policy M23
Policy M24
Policy M26
Policy M27

Spatial Strategy
Development of Drakelands Mine
Green Infrastructure
Biodiversity and Geodiversity
Landscape and Visual Impact
The Historic Environment
Sustainable Design

Natural Resources

Quality of Life

Flooding

Cumulative Effects
Restoration and Aftercare

South Hams Core Strategy 2006

Policy CS9
Policy CS10

Landscape and the Historic Environment
Nature Conservation

South Hams Development Policies DPD 2010

Policy DP2
Policy DP3
Policy DP5
Policy DP15

Landscape Character

Residential Amenity

Biodiversity and Geological Conservation
Development in the Countryside

Page 42



oy obed

Appendix I
To PTE/16/59

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

Condition 1

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not
later than 7 years from the date of this permission. Development for the
purposes of these conditions shall not include any work carried out
pursuant to Condition 10(g).

Development has commenced.
Condition no longer necessary and so Fails NPPF test.
Recommend Condition Deleted.

Condition 2

Application for approval of any reserved matter must be made not later
than 5 years from the date of this permission excepting that in respect of
those reserved matters set out in Condition 10(i), (j) and (k), the period
shall be 10 years.

Condition not necessary as all “reserved matters” required under this condition and Condition 10
were submitted and agreed before development commenced.
Recommend Condition Deleted.

Condition 3

All mineral working and tipping shall cease by 5 June 2021 after which
date the only operations permitted on site shall be those essential to
achieve restoration in accordance with the approved schemes or
aftercare regime and the removal of plant, buildings and roads which
shall be completed and the land restored to the satisfaction of the MPA
within 3 years of the cessation of operations.

Comment Condition for formal determination

The proposed condition clarifies the end date of the permission, gives certainty regarding the end of
tipping and ensures the effective restoration of the site in accordance with Devon County Minerals
Local Plan Policy MP41.

Condition 1 Duration

The winning, working and processing of mineral and the tipping of mine waste shall cease
by 5 June 2036 after which date all buildings, plant, machinery and roads shall be removed
and the mine, plant site and mine waste facility restored in accordance with schemes
required under conditions [8 &19] within 3 years of the cessation of operations.

Condition 2 (New) Approved Documents

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in compliance with the details
contained in the following plans and drawings except insofar as may otherwise be required
under the terms of any other condition set out in this Decision Notice.

a) GRES Drawing WHP 100-L-001 (Rev. H) Plant and Infrastructure Layout Plan

b) GRES Drawing WHP 100-L-018(Rev. C) Wet Plant external view elevations

c) Blackwell Drawing CAB-4D-691 (2.5m contours showing current status of Drakelands
Mine as of July 2016)

d) Blackwell Drawing CAB-4D-690 (2.5m contours at June 2021

e) Blackwell Drawing CAB-4D-689 (2.5m contours showing Final extent of Drakelands
Mine)

f) SLR Drawing 427.01939.00023.HVA..203 (MWF to 177m AOD)

dg) SLR Drawing 427.01939.00023.HVA.204 (MWF to 177m AOD)

h) SLR Drawing 427.01939.00023.HVA.210( MWF to 190mAOD)

i) SLR Drawing 427.01939.00023.HVA.211( MWF to 195mAOD)

j)  SLR Drawing 427.01939.00023.HVA.215 ( MWF to 215mAOQOD)

k) SLR Drawing 427.01939.00023.HVA.216 ( (Plan of Stage 9 Closure Tailings at 198m AOD)

1) 427.01939.000.HVA.301 (Rev FO) cross section through Mine Waste Facility.

9 wa)| epuaby



v abed

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

m) 9977-0100 (Lee Moor Road) (S.38 approved drawings)

n) MH21447-1 to MH-21447-3 (planting areas)

o) Coffey Drawing MWP00494AE-DD-37 (RevC) Lower Hooksburry Diversion Channel
Details

p) GRES Drawing WHP 391-L-004 (Rev. A) Smallhanger Pond and Pump Location
arrangement plan and elevation

q) Blackwell Drawing CAB-4D-530 Hemerdon Surface Water — Tailings Network (Sheets 1-
3)

r) Michel Hughes Associates Drawings MHA 21447-1 to MHA 21447-3 showing Tree
Planting and Biodiversity Enhancement Zones

s) Craddy Pitchers Davidson Drawing 9977-0100 (Rev. G) Overall Road Plan

t) Landscape Restoration Concept Plan

Condition 4

There shall be no commencement of the construction of the mine access
road, the haul road or any of the buildings on the mine site until such
time as the link road between Newnham Park and West Park Hill is
complete and open for public use.

Comment

The road is already built and adopted as public highway. Details of the road are included within the
scope of new condition in line 4 above.

Condition is not necessary. Under the NPPF tests.

Recommend Condition is Deleted.

Condition 5

No development shall be carried out which affects archaeological sites
identified in the work programme referred to in Condition 6 until those
sites have been investigated and recorded in accordance with that
programme.

Comment

The archaeological investigation as set out in the original Archaeological Framework Document has
been completed and the only work remaining is to carry out the post excavation tasks including
publication. If everything had been completed this condition would have been unnecessary but it
will serve to ensure that the remaining work is carried out as originally envisaged.

Condition 3 (New) Archaeology

A revised Archaeological Framework Document, setting out the post-excavation tasks still
to be undertaken, must be submitted for approval by the Planning Authority within six
months of the consent being granted approval by the Mineral Planning Authority. The post-
excavation tasks include assessment and analysis of the results of the fieldwork, the
publication and dissemination of the results of the archaeological investigations, and the
archive creation and deposition. The revised Archaeological Framework Document shall
include a timetable for the completion of these tasks.

Condition 6

The archaeological work shall be undertaken in accordance with the
approved Archaeological Work Programme dated November 1992, as
revised by the Archaeological Framework Document submitted April
2008 and as updated in February 2009, and in accordance with the
requirements of the Written Schemes of Investigation required by the
Archaeological Framework Document as agreed with the Mineral
Planning Authority.

Comment
See above — would be replaced by new condition 3 (line 6) to ensure remaining works are
undertaken.

Recommend old Condition 6 is Deleted.

Condition 7
The screening bund constructed around the mineral excavation area
shall be retained throughout the life of the permitted operations and

Comment
The condition is necessary to ensure that the bunds are not removed during the development
period as they are important in terms of landscape and noise screening. The MPA would retain the

9 wa)| epuaby



Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

shall, if required in writing by the Mineral Planning authority, be removed
at the cessation of extraction operations and the site restored in
accordance with a scheme to be agreed with the Mineral Planning
Authority.

power to have them removed and an alternative restoration proposed but In all likelihood they will
be established as wooded features and natural Green Infrastructure Links.
Recommend that old Condition 7 be deleted and replaced by new Condition 4

Condition 4 (New): Peripheral Screening

The existing screening bunds shall be retained throughout the life of the permitted
operations as currently constructed unless alterations have been previously agreed in
writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. On cessation of the approved development the
bunds shall, if required in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority, be removed and the site
restored in accordance with a scheme and timetable to be agreed with the Mineral Planning
Authority. Such scheme shall be submitted within 3 months of the notification provided by
the Mineral Planning Authority under this condition.

Gy abed

landscaping and restoration shall be undertaken in accordance with the
Restoration Concept and the detailed annual restoration, land and water
management and landscape review plans for specific areas of land

9 Condition 8 Comment
The areas of land outlined in black on drawing HEM U.U.2 shall be This planting is complete and is shown on plans MHA-21447-1 to MHA-21447-3 contained in
planted with a mixture of broadleaved trees and shrubs in the first Appendix B to the Regulation 22 response. These drawings form part of the list of approved
planting season following the commencement of the mine access road. documents captured by the new Condition 2(line 4)
This planting shall be carried out in accordance with a scheme which As the planting has been implemented the Condition is no longer necessary but the requirement to
shall have been previously submitted to and approved in writing by the maintain the woodland and the need for aftercare would be picked up in new condition on
Mineral Planning Authority and shall be retained and managed in Aftercare.
accordance with an approved scheme of management and aftercare for
the life of the mine working. Recommend old Condition 8 is Deleted and replaced by New Aftercare Condition [8] line 33]
10 | Condition 9 Comment
No development shall take place within the Site for Mineral Processing The condition is not necessary as the work has been carried out and so is unnecessary under the
Plant and Buildings, Haul Road and Landscaping (illustrated on Plan No. | NPPF tests.
1.0) until an adequate road access to the processing plant with a proper
standard of visibility has been formed and connected to the Lee Moor Recommend old Condition 9 is Deleted.
Road in a position and manner to be agreed with the Mineral Planning
Authority.
11 Condition 10 (Modified to replace 10b) Comment
No development shall commence until the following details have been All of Condition 10 required the submission of pre-commencement information.
submitted to and approved by the Mineral Planning Authority:- All such information was submitted and approved in the early 1990’s or re-submitted prior to the
commencement of mining. The Condition is therefore no longer necessary and the individual
schemes are reiterated elsewhere in the consent or are discharged.
Recommend old Condition 10 is Deleted.
12 | 10(a) a scheme to dispose of all waste arising from the winning and Comment
working, including the formation of the tip and means of enclosure, the The drawings submitted with the application indicate the originally permitted Mine waste Facility
levels of compaction of waste material, and the phased development of and Tip Profiles including cross sections. These can now be referred to in Condition 2 and this
the waste disposal scheme. condition is no longer necessary.
Recommend old Condition 10a is Deleted.
13 | 10(b) Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the MPA, phased Comment

Proposed new conditions on restoration and aftercare, relate to the necessity to submit reviews of
the restoration progress on 31 April each year. The proposed condition specifies that the proposals
within the review should be implemented and the timescales will be in the annual review schemes.

9 wa)| epuaby



Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

which shall have been previously submitted to and approved in writing
by the MPA as a part of the annual review of restoration*

Replace as Proposed New Conditions [19 &20] (see Below) Lines 57 & 58

o abed

14 | 10(c) the design and layout of the “Site for Mineral Processing Plant and | Comment
Buildings, Haul Road and Landscaping” identified on Plan No. 1.0, The application contains drawings showing the existing mine plant , levels and layout of the
including the siting and relative levels of the plant and buildings, the existing processing area.
design of the plant and buildings, their external appearance, and colour, | The plant which has been built is some 30% smaller than that which was originally approved and
type and texture of all external materials and finishes and means of the drawings accompanying this consent show the “as built plant”.
drainage thereof, the means of vehicular and pedestrian access to the
plant and buildings, including the provision of a right-turning facility at The Condition is no longer necessary and as such is not NPPF compliant.
the junction of the access road with the Newnham/Lee Moor Road, the
provision to be made within the site for car parking, circulation and Recommend Condition 10(part c) is Deleted (reference to the approved drawings WHP 100 L
parking of goods vehicles and mobile plant and means of enclosure; 001H and WHP 100 L 018C for the as built plant be incorporated into Condition 2).
15 | 10(d) the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials, drainage methods Comment
of construction and landscaping of:- The Scheme required by 10d was discharged and the road is under construction in accordance
(i) the proposed diversion of the existing Newnham/Lee Moor classified with the approved drawings which are referred to in new Condition 2 (line 4). The Condition is no
County road between OS grid reference points SX 561588 and SX longer necessary
564606; together with the Portworthy Diversion, and the new access to
Bude Farm and the access road to the processing plant illustrated on Recommend Condition (part d) is Deleted
Plan No. 1.0.
(i) the access road from Newnham/Lee Moor Road to the processing
plant;
(iii) Footpath and Bridleway diversions as illustrated on Plan No. 9.2
(Drawing No. H-PS-2500-84-048)
16 | 10(e) The means of enclosure of the pit, and the construction of bunds Comment
around it The bund is built is covered by proposed Condition 4 and can be dispensed with.
Recommend Condition (part e) is Deleted.
17 | 10(f) A scheme for the protection of water supplies, local ponds, and Comment

quality of water-courses affected by the proposed development and for
the protection of land drainage in the site vicinity, including:-

(i) permanent and temporary run-off interception and peripheral leats;
(ii) a permanent settling balancing pool between the area selected for
the disposal of mining waste and the Tory Brook, together with such
other permanent or temporary settling balancing pools as may be
required;

(iii) arrangements for the discharge of excess water from any permanent
or temporary balancing pond and/or tailings lagoon;

(iv) arrangements for the interception of drainage from mining
processing and under-tip areas;

(v) provision for the prevention of contamination of water courses

(vi) the culverting and realignment of water courses affected by any
operations;

(vii) the means of providing adequate compensatory flows to the
Smallhanger Brook during development (including any period of

The response from the Environment Agency made it clear that there needed to be a
comprehensive plan for the surface water management and flood protection in the Smallhanger
Valley. This was also the opportunity to ensure that the surface water management scheme for the
Mine Waste Facility was depicted on an up to date drawing as the Environmental Permit has led to
some small changes from the original permitted scheme.

Condition 5 (New) Drainage

(i) Water supplies, local ponds, the quality of water-courses affected by the proposed
development and land drainage in the vicinity of the site shall be protected for the
duration of the approved operations in accordance with drawing CAB-4D-530 and the
surface water management plan WTO-ENV-PR-124 unless otherwise agreed in writing
with the MPA.

(ii) Within 6 months of the date of this permission, the applicant shall submit a detailed
scheme for the augmentation of flows in the Smallhanger Brook to include details of
the proposed operation of the scheme, the impact on flows and biodiversity in the
Smallhanger Brook along with proposals for monitoring impacts and remediation for

9 wa)| epuaby



/v obed

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

temporary cessation) and for a period not exceeding five years from the
date of cessation as defined in Conditions 3 and 45;

(viii) the means of providing adequate compensatory water supply to
properties should their present supply be adversely affected by the
development.

the life of the site and throughout the aftercare period;

(iii) Within 6 months of the date of this permission the applicant shall submit a detailed
surface water and flood mitigation and management scheme for the Smallhanger
catchment for the life of the mine and the restoration phase; such scheme shall include
details of the construction and management of the Claymoor Ponds

18 | 10 (g) a work programme providing for comprehensive archaeological Comment
investigation and recording within the area to which this permission The “tail” of the previous archaeology condition will be covered by proposed new Condition 3
relates before and during the course of development;
Recommend Condition (part g) is Deleted and replace with new Condition 3 as the new
drawings also depict the safeguarding areas.
19 | 10 (h) the methods to be adopted for the safeguarding of archaeological | Comment
sites within the permission area, but not directly affected by the No longer necessary as covered by new Condition 3. The safeguarded areas will also be indicated
development; on the approved drawings.
Recommend Condition (part h) is Deleted and replace with new Condition 3
20 10 (i) The, design, layout and access arrangements to any temporary Comment
storage and construction compounds for the laying of the pipeline Condition discharged, pipeline is completed to the pump station. Condition no longer required and
between the Process Plant and Plymouth City boundary (shown on Plan | therefore not NPPF compliant.
No. 1.2) Recommend Condition (part i) is Deleted
21 10 (j) a scheme for the restoration of the land along the route of the Comment
pipeline including, inter alia, any temporary storage and construction Condition discharged, pipeline is completed and route is restored.
compounds, hedgebanks and watercourses. Recommend Condition (part j) is Deleted
22 | 10 (k) a scheme for the protection of land drainage along the route of the | Comment
pipeline together with proposals for any temporary realignment of Condition discharged, pipeline is completed and route is restored.
watercourses necessary to undertake those operations Recommend Condition (part k) is Deleted
23 | Condition 11 Comment

No building or engineering operations which give rise to noise and dust
outside the site, prior to the winning and working of minerals, shall be
carried out:-

(i) other than during the period between 0730 and 1930 hours on
Mondays to Fridays and 0730 to 1800 hours on Saturdays; and

(ii) at any time on Sundays nor on the following Public Holidays

(a) New Years Day

(b) Good Friday

(c) Easter Monday

(d) May Day Holiday

(e) Spring Bank Holiday

(f) Summer Bank Holiday

(g)Christmas Day

(h) Boxing Day

(i) Such other Public Holidays as may subsequently be declared;
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Mineral Planning Authority.

This was a pre commencement condition that applied only to the construction of the mine prior to
winning and working commencing on site and so should be deleted.

The hours of operation for certain activities are controlled in the proposed conditions on blasting,
drilling and noise.

9 wa)| epuaby



Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

No drilling prior to blasting shall take place other than between 0700 and
1900 hours on weekdays until the first 10 metre bench in the pit has
been completed, nor at any time on Sundays and on the Public Holidays
set out in Condition 11 (ii)

24 | Condition 12 Comment
No loading and transporting of waste from the processing plant, or from The Operator states that the processing plant and its activities have an Environmental Permit which
the pit to the waste disposal area shall be carried out:- does not restrict its hours of operation.
(i) other than between 0600 and 2200 hours on Mondays to Fridays, and | The transportation of materials from the Processing Plant to the MWF has not to date led to any
between 0600 and 1800 hours on Saturdays; and verified noise complaints and nor has the removal of as dug material from the pit direct to the MWF
(ii) at any time on Sundays nor on the Public Holidays set out in but these are mining operations not controlled by the EP and should be the subject of a condition.
Condition 11(ii).
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Mineral Planning Authority. It is recommended that there is a single condition controlling all specific time related activities (see
line 26).
25 | Condition 13 Comment: Condition for formal determination
No primary crushing shall take place between:- The MPA has permitted the operator to use the primary crusher for the same period of time that the
(i) 1800 hours on Saturdays and 0600 hours on Mondays; and secondary processing plant is entitled to operate as there has been no demonstrated noise issue
(i) 2200 hours on the day preceding the Public Holiday set out in from this piece of equipment which is located in a building constructed within a “pocket” in the side
Condition 11(ii) and 0600 hours on the next ordinary day; of the valley. There have been concerns raised about reversing alarms on the ROM pad from
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Mineral Planning Authority. where the material is loaded into the crusher and these have been addressed by the operator.
The discussion about this condition which has applied to have removed by the Operator is set out
U in the Committee Report.
g Recommend Condition 13 is Deleted and the noise from the Primary Crusher be controlled
D by the Environmental Permit and the overarching noise condition. This would provide an
enforceable condition without duplicating or contradicting the Environmental Permit as
g recommended by the NPPF.
26 | Condition 14 Comment

It is proposed that one condition should control all of those processes to be time or restricted by

time or day restricted.

New Condition [6] Hours of Operation

The operations specified below shall be carried out only during the following hours:

(i) No drilling shall take place on Saturdays (until the bench on which drilling is to take
place is at least 10m below the original ground level OR at 170m AOD whichever is
the lower at the limit of excavation between the position of the drill rig and the
nearest occupied property in the area of the pit indicated on drawing CAB-4D-252-
JB. The operator shall advise the Mineral Planning Authority in writing when this
situation has been attained for each occupied property)

(i) There shall be no drilling at any time on Sundays and on bank or public holidays,
which shall be defined as: (a) New Year’s Day (b) Good Friday (c) Easter Monday (d)
May Day Holiday (e) Spring Bank Holiday (f) August Bank Holiday (g) Christmas Day
and (h) Boxing Day.

(iii) No loading and transporting of mine waste from the processing plant, or from the
pit to the mine waste facility shall be carried out other than between 0600 and 2200
hours.

(iv) With the exception of refuelling and movement of vehicles between 0600 and 0700.

there shall be no mining operations in the pit between the hours of 2200 and 0700.

9 wa)| epuaby



61 abed

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

27 | Condition 15 Comment
No soil stripping shall commence until details of the storage areas for top | The original condition was discharged. Insofar as it required the submission of a scheme and
soil and sub-soil have been submitted to and approved by the Mineral therefore is no longer necessary as specified by the NPPF.
Planning Authority. The proposed new condition would ensure that the approved scheme is implemented through the
life of the site and the soils are properly looked after.
It is recommended that the soil handling schemes required by Conditions 15 & 16 are
replaced by:
Proposed Condition 7 (Amended) Soil Management
The handling of all soils either in advance of mineral extraction or as part of the restoration
of the mineral workings, plant site or mine waste facility shall be in accordance with the Site
Clearance and Topsoil Management scheme Ref 421.01939.00010 dated August 2013.
No top soil or sub-soil arising from the stripping operations shall be removed from the site
without the prior approval in writing of the Mineral Planning Authority.
28 | Condition 16 Comment
No top soil or sub-soil arising from the stripping operations shall be This requirement can be incorporated into a single condition relating to soil handling.
removed from the site without the prior approval in writing of the Mineral | Recommend Condition 16 is Deleted and incorporated into New condition 7
Planning Authority.
29 | Condition 17 Comment
The restoration scheme referred to in Condition 10 (j) shall be carried The construction works have been completed and the land restored so there is no need for this
out, unless otherwise agreed in writing, within six months of the condition which fails the NPPF teas as not “necessary”
completion of the construction of the pipeline to the satisfaction of the Recommend Condition 17 is Deleted
Mineral Planning Authority.
30 | Condition 18 Comment
No tipping of mineral waste shall be undertaken until details of the This condition was discharged, however it, along with others needs to be re-cast to relate the
proposed modified restoration objective for the area identified in Plan 4.0 | restoration to the approved schemes and management plans. It can now be replaced with a
for restoration have been agreed with the MPA. Such details shall requirement to implement the phased indicative restoration plans based on this scheme and the
specify the mechanisms for achieving the target for restored ground restoration concept but to include all the works already carried out. This would enable the planning
cover and the treatment and placement of substrate and soils as set out | consent to reflect the phasing as set out in the Environmental Permit.
in the Restoration Concept. Recommend Condition 18 is Deleted and replaced by New Conditions [19 & 20]. (Lines
57&58)
31 | Condition 19 Comment
No tipping shall commence on the second or any subsequent phase The requirements of this condition and those relating to phased restoration can be merged into a
until:- new condition reflecting the approved restoration concept which was set out in the Unilateral
(a) details of the tipping, restoration, landscaping, after-use and Undertaking which also builds in monitoring and annual review.
aftercare, of that phase have been submitted to and approved by the
Mineral Planning Authority; and Recommend Condition 19 is Deleted and replaced by New Conditions [19 & 20]. (Lines
(b) the tipping, restoration and landscaping in the preceding phase has 57&58)
been commenced in accordance with the approved details
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority.
32 | Condition 20 Comment

The landscaping and related water pollution control works of each phase
of the waste disposal scheme shall be completed within two years from

These requirements can be included in the proposed new restoration condition.

9 wa)| epuaby



Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

the commencement of the phase immediately following unless otherwise
agreed in writing. Development shall cease if within two years after the
two year period referred to or such other period as may be agreed in
writing with the Mineral Planning Authority such landscaping and
pollution control works have not been carried out to the satisfaction of

Recommend Condition 20 is Deleted and replaced by New Conditions 19 & 20]. (Lines
57&58)

0G abed

that Authority.
33 | Condition 21 Comment

Any tree, shrub, area of seeding or translocated species planted in It is proposed that this condition is re-cast to relate to the phasing of works which is a clearer

accordance with the approved submitted details shall be retained and and more precise wording in terms of which areas can be signed off out of aftercare.

managed to the satisfaction of the Mineral Planning Authority for the Therefore the condition is enforceable, precise and reasonable in terms of the NPPF tests. It is

minimum aftercare period of 10 years from the approval of the works. necessary to ensure that landscape restoration is maintained and the applicant has offered a 10

Any planting which fails due to death, disease or inadequate year period which is double that suggested by the NPPF and whilst not compliant with the NPPF

management shall be replaced or substituted in accordance with a the offer makes it reasonable and is secured additionally by the Unilateral Undertaking.

scheme which addresses and mitigates the original causes of failure to

be agreed with the Mineral Planning Authority and the replacement or Recommend Condition 21 is Deleted and replaced by New Condition 8.

substitution shall be carried out in the planting season immediately

following any such occurrence. Proposed Condition 8 (New)
Aftercare
Areas of Woodland
(i)All areas of woodland planting undertaken in accordance with the scheme approved on
24/02/2014 shall be retained and managed for the duration of the approved operations
(ii)Any tree, shrub, area of seeding or translocated species planted in accordance with the
approved submitted details shall be retained and managed in accordance with the approved
scheme for the minimum aftercare period of 10 years from the approval of the works. Any
planting which fails due to death, disease or inadequate management shall be replaced or
substituted in accordance with a scheme which addresses and mitigates the original causes
of failure to be agreed with the Mineral Planning Authority and the replacement or
substitution shall be carried out in the planting season immediately following any such
occurrence.
Other Areas
(iv) Areas of restored land shall be manged for a period of ten years following the
completion of restoration in accordance with aftercare schemes which shall be submitted
annually for areas which have passed into permanent restoration in accordance with the
approved submitted restoration schemes and shall specify such steps as necessary to bring
the land to the required standard of restoration and the periods during which such steps are
to be taken.

34 | Condition 22 Comment

22(a) Aftercare schemes shall be submitted annually for areas which
have passed into permanent restoration in accordance with the
approved submitted restoration schemes and shall specify such steps
necessary to bring the land to the required standard of restoration and

The requirements have been re-cast to better reflect the requirements of the Unilateral Undertaking
and to bring all of the aftercare requirements into one condition.

Recommend Condition 22 is Deleted and merged into New Condition 8. (See line 33)

9 wa)| epuaby



TS abed

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

the periods during which such steps are to be taken.
22(b) The steps referred to in the aftercare schemes shall be carried out
for a total period not exceeding 10 years.

35 | Condition 23 Comment
The diverted Newnham/Lee Moor Road shall have a minimum This road is now under construction and predicted to be completed by early 2017. The road is
carriageway width of 6.75 metres. being constructed in accordance with a set of drawings approved by the Highway Authority.
It is recommended that these approved drawings be referenced in condition 2 and that this
Condition be deleted as it is no longer necessary.
Recommend Condition 23 is Deleted and the approved highway drawings be referred to in
Condition 2.
36 | Condition 24 Comment
No operations including the deposit of excavated or construction waste This condition is no longer required as the new road will be completed in January 2017. In any case
shall be undertaken to the west of the existing classified County road it was necessary to install some emergency water management structures on the west of the
within the Area for Disposal of Mining Waste and Landscaping, identified | existing road and much of the area is used as a construction compound for the new road under
on Plan No. 1.0, until the diverted Newnham/Lee Moor Road has been construction.
constructed in accordance with the approved submitted details; unless
as otherwise agreed in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. Recommend Condition 24 is Deleted and the approved highway/water management
drawings be referred to in Condition 2.
37 | Condition 25 Comment

The number of heavy goods vehicles transporting waste or secondary
aggregate leaving the site shall not exceed 50 in any one day and the
total tonnage of secondary aggregate transported shall not exceed 4000
tonnes in any week or 150,000 tonnes in any calendar year without the
prior permission in writing of the Mineral Planning Authority.

Condition unaltered except for being merged as a single new condition with previous Condition 27
to deal with all matters of ancillary import/export under a single condition.

This condition is reasonable as any higher levels of output/input may have consequences for the
primary route network and the A38 junctions in Plymouth.

Recommend Condition 25 is Deleted and merged with previous condition 27 into Proposed
Condition 9.

Proposed Condition 9 (Materials importation/exportation)

No waste other than that required to be transported to a suitably licensed facility and
otherwise unable to be disposed within the site shall be transported from the site.

The number of heavy goods vehicles transporting waste (that is not permitted to be
disposed within the Mine Waste Facility) or secondary aggregate leaving the site shall not
exceed 50 in any one day and the total tonnage of secondary aggregate transported shall
not exceed 4,000 tonnes in any week or 150,000 tonnes in any calendar year without the
prior permission in writing of the Mineral Planning Authority.

There shall be no importation of waste materials to the site unless they are specifically
required for restoration purposes as identified in the annual restoration proposals and the
amount previously agreed by the Mineral Planning Authority.

The operator shall provide to the Mineral Planning Authority details of the number of HGVs
leaving the site carrying secondary aggregates or mineral waste over a 12 month period.

9 wa)| epuaby



2S abed

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

38 | Condition 26 Comment
No waste or secondary aggregate shall leave the site until the Newnham | The road referred to in the condition is open; condition no longer necessary and so fails the NPPF
Road to West Park link road has been constructed and adopted in test.
accordance with the approved submitted details and the new access on
to the Lee Moor to Newnham Road has been constructed in accordance | Recommend Condition 26 is Deleted.
with the approved submitted details
39 | Condition 27 Comment
No waste other than that required to be transported to a suitably Recommend Condition 27 is Deleted and merged with previous condition 25 into Proposed
licensed facility and otherwise unable to be disposed within the site shall | Condition 9.
be transported from the site. (See line 37)
40 | Condition 28 Comment

The developer shall adopt the best practical means to minimise the
levels of noise arising from the development. The A-weighted sound
level caused by any or all plant, equipment and mining operations within
the site, shall not exceed the following limits when measured on a
precision Grade 1 sound level meter at a distance of 1 metre outside
any building used for human habitation.
28 (a) The equivalent continuous A-weighted sound level measured over
any one-hour period when measured on a precision Grade 1 sound level
meter set to fast response shall not exceed:-
(i) 50dB(A) LAeq 1 hour during the times of 0700 to 1900 hours on
Mondays to Saturdays inclusive:
(i) 45dB(A) LAeq 1 hour during the times of 1900 to 2200 hours, and
0600 to 0700 hours on Mondays to Saturdays inclusive, excluding the
Public Holidays set out in Condition 12(ii), when 40dB(A) LAeq 1 hour
shall not be exceeded; and
(iii) 40dB(A) LAeq 1 hour at any other time
28 (b) when measured on a precision Grade 1 sound level meter set to
the “fast response” the limits set out in (a) above shall not be exceeded
for more than three minutes in any one hour period by more than:-

(i) 10dB(A) LAeq 1 hour between 0600 hours and 2200 hours;
(ii) 7dB(A) LAeq 1 hour between 2200 hours and 0600 hours
28 (c) If the sound measured within the monitoring period contains any
continuous definite distinguishable note (whine, hiss, screech, squeal,
hum, etc.) or if there are significant irregularities in the noise including
impulsive irregularities such as bangs, clinks, clatters or thumps, then
5dB(A) LAeq 1 hour shall be added to the measured sound level prior to
determining whether the limits set out in (a) and (b) above are being
complied with.
28 (d) Any building used for human habitation and owned by the
developer or included in the Schedule of Properties contained in the
Section 52* Agreement for which the developer will make offers to
purchase, or covered by tenant compensation provisions, shall not fall

The previous condition does not comply with the guidance in the NPPF or in the Minerals Practice
Guidance with regard to measurement type or levels. It is recommended that a new condition along
with a noise management and mitigation and complaints scheme be attached to any new
permission to achieve an enforceable condition.

Proposed Condition 10 (New)
Noise levels arising from the development shall not exceed the following limits at any noise
sensitive property:

(i) Between the hours of 0700 and 1900 (daytime) Monday to Saturday 50 dBLAeq. 1
hour free field
(i) Between the hours of 1900 and 2200 (evening) Monday to Saturday 45dBLAeq. 1

hour free field.

(iii) Between the hours of 2200 and 0700 (night-time) 42 dBLAeq. 1 hour free field;

(iv) Between 0700 and 2200 on Sunday or on any Bank or Public Holiday (as defined by
Condition [Line 26] 45 dBLAeq. 1 hour free field.

The limits stated above, apply when measured on a Type 1 sound level meter sited at least
3.5 metres from any reflective surface (other than the ground) and 1.2 — 1.5m above the
ground, in the garden amenity space of any lawfully existing residential premises.

Irrespective of the noise limits specified above the applicant should take all reasonable
steps to minimise noise from the site especially noise containing significant tonal elements
or peak and impulsive noise. Steps to reduce noise of this nature should be detailed in the
noise management mitigation and monitoring scheme required by condition ** below.

Proposed NEW Condition [TBC]

(i) The measurement and management of noise from this operation shall be carried out in
accordance with a detailed noise management, mitigation and monitoring scheme which
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the MPA within 3 months of the date of this
permission. Once approved the development shall be carried out in accordance with the
proposals set out in this or any subsequent scheme as may have been submitted to and
approved by the MPA.

9 wa)| epuaby



G abed

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

within the scope of this condition.

Proposed NEW Condition [TBC]

Before the commencement of overburden removal in that area of Phase 2 of the pit as
shown on Plan CAB-4D-252-JB; the operator shall notify the MPA in writing of the
commencement of such works.

Until such time as the operator has constructed a bench at the level of 170m AOD within this
part of the pit the daytime noise levels on Monday to Friday between 0700 and 1900 shall be
53dB, 1 Hour Free field These works shall not commence until a detailed management and
mitigation scheme for this period of the development has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the MPA.

Proposed New Condition (TBC)

Vehicles operating within the site and under the control of Wolf Minerals or its contractors
shall be equipped with broadband or “white noise” reversing alarms. These shall be the only
reversing alarms used on the site unless for reasons of health and safety or as otherwise
agreed in writing by the MPA

41 | Condition 29 Comment
The noise limits referred to in Condition 28 may be exceeded only where | Standard condition to enable response to emergencies and is still appropriate.
emergency action is essential to the safety of the works, employees of Recommend Condition 29 is retained and re-numbered as New Condition [TBC].
the works, or members of the public. The developer shall record each
occasion where such levels have been exceeded and inform the Mineral | Proposed Condition [TBC]
Planning Authority in writing within 48 hours of occurrence, with an The noise limits referred to in Condition 10 above may be exceeded only where emergency
explanation of the reason. action is essential to the safety of the works, employees of the works, or members of the
public. The developer shall record each occasion where such levels have been exceeded
and inform the Mineral Planning Authority in writing within 48 hours of occurrence, with an
explanation of the reason.
42 | Condition 30 Comment

The Mineral Planning Authority shall be empowered to relax these noise
levels over a restricted period on application from the developer
provided that they are satisfied that such relaxation is necessitated by
any abnormal requirements of the mining operation and that such
relaxation shall not cause undue disturbance to the locality by way of
noise.

The NPPF states that for certain very noisy activities it is appropriate and necessary to enable
these to take place without complying with normal “operational” conditions relating to the day to day
mining activities. The newer guidance no longer includes overburden removal hence the proposed
new condition [Line 41] which deals with the overburden removal for Phase 2 of the Pit
development but this condition is a standard for dealing with soil stripping etc.

Proposed NEW Condition [12]

Where the mine operator seeks to undertake works of soil stripping, the construction or
removal of baffle mounds, soil storage mounds and spoil heaps, construction of new
landforms and aspects of site road construction and maintenance the noise limits as
required by condition [10] shall be increased for a period of time and a noise level as agreed
by the mineral planning authority, with an absolute limit of 70 dB LAeq, 1 hour (free field) for
a period of 8 weeks in any 12 month period and only during daytime hours 0700 to 1900
hours. The Operator shall give written notice to the MPA in advance of any such works and
shall agree with the MPA a scheme of noise management and mitigation and community
notification in advance of the commencement of the works.

9 wa)| epuaby



Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

G obed

43 | Condition 31 Comment
The developer shall adopt the best practical means to ensure that the A single condition relating to dust and particulates is more in line with general air quality advice in
emission of dust from the development is kept to a minimum and in the NPPF so long as the monitoring scheme requires both and the PM10 in particular is based on
particular the following measures are to be used:- deposition levels as set out in the National Guidance. The EHO has suggested that conditions 31&
31 (a) dust caused by the moving of soil and overburden, ore bearing 32 be amended to reflect the current advice on Air Quality management and mining and the
rocks and other similar materials within the site shall be suppressed by monitoring and complaints schemes to be attached to any new consent
water sprays or by more effective means if they become available;
31 (b) drilling rigs shall be fitted with efficient bag filter modules or more Proposed New Condition 13
effective dust control measures if they become available; (i) Within 3 months from the date of this permission the applicant shall provide to the
31 (c) Roads Mineral Planning Authority a screening assessment in accordance with the Institute of
(i) Efficient measures for dust suppression shall be undertaken on all Air Quality Management Guidance on the Assessment of Mineral Dust Impacts for
roads; Planning. This assessment shall then be used to formulate a monitoring scheme to be
(ii) The access road from the Newnham/Lee Moor Road to the plant site, used to continually assess the impact by way of dust arising from the mineral
together with the Internal access roads and parking areas, shall be operations.
provided with a concrete, macadamed, or other appropriate surfacing as | (ii) This scheme shall be submitted within 4 months of the date of this permission and shall
may be agreed with the Mineral Planning Authority, and be kept include proposals for using best practicable means for minimising the amount of dust
reasonably free of dust and mud at all times; and arising from the site from mineral operations, details of monitoring locations,
(iii) Wheel washing facilities shall be installed and used by vehicles monitoring methodology frequency of reporting to the Mineral Planning Authority and a
leaving the site, which have travelled over unsurfaced roads. scheme for dealing with dust complaints. Once approved this scheme shall be
(iv) Vehicles containing loads of material of less than 500mm in diameter implemented for the lifetime of the mineral operations, unless otherwise agreed by the
shall be sheeted. MPA.
31 (d) Process Plant and Tip Note:
(i) The turning and tipping area adjacent to the primary crusher shall be The scheme would specify the collection and assessment of dust samples at a
provided with an all-weather surface, and dust shall be controlled complainant’s property, the analysis to be undertaken, an investigation into the cause for
effectively in this area; the dust and feedback to the MPA on what steps have been taken to minimise the
(i) The process plant shall be enclosed within buildings. The buildings production of excessive disamenity dust by the mineral operations. Once approved this
housing the primary crusher, and those where dry material is handled scheme shall be implemented for the lifetime of the mineral operations. Unless otherwise
shall be kept under negative air pressure and the extracted air shall be agreed by the MPA.
passed through an efficient dust collection plant;
(iii) Dust created in the waste disposal area shall be controlled by the Some elements of this would need to be set out in the legal agreements as they require an element
spraying of water or by more effective means if they become available. of independent audit.

44 | Condition 32 Comment
The developer shall adopt the best practicable means to minimise the See above — delete previous condition 32 and replace with new condition 13.
propagation of dust including PMyq.
If monthly insoluble dust deposition rates outside the site exceed
200mg/m?/ day after commencement of the development, and previously
the annual deposition rate was less than 50mg/m?/ day, where the
Mineral Planning Authority is satisfied that the developer’s contribution
to the increased total dust deposition rate is substantial, the developer
shall take the necessary steps to remedy the situation.

45 | Condition 33* Comment

A scheme of dust monitoring, sampling and analysis on and off the site
shall be submitted to and agreed by the Mineral Planning Authority prior

The merging of the requirements of the existing approved schemes and the updating of conditions
which required the submission of those schemes was discussed and it was agreed that this was

9 wa)| epuaby



GG abed

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

to the commencement of soil stripping to ensure that dust mitigation
measures are being effectively implemented. The scheme shall include
details of the locations at which monitoring shall be carried out and
monitoring methods and equipment to be used. The scheme shall
provide for the production of directional dust monitoring and dust deposit
information on a basis of mg per metre square per day per monthly
average and monitoring of PM10 levels. Following approval of the
scheme of monitoring the site operator shall make effective and
thereafter shall constantly operate and maintain the scheme of dust
monitoring, sampling and analysis agreed by the Mineral Planning
Authority, with the results being reported in writing to the Mineral
Planning Authority on a six monthly basis or otherwise upon the request
of the Mineral Planning Authority.

*[Any building used for human habitation and owned by the developer or included
in the Schedule of Properties contained in the Section 52 Agreement for which
the developer will make offers to purchase, or covered by tenant compensation
provisions, shall not fall within the scope of this condition]

satisfactory so long as the EHO/MPA was still content that the schemes themselves would cover
the issues being raised locally and were NPPF compliant. Any requirements outwith the NPPF
guidance to be transposed into the legal agreements.

Delete and replace with Proposed merged Condition 13 (above)

46

Condition 34

No blasting shall take place until effective measures have been taken to
warn members of the general public in the vicinity of the site, of the
periods during which blasting operations will take place, and of the
imminence of any blasting episode.

Comment
The County Councils Blasting Consultants have recommended the following condition to ensure
that blasting achieves Best Available Techniques.

Condition 14 (New) Blasting Methods
All blasting at the site shall be carried out in accordance with an approved Blast Impact
Minimisation and Monitoring Scheme setting out agreed best available techniques. Such
scheme shall be submitted to the MPA for written approval within 1 month of the date of this
permission.
The scheme shall cover, but not necessarily be restricted to, the following:
o Blasting practices to be adopted
e A protocol for “designing to comply” including:
(i) Proposals for monitoring and analysis of ground and air vibrations (including
experiential reporting in the community) and the location of permanent monitoring
installation(s) and their detailed design and specification
(ii) Prediction of ground vibration levels
(iii) Prediction of air-vibration levels (air overpressure)
(iv) Proposals for Incorporation of the monitoring results in the subsequent blast
designs
(v) An audit plan
(vi) The frequency and nature of reporting to the Mineral Planning Authority
(vii) A blasting related community engagement plan to include measures for warning
members of the public in the vicinity of the site of the periods during which blasting
operations will take place, and of the imminence of any blasting episode.
It is recommended that old Condition 34 is deleted and replaced by new condition [14]

9 wa)| epuaby



9G abed

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

47 | Condition 35 Comment
Except as may be essential for reasons of safety, no blasting shall be This restricts blasting at the weekends unless on occasional circumstances for example where
carried out other than between 1000 and 1130 hours, and between 1300 | weather conditions have precluded blasting in the week or in cases of emergency (where there is a
and 1630 hours on Mondays to Saturdays, unless otherwise agreed in dangerous structure etc. — but this definition would need to be set out in the scheme required by the
writing with the Mineral Planning Authority. No blasting shall take place proposed new condition on blast minimisation).
on Sundays or on the Public Holidays set out in Condition 11(ii).
Condition 15 (New) Blasting Hours
(i). Except as may be essential for reasons of safety, no blasting shall be carried out other
than between 1000 to11.30 and 1300 to 1630 hours on Mondays to Friday and no blasting
shall take place on Saturdays or Sundays or on the Bank or Public holidays as set out in
Condition [New noise condition]
(ii) The number of blasting episodes shall not exceed 6 in any one week period, and 2 in any
one day. No secondary blasting shall be carried out within the site.
(iii). Notwithstanding the provisions of part (i) blasting may be undertaken on no more than
six Saturdays in any 12 month period. The operator shall notify the Mineral Planning
Authority in advance of such events and these shall be approved in writing by the MPA.
(iv). The provisions of this condition shall not prevent the operator blasting on a Saturday or
Sunday in an emergency situation. The operator shall notify the Mineral Planning Authority
within 48 hours of such an occurrence with an explanation of the reasons for it.
It is Recommended that Condition 35 is deleted and replaced with New Condition 15.
48 | Condition 36 Comment
The developer shall inform the Mineral Planning Authority within 48 The requirements have been incorporated into proposed New Condition 15.
hours of any occurrence outside the times allowed in Condition 35,
together with an explanation. It is Recommended that Condition 36 is deleted and incorporated into New Condition 15
49 | Condition 37 Comment

37 (a)The developer shall adopt the best practical means to minimise
the propagation of ground borne vibration beyond the perimeter of the
mine, and shall ensure that all blasting procedures are planned and
executed to ensure that the maximum vibration from blasting, expressed
in terms of peak particle velocity (ppv) shall be:-

(i) less than 10mm per second when the total number of blasting
episodes does not exceed 3 per day; and

(ii) less than 7.3mm per second when the total number of blasting
episodes does not exceed 4 per day; and

(iii) less than 6.5mm per second when the total number of blasting
episodes does not exceed 5 per day; and

(iv) less than 5.8mm per second when the total number of blasting
episodes does not exceed 6 per day; at any building used for human
habitation located outside the site.

The figures above relate to the duration of impulse and decay signal not
exceeding one second. Where the duration exceeds one second the
levels of peak particle velocity to be achieved shall be calculated by

The County Councils Blasting Consultants have recommended the following condition:

Condition 16 (New) Blasting (Ground Vibration)

The developer shall adopt the best practical means [as set out in the approved Blast Impact
Minimisation and Monitoring Scheme] to minimise the propagation of ground borne
vibration beyond the perimeter of the mine, and shall ensure that all blasting procedures are
planned and executed to ensure that:

(i). Blasting shall be undertaken in such a manner to ensure that ground vibration, measured
as a maximum of three mutually perpendicular directions taken at the ground surface at or
near the foundations of any vibration sensitive building or residential premises, does not
exceed a peak particle velocity (ppv) of 6 mm per second in 95% of all blasts measured over
any continuous 3 month period and no single blast shall exceed a ppv of 10 mm per second.
The measurement is to be taken at or near the foundations of any vibration sensitive
building or occupied residential property.

(ii). In the event that a blast results in vibration levels exceeding those specified in part (i)
above, the operator shall within 48 hours notify the Mineral Planning Authority of the
occurrence. The operator shall then submit to the Mineral Planning Authority within 2 weeks

9 wa)| epuaby



)G abed

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

reference to B.S. 6472: 1984, using an initial multiplier of 60 as
contained in Table 3 of that document.

37 (b) Any building used for human habitation and owned by the
developer or included in the Schedule of Properties contained in the
Section 52 Agreement for which the developer will make offers to
purchase, or covered by tenant compensation provisions, shall not fall
within the scope of this condition.

of the occurrence a scheme of further monitoring and remedial measures to reduce ground
vibration to the approved limits. These measures shall then be implemented and complied
with at all times.

(iii). The operator shall provide to the Mineral Planning Authority details of predicted
vibration levels based on blast design prior to each blast. The operator shall forward to the
Mineral Planning Authority the results of measured ground vibration within 48 hours of each
blast.

50 | Condition 38 Comment
The number of blasting episodes shall not exceed 24 in any one week This issue is picked up in proposed Condition 15 where the total numbers are specified at a
period, and 6 in any one day, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the | maximum of 6 per week.
Mineral Planning Authority
It is Recommended that Condition 38 is deleted and revised numbers incorporated into new
Condition [15] (above)
51 | Condition 39 Comment
39 (a) The developer shall adopt the best practical means to minimise There is no guidance in the PPG on air overpressure (AOP) or any advice on the need for a limit.
the propagation of air borne vibration outside the site and shall ensure Guidance contained in other reports published by the government (for example The Environmental
that the vibration in terms of the measurable air over pressure at any Effects of Production Blasting from Surface Minerals Workings. DETR (1998) indicates that there
residential property does not exceed 120 dB (decibels). are a number of factors outside of the control of the applicant that can affect the amount of air
39 (b) Any building used for human habitation and owned by the overpressure. As such it is no longer advised in guidance to impose a limit. However, given the
developer or included in the Schedule of Properties contained in the level of public concern regarding blasting it is suggested that the condition is retained and linked to
Section 52 Agreement for which the developer will make offers to the blast impact minimisation and monitoring scheme. The blasts have not in the past led to levels
purchase, or covered by tenant compensation provisions, shall not fall of AOP that exceeded the original condition and it would perform a useful “backstop” to prevent
within the scope of this condition. levels rising.
The second part of the condition is no longer relevant however so the condition should be re-cast:
Proposed Condition 17 (New)
The developer shall adopt the best practical means to minimise the propagation of air borne
vibration outside the site and shall ensure that the noise from blasting in terms of the
measurable air over pressure at any residential property does not exceed 120 dB (decibels).
The measures for ensuring compliance with this blast value, including details of
monitoring methods shall be included within the approved Blast Impact Minimisation
and Monitoring Scheme to be submitted as required by Condition [14] (above)
52 | Condition 40 Comment
No blasting in the pit area shall take place until the bunds surrounding This condition has been discharged and the bunds constructed. It is no longer necessary and so
the pit shall have been constructed in accordance with details required not NPPF compliant.
under 10 (e) unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Mineral Recommend Condition 40 is deleted.
Planning Authority
53 | Condition 41 Comment

No secondary blasting shall be carried out within the site.

The requirements have been incorporated into proposed New Condition 15.
Recommend Condition 41 is deleted as a stand- alone condition but merged with New
Condition 15

9 wa)| epuaby



qG abed

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

54 | Condition 42 Comment
No development shall commence until base data, where appropriate, This data was provided prior to the commencement of the operation and within a number of
and proposals for the schemes of monitoring and analyses of:- schemes and permits which have subsequently been submitted and discharged. Some require
(i) Ground and air — borne vibration; review but have either been picked up by proposed conditions which would relate to any new
(ii) River flows, spring flows and ground water levels, and quality of consent or are already dealt with by the EP.
water for human consumption; There are already schemes dealing with noise, dust and air quality, ground vibration and air
(iii) Noise; overpressure, groundwater and surface water which have all been discharged. They all contain
(iv) Dust; provisions for review and some will require re-submission as a result of the proposed conditions.
(v) Air quality; (i) Ground and Airborne vibration (Proposed Condition 14)
(vi) Numbers of heavy goods vehicles transporting waste materials from (ii) River and Spring Flows (Condition 5 (SWM Plans and strategy); Environmental Permits
the site; discharge licences and Unilateral Undertaking/s.52 agreement regarding impact on
(vii) Chemical composition of materials to be extracted from the mine; private supplies)
have been submitted to and approved by the Mineral Planning (iii) Noise management and mitigation plan + monitoring scheme — (Proposed Condition
Authority. [10] TBC)
(iv) Dust & AQ management & Mitigation Plan + monitoring scheme (Proposed Condition
[13] TBC)
(v) Dust & AQ management & Mitigation Plan + monitoring scheme (Proposed Condition
[13] TBC)
(vi) HGVs restricted by Proposed Condition 9 (if numbers increase there would need to be
further consideration)
(vii) The chemical composition of materials coming from the mine is the subject of the EP
insofar as anything coming from the process to the tip, the tailings lagoon, from the stack or
into the watercourses is dealt with by the various permits and their monitoring.
This condition is no longer required and it its recommended that It is deleted.
55 | Condition 43 Comment
The developer shall undertake such additional monitoring and analyses This condition was originally drafted to take into account unexpected impacts from the mine.
within those terms listed in Condition 42, as may be required by the In terms of NPPF this is not precise or reasonable as it is completely open ended, however having
Mineral Planning Authority had discussions with the Operator they accept that the ability to deal with unexpected
consequences is helpful. The existing monitoring reports have this flexibility built in to enable review
of monitoring but the operator has offered to build this additional flexibility into the updated legal
undertaking they will offer as a Unilateral Undertaking.
It is recommended that Condition 43 is deleted.
56 | Condition 44 Comment

The developer shall carry out monitoring schemes together with
associated analyses outlined in Condition 42 and 43 above, as required
by the Mineral Planning Authority and shall produce records and results
and permit access to all monitoring equipment at all times at the request
of the Mineral Planning Authority.

This needs to be re-cast to refer to monitoring in general and the quarterly reports. All of the current
environmental schemes require quarterly, six monthly or annual reporting. One annual report would
be a helpful commentary drawing the individual schemes into one place, identifying issues and
proposals/priorities for the next annual period.

Suggested Replacement Condition [18] (NEW) Annual Monitoring Report
The operator shall provide to the Mineral Planning Authority by 31 March each year during
the duration of operations and aftercare, an annual report setting out the environmental

9 wa)| epuaby



Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

monitoring undertaken, setting out a summary of the results against agreed limits (as set
out in the approved schemes or conditions within this Decision Notice). The report shall
also identify whether any change to the monitoring is needed.

57

NEW

Comment

This specifies that the restoration is carried out in accordance with the restoration concept and the
agreed priorities. This was previously set out in the Unilateral Undertaking which accompanied the
Modification Order and will be better related to the mine plans.

Proposed Condition 19 (NEW) Restoration

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority, phased landscaping
and restoration shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved Restoration Concept
and the detailed annual restoration, land and water management and landscape review
plans required under condition [20] below for specific areas of land which shall have been
previously submitted to and approved in writing by the MPA.

6G abed

58

NEW

Comment

This condition reflects a requirement to assess the restoration progress on an annual basis and to
plan for the following 12 months using the knowledge gained during previous phases and to review
techniques if necessary based on the knowledge gained and assessment of the success of
previous phases.

Proposed Condition 20 (NEW) Annual Restoration Review

Notwithstanding the provisions of condition 19 above, on or before 31 March each year
during the duration of the planning permission an “Annual restoration, land and Water
Management and Landscape Review” of restoration, land and water management and
landscape objectives shall be submitted for approval to the Mineral Planning Authority .
The scheme shall address inter alia:

(i) The sequence and phasing of tipping and reclamation showing clearly their
relationship to the working scheme for the next 12 months and works already undertaken to
date;

(i) the re-spreading on completion of each phase of tipping of final cover consisting of
soil or other cover material suitable as a rooting medium, free of debris in excess of 150mm
in any dimension or other obstructions to cultivation. This final cover shall be placed in
layers. Any suitable cover material and over burden previously stripped from the site being
placed first as a base layer then subsoil as an intermediate layer then topsoil as the
uppermost layer;

(iii) The ripping of any compacted layers of final cover to ensure adequate drainage and
aeration; such ripping should normally take place before placing of the topsoil;

(iv) The machinery to be used in soil re-spreading operations;

(v) The final levels of the reclaimed land (and the gradient of the restored slopes
around the margins of the excavation) to prevent ponding of surface water;

(vi) Drainage of the reclaimed land including the formation of suitably graded contours
to promote natural drainage and the installation of artificial drainage;

(vii) The seeding of reclaimed areas with a suitable specified seed mixture..

9 wa)| epuaby



09 abed

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

59 | Condition 45 Comment
In the event of the cessation of winning and working minerals for a It is proposed that the requirements of Condition 46 are merged into a single Prior cessation
period in excess of two years, the operator shall, within 2 years of that condition and the previous Condition 46 is deleted.
cessation being notified to them by the MPA, carry out restoration of the
working and tipping areas in accordance with a scheme which shall Prior Cessation of the Development
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the MPA and which In the event of the cessation of winning and working of minerals for a period in excess of
shall then pass into aftercare as set out in Condition 22. two years prior to the completion of the approved scheme, the operator shall notify the
Mineral Planning Authority in writing of such cessation.
Within 2 years of such notification, or, if in the opinion of the MPA a permanent cessation
has occurred and the MPA has served written notice on the operator of this opinion, the
operator shall submit to the Mineral Planning Authority a revised restoration scheme for the
approval of the MPA.
The approved revised restoration scheme shall include details of the phasing of the revised
scheme and the removal of fixed plant, machinery, structures and shall be fully implemented
within 2 years of the written approval unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Mineral
Planning Authority. The restored areas shall then pass into aftercare as set out in Condition
8.
60 | Condition 46 Comment
In the event of prior cessation as set out in condition 45, within 3 years It is proposed that the requirements of Condition 46 are merged into a single Prior cessation
of the notification of cessation, the operator shall have removed all plant, | condition and the previous Condition 46 is deleted.
machinery, buildings and roads in accordance with a scheme that shall
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the MPA and the It is recommended that Condition 46 is deleted and merged into a new Prior Cessation Condition.
land shall pass into aftercare as set out in Condition 22.
61 | Condition 47 Comment
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved The Condition as drafted was not NPPF Compliant and might indicate that the approved
plans unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Mineral Planning development might be amended in an informal way. Where slight alterations do not go to the heart
Authority. of the permission given that this is a long term operational site, the conditions “tail” unless
otherwise agreed in writing has been added to any specific condition where appropriate. For all
other changes it will be necessary to agree non or minor material amendments. Proposed
Condition 2 is more specific as it relates to existing approved schemes and drawings.
Recommend Condition 47 is deleted and replaced with New Condition 2.
62 | Condition 48 Comment
Unless required for restoration or where the material is being A single condition restricting import/export of materials from the site will enable the overall
translocated from outside the site for restoration purposes as previously | HGV/highway implications to be considered together.
agreed by the MPA, no imported refuse, waste or other similar materials
shall be deposited on any part of the site unless agreed in writing with Recommend Condition 48 is deleted and merged into New Condition 9.
the Mineral Planning Authority.
63 | Condition 49 Comment

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
General Permitted Development Order 1995, no buildings, structures or
fixed plant shall be erected, installed or extended unless otherwise
agreed in writing with the Mineral Planning Authority.

It is not common practice to remove all permitted development rights from mining operations unless
there are very good reasons for doing so.

The scale of this operation could make some kinds of permitted development (e.g. the erection of
plant) something that could have a significant landscape impact, however minor works within the

9 wa)| epuaby



T9 abed

Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

context of the operation and within the existing plant area could be said to be immaterial and have
in the past been dealt with as non- material amendments.

It is recommended that the provisions of Part 17 of the GPDO (which could otherwise enable the
construction of buildings and structures up to 15m high) be restricted by a Condition that requires a
prior notification of any development outside the existing process plant area and anything over 5m
within it:

Proposed Condition

Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 17 Class A (a) and (b) and Class B of the Town and

Country Planning General Permitted Development Order 2015 (or any order amending,

replacing or re-enacting that order)

i) no additional buildings and plant that exceed 5m in height shall be erected within
the processing plant area shown on Plan [GRES Drawing WHP 100-L-001 (Rev. H)];
and

i) no additional buildings and plant shall be erected elsewhere on the mine site,
without the prior approval in writing of the MPA.

Reason: To ensure that the MPA retains control over development of a scale that might have

an impact on the views from Dartmoor National Park.

64

Condition 50

Proposals for lighting night-time operations shall be agreed with the
Mineral Planning Authority, and such systems shall be modified as may
be subsequently required by the Mineral Planning Authority.

Amend condition 50

External lighting at the site shall be restricted to the lighting set out in a revised scheme to
be submitted within 6 months of the date of this permission. The Operator shall take all
practicable steps to reduce night time lighting from the plant and from ancillary operations
on the Mine Waste facility.

NEW

New Condition - Complaints Procedure

In the event that a justifiable complaint is received by the operator, the Mineral Planning
Authority or other regulatory body in relation to noise, vibration, particulate emissions or
derogation of water, the operator shall instigate an investigation into the complaint within 24
hours of receiving or being notified about the complaint and in accordance with the
monitoring schemes agreed for each of these matters under Conditions [***] Such
investigation shall include reviewing any monitoring data relating to the nature of the
complaint and undertaking such additional monitoring as may be necessary and agreed
with the MPA. The operator shall inform the MPA and the complainant of the findings of the
investigation including whether any breach of any limits imposed through the planning
conditions within this decision notice has occurred, the cause of the breach along any
remedial action undertaken or proposed to prevent further breaches within 14 days of
notification unless it has been agreed with the MPA that additional time is justified.

The operator shall maintain a log of all complaints received, the investigations undertaken
in relation to the complaint the findings of the investigation and any remedial action
undertaken following the complaint. The complaints log shall be available for inspection by
the MPA or other regulatory bodies upon request.

66

NEW

New condition — additional planting along Lee Moor Road
Within 3 months of the date of this permission, the operator shall submit a scheme of

9 wa)| epuaby



Existing Conditions (as Modified by the Secretary of
State in 2010)

Proposed Condition/Amendment

planting for Area B as indicated on drawing 9977-0001F for approval by the MPA. Following
the receipt of approval the scheme shall be implemented in the next available planting
season and maintained in accordance with the provisions of Condition 8.

67

NEW

New condition

Within 3 months of the date of this permission, the operator shall submit a revision of the
operational travel plan dated November 2014 for the written approval of the MPA. Following
the receipt of approval the scheme shall be implemented including such revisions as shall
be required, for the remaining life of the mine.

29 abed

9 wa)| epuaby



Agenda Iltem 6

Appendix Il
PTE/16/59

Proposed Heads of Terms of Legal Agreement

1. To transfer over all remaining obligations in the original legal agreements.
To define the commencement of the consent and the obligations as being the first instance
of overnight working of the Primary Crusher following the issue of the planning permission.

3. Hosting a community website

4, That the operator will share environmental compliance monitoring data with the MPA and to
agree to joint legal ownership such that the data may be used for the purposes of
monitoring and enforcement of the planning permission.

5. To fund Independent audit of quarterly monitoring if required by MPA

6. To fund the appointment of consultants by the MPA if required following complaint.

7. To clarify the process for investigating water derogation and to specify the steps for
arbitration in event of dispute

8. Continued administrative support for and engagement with the Local and Technical Liaison
Groups

9. 10 year maintenance of restoration

10. Provision of bridleways on cessation

11. Annual reporting and review of restoration

12. Maintenance of bat mitigation for life of the mine and aftercare

13. To only implement the new permission and not to object to any revocation of the original.

14. To retain and fund a community mediator for an agreed period.

Page 63



Agenda Iltem 6

Appendix IV
To PTE/16/59

Habitats Regulations Assessment

Devon

County Council /

Section 1: Screening of likely significant
November 2016

effect on a European site

Part A: The proposal

1.Type of Drakelands (previously Hemerdon) Tungsten Mine

permission/activity:
Variation of (i) condition 3 of planning permission 9/42/49/0542/85/3 to allow continued
extraction of tungsten and tin, processing and disposal of mineral wastes until 5 June
2036 and (ii) removal of condition 13 of planning permission 9/42/49/0542/85/3 to remove
the restriction on the operation hours of the primary crusher.

The EA has produced separate HRAs for
- Abstractions (8.5.2012)

- Discharges (25.4.2012)

- Mine Waste Facility (9.9.2013)

- Kiln emissions. (2014)

The EA and DCC agreed, at a meeting on 3 April 2014, that the following activities (relating to
planning permission 9/42/49/0542/85/3 and the subsequent Unilateral Undertaking agreed in
2010).
were not already covered by the EA’s HRA and therefore needed to be covered by the HRA for
permission 9/42/49/0542/85/3.

- Dewatering of the quarry

- Construction of the processing building
Extraction
Infrastructure (such as pipes) associated with processing
Soil stripping

The HRA for permission 9/42/49/0542/85/3 was undertaken in 2014.

2. Application DCC/3823/2015. Planning permission 9/42/49/0542/85/3 (approved by DCC in 1986) and the
reference no: subsequent Unilateral Undertaking agreed in 2010

3. National grid Drakelands Mine is centred on NGR SX 571586 with a mid-point at Crownhill Down located
reference: at NGR SX568595.

4. European sites (within 10kms of Hemerdon Tungsten Mine or with identified pollutant pathways)

Three Natura 2000 sites are located within 10km of the site. Prawle Point to Plymouth Sounds cSAC and
Tamar Estuaries Complex SPA are not within 10kms but are hydrologically linked via Plymouth Sounds and
Estuaries SAC).

Natura 2000 sites within 10km

Dartmoor SAC UK0012929 3.3kms, NE
South Dartmoor Woods SAC UK0012749 5.3 kms, NW
Plymouth Sound and Estuaries SAC UK0013111 7.2 kms, SW

Page 64



Agenda Iltem 6

Conservation Objectives
With regard to the natural habitats and/or species for which the site has been designated (the Qualifying Features"
listed below):

Avoid the deterioration of the qualifying natural habitats and the habitats of qualifying species, and the
significant disturbance of those qualifying species, ensuring the integrity of the site is maintained and the site
makes a full contribution to achieving Favourable Conservation Status of each of the qualifying features.

Subject to natural change, to maintain or restore:

» The extent and distribution of qualifying natural habitats and habitats of qualifying species;

» The structure and function (including typical species) of qualifying natural habitats and habitats of qualifying
species;

» The supporting processes on which qualifying natural habitats and habitats of qualifying species rely;

» The populations of qualifying species;

» The distribution of qualifying species within the site.

Qualifying Features for Dartmoor SAC

H4010. Northern Atlantic wet heaths with Erica tetralix; Wet heathland with cross-leaved heath

H4030. European dry heaths

H7130. Blanket bogs*

H91AO0. Old sessile oak woods with llex and Blechnum in the British Isles; Western acidic oak woodland
S1044. Coenagrion mercuriale; Southern damselfly

S1106. Salmo salar; Atlantic salmon

S1355. Lutra lutra; Otter

Qualifying Features for South Dartmoor Woods SAC
H4030. European dry heaths
H91AO0. Old sessile oak woods with llex and Blechnum in the British Isles; Western acidic oak woodland

Qualifying Features for Tamar Estuaries Complex SPA
A026 Egretta garzetta; Little egret (Non-breeding)
A132 Recurvirostra avosetta; Pied avocet (Non-breeding)

Qualifying Features for Plymouth Sound and Estuaries SAC

H1110. Sandbanks which are slightly covered by sea water all the time; Subtidal sandbanks

H1130. Estuaries

H1140. Mudflats and sandflats not covered by seawater at low tide; Intertidal mudflats and sandflats
H1160. Large shallow inlets and bays

H1170. Reefs

H1330. Atlantic salt meadows (Glauco-Puccinellietalia maritimae)

S$1102. Alosa alosa; Allis shad

S$1441. Rumex rupestris; Shore dock

Qualifying Features for Prawle Point to Plymouth Sound candidate SAC
Inshore Upstanding Reefs
Offshore Upstanding Reefs

* denotes a habitat or species which is a particular priority for conservation at a European scale and is subject to special
provisions in the Directive and the Habitats Regulations.

Page 65



Agenda Item 6

5. Brief description of proposal: The winning and working of tungsten. Mineral working is thought to have
occurred on the site from 1919-1920 and 1934 — 1944. The current application was approved in 1986 for an
opencast pit, mineral processing plant (within the Smallhanger Valley) and associated tip (on Crownhill Down),
together with construction of a ‘link road’ between West Park Hill Road and the Lee Mill Road (B3147) near
Newnham Park. This application is to extend this permission to 2036.

6. Is this application necessary to the No

management of the site for nature

conservation?

Part B: Risk assessment

Potential impacts

All activities are outside the Natura 2000 site boundaries. There will therefore be no direct loss of habitat.

Potential impacts resulting from activities covered by this HRA are:

Activity Potential impact

Dewatering of the quarry water flow/levels and water quality

Construction of the processing | air quality (dust/vehicle emissions),

building disturbance, water quality

Extraction air quality (dust), disturbance, water
quality

Infrastructure (such as pipes) water quality

associated with processing

Soil stripping air quality (dust), disturbance, water
quality

e Air quality. Dust and vehicle emissions causing smothering and/or acidification of habitats.

e Water quality. Changes in sedimentation and chemical status of the water causing habitat change and
loss/displacement/change in composition of aquatic and riparian species.

e Water flow/levels. Change in sensitive habitats due to changes in surface and groundwater flow causing
habitat deterioration.

o Disturbance due to noise/vibration on sensitive species (otter and salmon)

In terms of potential impacts on water quality and levels note that:

o Two water courses are located within the site. The Smallhanger Brook flows north-east to south-
west, flowing into the Tory Brook which in turn flows into the River Plym near Marsh Mills in
Plymouth. An un-named stream (known as the Hooksbury Stream) rises from numerous spring and
seepage zones on Crownhill Down to the west of the B3417, becoming a single watercourse within
Lower Hooksbury Wood and flowing into the Tory Brook.

o Headwaters of the Plym lie within the Dartmoor SAC. The Plym feeds into the Plymouth Sound and
Estuaries SAC. Both Tamar Estuaries SPA and Prawle Point to Plymouth Sound candidate SAC are
linked to the site via Plymouth Sound and Estuaries SAC.

Page 66



Likely Significant Effect Matrix

Northern Atlantic
wet heaths with
Erica tetralix

European dry
heaths

Blanket Bogs

Old sessile oak
woods with llex
and Blechnum in
the British Isles

Southern
damselfly
Coenagrion
mercuriale

Disturbance

No. None of the
activities covered by
this HRA can disturb
features of the SAC.
Note that Atlantic
salmon are included
as a qualifying
feature due to their
presence in the Dart
and Tavy, neither of
which are
hydrologically
connected to this
site. Atlantic
salmon (as a feature
of Dartmoor SAC)
cannot therefore be
disturbed by the
mine.

Agenda Iltem 6

No

Water flows /
levels

are susceptible.

No. No
hydro-geological
connectivity
between the site and
this SAC.

Atlantic salmon Dust/vehicle Dust impacts from No. Due to distance
Dartmoor Salmo salar emissions activities within the between these sites
SAC No. See Lee Moor complex. and the SAC + dust
Otter Lutra lutra Assessments 1 & 2 control management
below for dust & schemes required by
emissions. planning consents.
Water quality/ No. The site is Possible impacts on [No. Risks to water
levels downstream of water quality from quality and supply
Dartmoor SAC and development in South | will be controlled by
the only impacts Hams / Caradon and EA regulatory
could therefore be Lee Moor quarries. system of consents
water quality and surface water
impacts on Atlantic Development in drainage controls
salmon and otter in South Hams & imposed via
the Plym and Yealm | Caradon planning.
catchments. could increase water
demand within
See Assessments 3 the sites catchments.
and 4 below for
water quality and
levels.
Old sessile oak Disturbance No. The SAC lies No. There are no
woods over 5kms from the residual impacts.
with llex and activities covered in
Blechnum in this HRA.
the British Isles
Dust/vehicle No. See
European dry emissions Assessments 1 & 2
South heaths below for dust &
Dartmoor emissions.
Woods
SAC Water Quality No interest features

Page 67




Agenda Iltem 6

Sandbanks which | Disturbance No. SAC is over 7Tkm | No residual impacts.
are slightly from the quarry
covered by sea complex. No effect
water all the time from noise or
Estuaries vibration.
Large shallow
inlets and bays Dust/vehicle No. The SAC is over | No residual impacts.
Reefs emissions 9km from the quarry
Atlantic salt complex.
meadows
Plymouth sDGlau_c o . . . .
Sound & ucc_:l_nellletalla Water quality/ No. See No residual impacts. |No. Rlsks to water
Estuaries maritimae) levels Assessments 3 and quality and supply
SAC Mudflats and 4 below for water Possible impacts on will be controlled by
sandflats not quality and levels. water quality due to EA regulatory
covered by development in South | system of consents
seawater at low Hams/Caradon and and surface water
tide Lee Moor quarry drainage controls
complex. imposed via planning
Shore Dock set out in the
Rumex ruestris Development in approved surface
South Hams & water management
Allis shad Alosa Caradon scheme dated 6.1.14.
alosa could increase water
demand within
the sites catchments
Inshore Disturbance No. The cSAC is
Upstanding Reefs over 10 kms from
the quarry.
Offshore
Upstanding Reefs | Dust/vehicle No. As above
emissions
Prawle
Point to Water quality/ No. See Possible impacts on [No. Risks to water
Plymouth levels Assessments 3 and | water quality due to quality will be
Sound & 4 below for water development in South | controlled by EA
Eddystone quality and levels. Hams / Caradon and regulatory system of
cSAC Lee Moor quarry consents and
complex. surface water
drainage controls
imposed via planning
set out in the
approved surface
water management
scheme dated 6.1.14.
Egretta Disturbance No. The SAC is over
garzetta; Little 10 kms from the
egret (Non- quarry.
breeding) Dust/vehicle No. As above
. emissions
Tamar Recurvirostra
Estuaries avosetta; Pied Water quality/ No. See Possible impacts on  |No. Risks to water
avocet (Non- levels Assessments 3 and | water quality due to quality will be
Complex breeding) 4 below for water development in South | controlled by EA
SPA quality and levels.. Hams / Caradon and regulatory system of
Lee Moor quarry consents and
complex. surface water
drainage controls
imposed via
planning. set out in
the approved surface
water management
scheme dated 6.1.14.

Page 68




Agenda Iltem 6

Assessment of likely significant effect

1. Dust

MPS2 states that, ‘larger particles, typically greater than 30um in size settle within 100m of the source.
Intermediate size particles (10-30um) are likely to travel up to 200-500m. Smaller particles (less than 10 um
and referred to as PM,,) may travel 1000m or more.’

Dartmoor SAC (3km away) and South Dartmoor Woods SAC (5km away) may both be affected by smaller
particles. However according to MPS2 smaller particles make up only a small proportion of dust emitted from
most mineral workings. Furthermore the 1995 DoE Guidance on (The Environmental Effects of Dust from
Surface Mineral Workings) recommends a stand-off distance of 100-200m from significant dust sources,
recognising that these distances can be reduced if effective mitigation measures are put in place. This
assessment is set out in more detail in a letter from SLR to DCC dated 10t April 2014.

Conclusion: Dust generated during operations will not have a significant effect on European Sites due to: (a)
the distance of the operational and processing and soil stripping areas from the European sites, (b) the
implementation of the Dust and Air Quality Environmental Management Scheme (and associated monitoring)
which is a condition of the planning permission and which was discharged by Devon County Council in
consultation with the Environment Agency and the Environmental Health Authority on 12t February 2014
which will be kept under review.

2. Vehicle emissions

The Design Manual for Roads and Bridges (2007) considers any receptor within 200m of a road source to be
potentially affected by the operation. There are no European sites within 200m of the activities included in this
HRA. Also see letter from SLR to DCC dated 10t April 2014.

Conclusion. Traffic emissions will not have a significant effect on a European Site.

3. Water quality/levels — surface water

Surface water run-off associated with the activities considered in this HRA is managed by a system of catch
pits/ponds and discharged to the Smallhanger under licence from the EA. This licence is covered in the EA’s
HRA for Hemerdon.

Conclusion — no significant effect on a European site.

4. Water quality/levels - groundwater

The Hemerdon Water Features Survey Report (2011) evaluates the risk of the proposed mine dewatering on all
water features identified within 500m of the pit. The impact of dewatering on the Tory Brook is assessed as
low. Impact on the Smallhanger Brook is assessed as medium. Groundwater Monitoring locations have been
agreed and monitoring has been undertaken in advance of any dewatering to establish normal fluctuations in
groundwater at a number of locations. The approved groundwater monitoring scheme explains the modelling
carried out in respect of the likely impacts from the project and sets out clear steps for monitoring and
mitigation of any unexpected effects. This scheme was formally discharged by the Mineral Planning Authority
in consultation with the Environment Agency and will be kept under annual review.

Conclusion — no significant effect on a European site.

Part C: Conclusion

As a result of this risk assessment, DCC can conclude that the activities covered by this HRA will
have no likely significant effect on European sites, either alone or in combination.

Page 69






Agenda Item 7

PTE/16/60

Development Management Committee
23 November 2016

County Matter: Waste Disposal

East Devon District: Proposed relocation of the EMS Skip Hire and waste transfer
facility including the erection of a materials recycling building to accommodate the
processing, storing and recycling of general skip waste together with new office
accommodation land at Hill Barton Business Park, Clyst St Mary

Applicant: A E Stuart & Sons

Application No. 16/1582/CM

Date Received by County Council: 29 March 2016

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to
the conditions set out in Appendix Il to this report (with any subsequent changes to
the conditions being agreed in consultation with the Chairman and Local Member).

1. Summary

1.1 This Report relates to a planning application for the relocation of the EMS Skip Hire
and waste transfer facility, including the erection of a materials recycling building, to
accommodate the processing, storing and recycling of general skip waste and office
accommodation.

1.2 It is considered that the main material considerations in the determination of this
application are an examination of the proposal against relevant planning policy; the
impacts on residential amenity in terms of noise and lighting; impact on the highway
network; landscape and visual impact of the proposal; and impacts on the historic
environment.

2, Background/Proposal

2.1 Hill Barton Business Park is located approximately 6km to the east of Exeter with
vehicular access provided directly from the A3052 Exeter to Sidmouth road. It is a
large business complex which includes a recent extension to the land allocated for
business and industrial uses at the front of the park. A number of waste operations
are carried out at the site including skip hire, waste transfer, a gasification unit,
Materials Recycling Facility, In Vessel Composting Plant, and green waste
composting.

2.2 In 1997 EMS Skip Hire was granted permission (reference 7/09/97/P1153/00061) to
operate a waste transfer station at Unit 8 of Hill Barton Business Park and on 18 May
2000 permission was granted (reference 00/P0313) to extend the existing skip hire
and waste transfer station.

2.3 The applicant has stated that the existing skip hire and waste transfer business has

outgrown its current location and cannot accommodate the volumes of waste
delivered and processed at the facility.

Page 71



Agenda ltem 7

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

The proposal consists of a 3,626 square metre waste transfer building with office
accommodation measuring 255 square metres. The transfer building will be finished
in olive green cladding with a shallow pitched grey roof and steel roller shutter doors.
The roof building would be 14 m to its apex. The office building will be a two storey
brick built structure with a hipped profile colour coated roof.

The site is proposed to be bounded on three sides by a single sided reflective noise
barrier, with the fourth side being secured by the landfill bund. These physical
mitigation measures have been proposed to reduce any residual impact from noise of
the proposed operations, and to provide secure enclosure of the site.

The proposed acoustic fence would consist of a 2.7m high barrier on the northern
and north western boundaries of the site and a 2.4m high barrier on the north-eastern
and south-western boundaries.

All waste operations, including tipping, processing and storage of waste, will be
contained within the proposed building with the skips themselves being stored within
the yard to the north of the proposed building.

Waste processing would involve an initial sorting using a screener with material then
going onto a picking line where it would be separated for recycling.

It is understood that the plant will employ up 65 people, operating on a two shift
system, up to 24 hours a day during week days. Night time operations are defined
as being between 1800 and 0600 and would take place from Monday through to
Friday morning and during this period all operations would take place within the
building. Waste collection and skip vehicles housed at the site would leave from
0600 and deliveries arrive from 0730 up until 1700. The proposed days of operation
are Monday to Friday and Saturday until 1300. There would be no working on
Sundays or Public Holidays.

The applicants own vehicles will enter the main gate and circulate in an anticlockwise
route around the site. Other vehicles, making collections and from outside customers
will enter in the same way, but exit via the weighbridge. The vast majority of vehicles
will use the larger of the two entrances into the building on the south western
elevation nearest to the office block and this is where all the tipping will take place.
Some vehicles will use the other smaller door on the same elevation, further along
the building, and this is where some of the materials will be loaded out.

There will be parking adjacent to the access road and the front of the building with
the remainder of the site being hard surfaced to provide space for a yard area and
circulation space for HGVs.

Consultation Responses

East Devon District Council — Raised no objections to the proposal subject to
appropriate conditions to ensure that the amenity of nearby residents is protected.

East Devon District Council - Environmental Health — Raised no objections and were
satisfied that if all the recommendations of operational and physical mitigation
measures are implemented noise nuisance could be prevented.

Farringdon Parish Council — Object to the proposal on the grounds of cumulative
impact resulting from this proposal in conjunction with other, yet to be implemented

Page 72



Agenda Item 7

permissions at the site. They also raised concerns relating to any additional impacts
relating to increased vehicle movements, visual impact, noise, lighting, and lack of
landscape screening and noise impact mitigation. Following the re-consultation
exercise the Parish Council reiterated these objections and called for the Waste
Planning Authority to impose strict noise conditions to protect the amenity of local
residents.

3.4 Farringdon Residents Association — Object to the proposal on the grounds of the
overall cumulative impact of this proposal, and other permissions, yet to be
implemented. They stated that here is likely be a large increase in lorry movements
to and from the site and in hot weather the doors are likely to be left open, all
resulting in significant noise coming from both internal operations and external lorry
movements. There is no mention of screening in place to protect residents to the
north and east. Following the re-consultation exercise the residents association
reiterated their objections and highlighted their scepticism of the effectiveness and
visual impact of the acoustic fencing.

3.5 Environment Agency - Consider that planning permission could be granted to the
proposed development as submitted subject to planning conditions relating to an
investigation for ground contamination and remediation if any contamination is found,
prior to the commencement of the development.

3.6 Exeter Airport — No objection.

3.7 Natural England — No objection.

3.8 Historic England — No objection.

4. Advertisement/Representations

4.1 The application has been advertised, and re-consulted upon, in accordance with the
statutory publicity requirements and as a result of these procedures a total of 9 letters
of objection were received.

4.2 The representations are objections based on a number of concerns including the
impacts of any additional noise created from the proposal as well as the impacts of
site lighting on the properties at Denbow; the cumulative impact on the community of
traffic movements, noise and light pollution, dust and odour from the other
applications currently unimplemented or not yet approved at Hill Barton; the overall
impact on amenity of local residents; the lack of screening and noise impact
mitigation; the impact on views from the west of the site.

4.3 Objections also raised the issue of the impact of having no doors on the main
entrance to the south west elevation but this was addressed by an amendment to the
proposal; the inadequacy of the lighting assessment in explaining the lighting scheme
but this was addressed through the submission of a detailed lighting impact
assessment which proposed improved lighting design to reduce potential impacts;
and the impact of the mitigation measures requested in the noise impact statement
on the existing bund, but this has now been addressed through the proposal for noise
barriers.

4.4 Copies of representations and consultation responses are available to view on the
Council website under reference DCC/3857/2016 or by clicking on the following link:
https://planning.devon.gov.uk/PlanDisp.aspx?AppNo=DCC/3857/2016.

Page 73


https://planning.devon.gov.uk/PlanDisp.aspx?AppNo=DCC/3857/2016

Agenda ltem 7

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Planning Policy Considerations

In considering this application, the County Council as Waste Planning Authority is
required to have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan. Section 38(6) of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that where regard is to be
had to the Development Plan, the determination shall be in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations, which can include emerging
policies, indicate otherwise. In this case, the relevant Development Plan policies are
summarised in Appendix | to this Report and are discussed in Section 6 below.

Comment/Issues

It is considered that the main material considerations in the determination of this
application are an examination of the proposal against relevant planning policy; the
impacts on residential amenity in terms of noise and lighting; impact on the highway
network; landscape and visual impact of the proposal; and impacts on the historic
environment.

Planning Policy Considerations

The National Planning Policy for Waste (October 2014) states, amongst other things,
that when determining waste planning applications, waste planning authorities
should:

e Consider the likely impact on the local environment and on amenity against the
criteria set out in Appendix Il and the locational implications of any advice on
health from the relevant health bodies. Waste planning authorities should avoid
carrying out their own detailed assessment of epidemiological and other health
studies; and

e Concern themselves with implementing the planning strategy in the Local Plan
and not with the control of processes which are a matter for the pollution control
authorities. Waste planning authorities should work on the assumption that the
relevant pollution control regime will be properly applied and enforced.

With waste policy in mind, Hill Barton is a well-established industrial estate
undertaking a wide range of waste management activities. The application site falls
within a wider area which is identified under Policy W6 of the adopted Devon Waste
Plan for Energy recovery development. Section 1.2 of the Design and Access
Statement submitted as part of this application refers to the proposal as providing a
new ‘Energy Management Facility’. However, there is no element of energy
management, or energy recovery from waste as part of this proposal and should not
be considered to fall within this policy.

Policy W6: Energy Recovery of the Devon Waste Plan states that:

1. Sustainable waste management in Devon will aim to achieve and maintain
sufficient capacity to recover energy from all local authority-collected and
commercial and industrial waste that cannot be reused or recycled. This will
require energy recovery capacity within Devon in accordance with the
following targets for annual capacity:

by 2016 — up to 154,000 tonnes
by 2021 — up to 356,000 tonnes
by 2026 — up to 361,000 tonnes
by 2031 — up to 377,000 tonnes

Page 74



6.5

(@)
(b)

(c)
(d)

Agenda Item 7

This energy recovery capacity will be achieved through a combination of:

(a) retention and enhancement of existing facilities;

(b) implementation of permitted capacity; and

(c) granting of planning permission for additional energy recovery
capacity (up to a maximum annual capacity of approximately 80,000
tonnes at any one facility) at one or more of the following strategic
locations defined in Appendix B:

WG6A Brynsworthy Environment Centre
WG6B Tiverton Eastern Urban Extension
W6C Hill Barton

W6D Greendale Barton

W6E Heathfield

Proposals for energy recovery capacity (up to a maximum annual capacity of
approximately 80,000 tonnes at any one facility) other than at locations
identified in 2. will be permitted, unless material considerations indicate
otherwise, where:

it can be demonstrated that adequate capacity cannot be delivered at the
strategic sites identified in 2.; or

the proposed site is located at or close to the source of the waste being
managed, or will achieve a reduction in the distance that waste is transported
in comparison with the strategic locations identified in 2.;

Proposals at other locations not identified in 2. must demonstrate how:

the proposed site will achieve efficiency in the use of the recovered energy
greater than or equivalent to the strategic locations identified in 2.; and

the facility will manage waste arising from within Devon unless it can be
clearly demonstrated that the proposal represents the most sustainable option
for managing waste arising from outside the county.

All proposals for energy recovery facilities should be supported by sufficient
information for Habitats Regulations Assessment of the implications of the
proposal, alone or in combination with other plans and projects, on any
Natura 2000 site. The conclusions of this assessment must show that the
proposal can be delivered without adverse effect on the integrity of any
Natura 2000 site.

All proposals for energy recovery facilities must demonstrate how they will
achieve the maximum feasible level of:

(a) extraction of reusable and recyclable materials prior to treatment; and

(b) efficiency in the use of the energy resource, including heat, consistent
with the scale and type of facility; and

(c) reuse or recycling of the residual materials remaining after energy
recovery.

It has been necessary to consider whether this proposal may preclude energy
recovery development as envisaged through Policy W6 coming forward within the
site allocation at Hill Barton, as the proposed development utilises a significant part
of the allocated site which is currently undeveloped. It has been concluded that no
objection should be raised in relation to this point, due to the allocation covering a
much wider part of the industrial estate, which still has vacant plots available which

Page 75



Agenda ltem 7

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

could be utilised for energy recovery development. In addition, over the course of
time, there is likely to be a turnover of uses on specific plots which could also enable
other areas within the allocation to become available for energy recovery
development. Indeed this proposal is a good example of how this can happen.

Policy W5: Reuse, Recycling and Materials Recovery, of the Devon Waste Plan
states that:

1. Sustainable waste management in Devon will aim to achieve and maintain
sufficient capacity to enable the reuse, recycling or composting of waste in
accordance with the following targets:

2016 2021 2026 2031
LACW 57% 61% 64% 64%
Ciw 58% 60% 62% 64%
CDEW 88% 89% 89% 90%

Minimum % of waste to be recycled by key plan period dates

2. To achieve this capacity, planning permission will be granted for additional
facilities enabling preparation for reuse, sorting, transfer, materials recovery,
composting and/or recycling of waste, unless material considerations indicate
otherwise, where they:

(a) are located at or close to the source of the waste or opportunities for
its beneficial use; and/or

(b) achieve the segregation of reusable, recyclable or compostable
materials prior to energy recovery or disposal of the residual waste;
and/or

(c) are co-located with a complementary waste management operation;
and/or

(d) achieve the recycling of incinerator bottom ash and/or other non-
hazardous thermal treatment residues arising within Greater Devon.

The proposal meets the relevant requirements (a, b and c) of Policy W5: Reuse,
recycling and materials recovery. The proposed development incorporates a ‘state of
the art recycling plant’ which will enable the separation of mixed skip waste for
recycling. This process helps to reduce the volumes of waste which are disposed via
landfill. Furthermore, the range of other waste management activities on site means
there is good potential to integrate waste management processes and reduced
transportation.

Residential Amenity

The key concerns of the Parish Council related to the cumulative impact resulting
from this proposal in conjunction with other, yet to be implemented, permissions at
the site. They also raised concerns relating to the additional impacts relating to
increased vehicle movements, visual impact, noise, lighting, and lack of landscape
screening and noise impact mitigation, as a result of the proposal.

With regards to the noise impacts of the proposal and hours of operation, East Devon
District Council’s Environmental Health officer concluded that they were satisfied that
if all the recommendations of operational and physical mitigation measures are
implemented noise nuisance shall be prevented. These mitigation measures include;

Page 76



6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

Agenda Item 7

skip hire vehicle chain guards/covers; roller shutters on all main doors; and additional
acoustic barriers around the site.

Following the response received from East Devon’s Environmental Health Officer,
discussions with the applicant resulted in the submission of an amended plan
proposing the installation of shutter doors to the main entrance on the south west
elevation. Prior to this amendment no shutter door was proposed with the entrance
proposed to be open 24 hours a day. Therefore, this will add an additional barrier to
noise from the building during night working but, according to the applicant, is likely
to be left open during daytime operations due to the steady flow of skip vehicles
entering the building in this period.

Night working currently takes place at the existing skip hire site and it is proposed
that night working will still be required at the new site.

The existing plant is currently working 98hrs per week as a minimum and throughout
the summer it has been running for 116hrs a week. However, the potential 12.5%
increase in processing could see the plant reduce these summer hours to 98 hours
per week or approximately 4 nights. As a result the applicant is proposing that the
maximum number of nights required to work will be 200 based on a 50 week year at
4 days a week, not including weekends and public holidays.

With regards to the use of any lighting at the site, the proposal did not raise any
concerns from East Devon’s Environmental Health Department in terms of its impact
on residential amenity. The proposed night lighting scheme shows a mix of low level
bulkhead lighting, and photocell controlled, shallow angled (10%), dimmable street
lighting to reduce the potential for light pollution. The main, day time, lights used for
the perimeter of the site, will be operated from 7am to 6pm, but will be controlled by
photocells and timers.

Hours for delivery and collection are currently 0700 to 1700 Monday to Friday and
0700 to 1300 on Saturdays. The applicant is proposing that hours of delivery/
collection/lorry movements change slightly to become 0630-1730 Monday to Friday
and 0630 to 1300 on Saturdays, with no vehicle movements on Sundays and public
holidays.

Relationship to other consent regimes:

Paragraph 122 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that “...local
planning authorities should focus on whether the development itself is an acceptable
use of the land, and the impact of the use, rather than the control of processes or
emissions themselves where these are subject to approval under pollution control
regimes. Local planning authorities should assume that these regimes will operate
effectively.”

The current EMS waste transfer operation already has planning permission and an
associated environmental permit (EP) (EPR/BP3898VD) issued by the Environment
Agency. The section relating to noise and vibration states that: Emissions from the
activities shall be free from noise and vibration at levels likely to cause pollution
outside the site, as perceived by an authorised officer of the Environment Agency,
unless the operator has used appropriate measures, including, but not limited to,
those specified in any approved noise and vibration management plan, to prevent or
where that is not practicable, to minimise, the noise and vibration.

Page 77



Agenda ltem 7

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

The operator shall:

a) if notified by the Environment Agency that the activities are giving rise to pollution
outside the site due to noise and vibration, submit to the Environment Agency for
approval within the period specified, a noise and vibration management plan;

b) implement the approved noise and vibration management plan, from the date of
approval, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Environment Agency.

The applicant is proposing to transfer the existing permit, through a variation
application, to the new site. The EP would therefore manage matters such as noise
or any other nuisance from the facility and although the planning system would have
regard to general amenity issues, it is a matter for the Environment Agency to
manage the EP and to take decisions on what are “reasonable steps” to manage
noise and nuisance emanating from the plant.

Whilst the control of noise at waste sites is a matter for the Environmental Permit the
applicant has committed to undertake noise monitoring at a number of sensitive
locations, over a 4 week period, on at least 7 different working days of the week, over
a 24 hour period. Following this period, if any issues relating to noise emanating from
operations only associated with the skip hire and waste transfer facility are
discovered, the applicant will address these issues, as far as is practically possible,
through physical and/ or operational changes.

Highways

The vehicles enter and exit the business park via the main entrance off the Sidmouth
Road onto Blakemore Way, then take the first right into Stuart Way to the new
transfer station. There is no reason why any vehicles should deviate from this route
but the applicant has stated that he is able to carry out training with the drivers to
ensure they use this route.

Whilst it is accepted that there would be some increase in vehicle numbers and traffic
movements to and from the site, it is considered that there is capacity within the local
road network to accommodate the additional volumes.

Currently 80-120 vehicles enter the existing skip hire site daily and it is not envisaged
that these numbers will increase significantly and potentially could reduce when the
power plants come online as more waste will be staying on site. In addition to this it
is estimated that internal movements resulting from the skip hire business will reduce
by 5-10 movements per day due to not having to move waste between two different
plants.

Landscape

Whilst initial concerns were raised as to the impact of the originally proposed physical
mitigation measures, which included the increase in height of the existing bunds to
the west and east of the proposed site, the amendment to replace this proposal with
acoustic fencing on the western and eastern boundaries of the waste transfer site
would be more sympathetic to the landscape. In addition to this, the applicant has
considered the impact of lighting on the surrounding landscape and sought to
minimise light pollution using lighting designed and operated to have the least impact
on the surrounding landscape.

Page 78



Agenda Item 7

Historic Environment

6.23 It is considered that the development in question will not have an impact on the
setting of the listed buildings within the vicinity such as Denbow Farmhouse, Denbow
Thatch and The Thatch due to a combination of existing and proposed screening and
the mitigation measures proposed.

7. Reasons for Recommendation

7.1 The existing waste facilities at Hill Barton are considered to be well run and the levels
of recycling achieved are very good. The increase in demand for skip hire, and
subsequent requirement for increased recycling, has resulted in the current facility
becoming inadequate in terms of operational capacity. Hill Barton is identified in the
current Devon County Waste Local Plan as a significant site for waste management
purposes and has delivered a number of sustainable waste operations including inert
waste recycling, composting and gasification.

7.2 It is considered that the operation of the waste transfer station can be adequately
controlled to minimise the impact on nearby residential properties in terms of noise
and lighting through the inclusion of conditions as set out below. It is therefore
considered that planning permission be granted in accordance with the
recommendation to this report.

Dave Black
Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment

Electoral Division: Broadclyst & Whimple

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Mike Deaton
Room No. ABG County Hall

Tel No: (01392) 382130

Background Paper Date File Ref

1. Casework File March 2016 DCC/3857/2016
bg280916dma

sc/cr/relocation ems skip hire waste transfer hill barton clyst st mary

03 141116

Page 79



CotcaEéé\’

f{) ”\\

7 < Cat and Fiddie YWood

\
Football ,

TN j—

E;”?f::%r Ay
q .\\

/ - -
A ' ”
K
\ New ITP| ouse",
\ \ Fa ‘r m .
N ‘ E
| Wﬁ} N

| A/

Application Site
/;; -

t

/Cregly 28
/“Copse,___

48
A ]
S /)

%7 Farringdon

o .
K Reservoi
\

—
| Reservoir

o
— ATt

Devon

County Council

Development Management Committee

Head of Planning,
Transportation
and Environment

County Matter: Waste Disposal

East Devon District: Proposed relocation of the EMS Skip Hire and waste transfer
facility, including office accommodation, at Hill Barton Business Park, Clyst St Mary

© Crown Copyright and database right 2016. Ordnance Survey 100019783

R g it

—al %A Greendal

EOY ;ﬁ;‘:sg:f’\f
%é\@‘ lndiceein

date scale
November 2016 1:16,217

Application No:
16/1582/CM

) Wa)| epuaby



Ieeﬁed

"‘\ Ollmlll eross

AT YN
Greensiade L)

B =Oliver’s
Cot.(ages

e

Reservoxr\
/

Cr *i')' eaq-w S . \
] /// Farnngdon A 4 2//{\//?5@ N
= ) Cross N =
ARy / 7 01 \, |

7
/\ Reservoir

-~
D\ \\,l

Devon

County Council

Head of Planning,

Transportation
and Environment

D ] =g
= F \%AGreendaie
) )Brldge
% Induserial
Development Management Committee date scale
November 2016 1:16,217

County Matter: Waste Disposal

East Devon District: Proposed relocation of the EMS Skip Hire and waste transfer
facility, including office accommodation, at Hill Barton Business Park, Clyst St Mary
© Crown Copyright and database right 2016. Ordnance Survey 100019783

Application No:
16/1582/CM

/. Wa}| epuaby



Agenda Item 7

Emerging Waste Plan Area W6C: Hill Barton

— | I

W6C: Hill Barton

\

\

s i /// N\

}

Willow

ﬁ T

=

[T

HIII Ba rmn
Bus\ncss Park ("

AT ‘\
% 7 ; \
z..-‘_/ ‘

.
1 e
\ y

Glebe k
HRea } .
| <~ B
N

| &%%

—, ———

iaw%? ; NI
e ' A Tio 3 ,."‘"_ —
) 7 ) /{( (dfsused) il } 55
- 7\\}%{ G AN - %z
f ﬁ‘\ 5, -

[] site Boundary

1 Unconfirmed Wildlife Site
~—1 Undesignated Historic Environment
. " Feature

Note: Exeter Airport Consultation Area for all development covers the whole site

27/, Flood Zone 3

Flood Zone 2

I Listed Building
mmmm Pyblic Right of Way

Devon

County Council /

© Crown Copyright and database right 2013. Ordnance Survey 100019783.
S~ (T 1 T




Agenda Item 7

Appendix |
To PTE/16/60

Planning Policies Relevant to the Proposal

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

National Planning Policy for Waste (2014)

National Planning Policy for Waste (October 2014)

Devon Waste Plan (December 2014): Policies W1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable
Development); W2 (Sustainable Waste Management); W5 (Reuse, Recycling and Materials
Recovery); W6 (Energy Recovery); W6C (Hill Barton); and W18 (Quality of Life).

Adopted East Devon Local Plan: Policies: D1 (Design and Local Distinctiveness); D2
(Landscape Requirements); EN14 (Control of Pollution); EN16 (Contaminated Land); TC2
(Accessibility of New Development); TC7 (Adequacy of Road Network and Site Access);
TC9 (Parking Provision in New Development); E7 (Extensions to Existing Employment
Sites); and Strategy 7 (Development in the Countryside).

Page 83



Agenda ltem 7

Appendix Il
To PTE/16/60

STANDARD COMMENCEMENT
1. The development shall commence within three years of the date of this permission.

REASON: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH PLANS/DOCUMENTS

2. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the details shown on
the approved drawings and details and recommendations contained within the
supporting documents as listed below:

Plans:

7271-06 REV B (Location Plan);

7271-02 REV J (Proposed Site Plan);

7271-03 REV D (Office Building Plans & Elevations);

7271-04 REV F (Main Building Plans);

7271-05 REV F (Main Building Elevation);

7271-07 REV A (Site Elevations);

Appendix A.5 of the Noise Impact Assessment dated January 2016
(5086581.074);

Supporting Documents:

Noise Impact Assessment (REV 01, January 2016, 5086581.074);

o Waste Transfer Station at Hill Barton Business Park, Nr. Exeter Design & Access
Statement and Flood Risk Assessment Hill Barton Business Park, Proposed
Waste Transfer Station (File no:7271);

e RELUX Light Simulation Tools, Waste Transfer Station (Project Number
20160919-01-DG, Dated 21.09.2016);

o Hill Barton Waste Transfer Station, Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage
Strategy (Report Ref. 5086581.074, Rev.01, dated 6th October 2016);

e Preliminary Ecological Appraisal Report Version 001, Dated May 2016;

unless as varied by the conditions below.

REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

ECOLOGY
3. As per Appendix 4, Conservation Action Statement, of the submitted Preliminary

Ecological Appraisal Report (Version 001) the following measures and
enhancements shall be undertaken:

(a) In order to prevent harm to foraging badgers during construction works any

trenches left exposed overnight shall have a means of escape for badgers
and other wildlife. This will comprise of at least one shallow graded edge or

Page 84



Agenda Item 7

have an escape plank (width of at least 30 cm) situated at an angle no
steeper than 30° to allow a badger to escape.

(b) In order to provide new purpose designed nesting opportunities for house
sparrows and other hole nesting species associated with buildings, the
applicant shall, within 4 weeks of the new facility being operational, or at the
most practicable time during construction, install a total of two Schwegler 1SP
Sparrow terraces within new properties on site. Sparrow nest boxes should
be sited within a north or east facing elevation at a height of at least 3 m.

REASON: In order to protect foraging badgers during construction works and
enhance bird nesting facilities in accordance with policy EN5 of the East Devon Local
Plan (2013-2031 — Adopted January 2016).

NOISE MITIGATION MEASURES

The site shall not become operational until the physical mitigations measures as
outlined on page 35 the approved Noise Impact Assessment, dated January 2016,
are implemented to the satisfaction of the Waste Planning Authority.

REASON: To protect the living conditions of nearby residents in accordance with
policy EN14 of the East Devon Local Plan (2013-2031 — Adopted January 2016) and
Policy W18 of the Devon Waste Plan (Adopted December 2014).

PRE-COMMENCEMENT

CONTAMINATION STRATEGY

No development approved by this planning permission shall take place until a
scheme that includes the following components to deal with the risks associated with

contamination of the site shall each be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the
Waste Planning Authority:

A) A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:
(i) All previous uses
(i) Potential contaminants associated with those uses
(iii) A conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and
receptors

(iv) Potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site.

B) A site investigation scheme, based on (A) above to provide information for a
detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including
those off site.

C) The results of the site investigation and detailed risk assessment referred to
in (B) above and, based on these, an options appraisal and remediation
strategy giving full details of the remediation measures required and how they
are to be undertaken.

Dbar) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (C) above
are complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action.

Page 85



Agenda ltem 7

Any changes to these components require the express written consent of the
local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.
Reason National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraph 109 states
that the planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and
local environment by preventing both new and existing development from
contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely
affected by unacceptable levels of water pollution. Government policy also
states that planning policies and decisions should also ensure that adequate
site investigation information, prepared by a competent person, is presented
(NPPF, paragraph 121).

REASON: To minimise the risks associated with ground contamination in
accordance with policy EN16 of the East Devon Local Plan (2013-2031 — Adopted
January 2016).

REMEDIATION STRATEGY

6. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present
at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the
local planning authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted a
remediation strategy to the local planning authority detailing how this unsuspected
contamination shall be dealt with and obtained written approval from the local
planning authority. The remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved.
Reasons National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraph 109 states that the
planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment
by preventing both new and existing development from contributing to or being put at
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by unacceptable levels of water
pollution. Government policy also states that planning policies and decisions should
ensure that adequate site investigation information, prepared by a competent person,
is presented (NPPF, paragraph 121).

REASON: To minimise the risks associated with ground contamination in
accordance with policy EN16 of the East Devon Local Plan (2013-2031 — Adopted
January 2016).

OPERATIONAL
HOURS OF OPERATION

7. The following hours of operation shall apply to activities at the application site:
(i) No waste processing operations shall take place outside of the building during the
night time hours defined as 1800 to 0600.
(i) Vehicles shall leave the site only between the hours of 0600 to 1700 Mondays to
Fridays and 0600 to 1300 hours on Saturdays.
(iii) Deliveries of waste to the site shall only take place during the hours of 0730 to
1700 Mondays to Fridays and 0730 to 1300 hours on Saturdays.
(iv) Except as may be required in the case of an emergency there shall be no waste
activities taking place at the site (including the processing of waste, deliveries of
waste and waste collection vehicles leaving the site) on Saturday afternoons after
1300 hours and on Sundays or public holidays.

REASON: To protect the living conditions of nearby residents in accordance with
policy EN14 of the East Devon Local Plan (2013-2031 — Adopted January 2016).

Page 86



Agenda Item 7

Operational Mitigation

8. The site shall be operated in strict accordance with the accordance with the
Operational Mitigation Measures recommendations set out on page 35 of the
submitted Noise Impact Assessment dated January 2016.

The scheme shall be reviewed from the date of this permission every year or when
additional plant is installed or any change in process occurs. A copy of any revised
scheme produced shall be submitted to the Waste Planning Authority for approval
within 14 days of being completed.

REASON: To minimise the effect on the living conditions of local residents in

accordance with policy EN14 of the East Devon Local Plan (2013-2031 — Adopted
January 2016) and Policy W18 of the Devon Waste Plan (Adopted December 2014).

INFORMATIVE NOTE

Statement of compliance with Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015

In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has worked with the applicant in
a positive and proactive manner based on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to
dealing with the planning application by liaising with consultees, respondents and the
applicant/agent and discussing changes to the proposal where considered appropriate or
necessary. This approach has been taken positively and proactively in accordance with the
requirement of the NPPF, as set out in The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

Page 87






Agenda Iltem 8

PTE/16/61

Development Management Committee
23 November 2016

County Council Development

Teignbridge District: Widening of an existing 60m section of footway to provide a
4.0m wide cycle/footway at Tucks Plot, A379, Dawlish

Applicant: Devon County Council

Application No: 16/02820/DCR3

Date application received by Devon County Council: 13 October 2016

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: It is recommended that permission be granted subject to the
conditions set out in Appendix Il to this report (with any subsequent changes to the
conditions being agreed in consultation with the Chairman and Local Member).

1. Summary

1.1 This proposal is for the alteration of the existing path that leads through Tucks Plot,
located within the town centre of Dawlish. The alterations look to relocate the
existing wall to create a wider path to accommodate cyclists.

1.2 It is considered that the main planning considerations for the determination of this
application are the impacts upon the Dawlish Conservation Area; flood risk; and
sustainability considerations.

2. The Proposal/Background

2.1 The application site follows the existing 60m stretch of path along the southern bank
of Dawlish Water, through Tucks Plot, or York Gardens, in the centre of Dawlish.
The proposal looks to alter the existing path to accommodate cyclists. This includes
increasing the path’s width from approximately 2m to 4m, which will result in the
removal of some vegetation and the relocation and rebuilding of the existing stone
boundary wall with the installation of handrails.

2.2 The aim of the proposal is to create an off road cycle route through Dawlish that will
become part of the National Cycle Network Route 2 (a route that, within Devon, will
eventually link Exmouth to Torbay).

3. Consultation Responses

3.1 Teignbridge District Council: views awaited.

3.2 Dawlish Town Council: Recommend refusal for the following reasons:
o The removal of trees and flagstones result in a degradation of the area;
e There is no information to show how this section of the cycle path connects to the
rest of the scheme, the application is premature;
o Concerns regarding the flooding that takes place within the area; and
Concerns regarding the protection of the waterfowl nesting area.

Page 89



Agenda Item 8

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

South West Water: Applicant must apply to SWW to build over apparatus

Natural England: No objection.

Environment Agency: No objection. Comment that the accompanying Flood Risk
Assessment does not conform to the guidance within the NPPF. Nevertheless, the
development is seen as compatible with the flood zone and the proposal does not
constitute a ‘flood risk activity’.

Advertisement/Representations

The application was advertised in accordance with the statutory publicity
arrangements by means of a site notice and notice in the press. No representations
have been received.

Copies of representations are available to view on the Council website under
reference  DCC/3908/2016 or by «clicking on the following link:
https://planning.devon.gov.uk/PlanDisp.aspx?AppNo=DCC/3908/2016.

Planning Policy Considerations

In considering this application the County Council, as County Planning Authority, is
required to have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan insofar as they are
material to the application, and to any other material considerations. Section 38 (6)
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that where regard is to
be had to the Development Plan, the determination shall be in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In this case,
the Development Plan policies are summarised in Appendix | to this report and the
most relevant are referred to in more detail in Section 6 below.

Comments/Issues
It is considered that the main planning considerations for the determination of this
application are the impacts upon the Dawlish Conservation Area; flood risk; and

sustainability considerations.

Historic Environment

The site is within the Dawlish Conservation Area and, therefore, in accordance with
Policy ENS (Heritage Assets), development should look to protect and enhance the
area’s heritage taking into account the significance, character and local
distinctiveness of any affected heritage asset. Planning authorities are advised to
look for opportunities to enhance conservation areas (paragraph 137 of the NPPF)
and that harm to the asset’s significance should be avoided. In addition,
considerable importance and weight must be paid to the desirability of preserving and
enhancing the character or appearance of a conservation area, as set out in section
72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

York Gardens is one of a number of inter-linked Victorian landscaped gardens that
run through the centre of Dawlish. The gardens complement The Lawn’s
significance as the town’s primary open space. The Conservation Area Appraisal
notes that York Gardens forms part of perhaps the most memorable view of Dawlish,
looking west from the station platform or from carriages passing by. Therefore, it is
important to retain the overall character of this space. It is considered the proposal

Page 90


https://planning.devon.gov.uk/PlanDisp.aspx?AppNo=DCC/3908/2016

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

Agenda Iltem 8

achieves this through the reinstatement of the boundary wall; the use of green cast
iron handrails already seen in the area; and by following the curve of Dawlish Water.

In order to accommodate the widened path, the proposal looks to remove some
ornamental planting, this includes three palm trees, surveyed as low quality, and
shrubs. Currently, vegetation lines the stone wall resulting in a verdant character.
However, other paths within the area are open with grass either side. There are no
plans to replace the removed planting in order to minimise the impact upon the crazy
golf facility, this is considered acceptable. When viewed in context, the area will still
maintain its landscaped character due to the retained and the existing ornamental
planting that surrounds the site.

The Town Council consider the replacement of the current concrete paving slabs with
a grey aggregate surface dressing to result in a degradation of the area. The loss of
the concrete slabs is not considered to harm the conservation area; the use of
surface dressing will soften the path’s appearance and is not out of character of the
surrounding open space. There is also a need to ensure an even surface for users,
which the proposed surfacing achieves.

Jubilee Bridge, which is Grade Il listed, is located as the western end of the path.
The applicant has confirmed that construction will not affect the bridge as works are
taking place away from the bridge and construction will only be 170mm deep. It is
also considered the proposal will not harm the setting of Jubilee Bridge due to the
nature of the proposal.

Flood Risk

Concerns have been raised by the Town Council regarding the flooding of the area.
The existing footpath, York Gardens and the surrounding highway network is within
Flood Zone 2 and/or 3. It is considered the proposal presents no new impacts above
that of the existing path. The Environment Agency has highlighted the compatibility
of the proposal with the Flood Zone, and therefore, the widening of the existing path
is considered acceptable.

Sustainability Considerations

Policy S17 (Dawlish) of the Teignbridge Local Plan states that Dawlish will be a
sustainable place with routes that facilitate walking and cycling to improve
connectivity at Dawlish. Policy DA9 (Movement) adds that connectivity and
accessibility within Dawlish will be improved through the National Cycle Network
Route 2. National planning policy also supports the use of sustainable transport
modes and opportunities for sports and recreation. This proposal supports these
aims.

The site also falls within the town centre, where development should encourage
visitors and improve the environment to support the vitality of town centres, as stated
by Policy EC9 (Development in Town Centres). This proposed is considered to
contribute towards this.

Other matters
The Town Council considers the information is incomplete, in that, it does not show
how it connects to the rest of the cycle path and, therefore, it is premature to approve

this section of the path. The applicant has clarified that this section of path is an
extension to the existing works taking place along Exeter Road and those that have

Page 91



Agenda Item 8

6.11

7.1

7.2

recently been approved through Lanherne at the Development Management
Committee on 19 October 2016 (PTE/16/50). It is anticipated that the path will
eventually continue through Dawlish, either off road via The Lawn, or on road via
Brunswick Place and the Strand, however, the route options have not been finalised.
The applicant has confirmed that this section of the scheme is required irrespective
of the future route options. Regardless, it is considered that this scheme provides off
road cycling benefits on its own.

It is not considered there will be any additional impacts on the nesting waterfowl
taking into account the existing path.

Reasons for Recommendation/Alternatives Options Considered

The Committee has the option of approving, deferring or refusing this planning
application.

It is considered that there is strong policy support for the provision of this
cycle/walkway and any potential adverse impacts of the development have been
considered and can be adequately mitigated by the imposition of the planning
conditions set out in Appendix Il. Taking all material considerations into account, it is
considered that planning permission be grant in accordance with the
recommendation of the report.

Dave Black
Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment

Electoral Division: Dawlish

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Emily Harper

Room No: AB2, Lucombe House, County Hall

Tel No: 01392 383000

Background Paper Date File Ref.
Casework File 13/10/2016 DCC/3908/2016
eh041116dma

sc/cr/widening footway tucks plot a379 dawlish

03 141116

Page 92



Agenda Iltem 8

Location Plan

&2
A
8

‘. GF, ’ X
SNG4
& RN\ \oim oA ‘e) '
> / Upe, BN "

- - '[’/Ig} AN 0 ,’ z

= [ ]
ey DA T, <
T
“ﬁr_—jﬂ’ . Q ,
[l —; TS @ '
g =l w ‘
D THE DRI

Sy g~ o L T
7 F,L_l,—.:aﬂ'.*-_, Y 1/ (s AD 1’7"”‘Dmt:73 ga "

i

o

——TsT
o

THE STRAND L
Tlhe,Lawn .‘ }
L7 Weirs. _ L2,
-—!\n__—‘*-ﬂ.. )
BRUNSWI|CK PLACE Y

ATRES == ¥y &
i .. 0 '!';é;;.[‘ W
BB

PLANT

o Breakwater N
\ 4

% Cowhole Rogk

S0 02 0.4

Aﬁ.ﬁ’é }\"Lﬂ:\j : Km

: ® Crown Copyright and database right 2016. Ordnance Survey 100019783.
Tl —

— ! ke ARRVELWN

Page 93




76 obed

Site Plan

Contains Ordnance Survey data
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015. 100010783,

2 n

K

1 number category
'‘C'palm treefobe |-
removed

Omimental planting |.
to be removed in 5
[ these areas

4 2 number category
-] 'C' palm frees to be

emoved

Omamental hedges |/
to be timmed back
and retained

& Crown copyright and database rights 2016 100015783

H Contains Ordnance Survey dam, ”

Location -

Tucks Plot / Station Rd, Dawlish.

05 (Eastings) 296322
0S (Northings) 76637
Nearest Post Code  EX7 9PJ

New 4m wide shared use cycle path.

Path consfruction Type F1 with grey aggregate

surface dressing, to blend with local charater

Dismantie existing stone wall and store stone for new wall

New 450mm x 600mm high block wall. Face wall with stone taken from dismantled
wall

Litter bin position to be adjusted to suit new path width.

Existing bench position to be adjusted to suit new path width.

g wa)| epuaby



Agenda Iltem 8

Appendix |
To PTE/16/61

Planning Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

Planning Practice Guidance

Teignbridge Local Plan 2013 - 2033 (Adopted May 2014): Policies ENO5 (Heritage Assets);
EN12 (Woodlands, Trees and Hedgerows); S01 (Sustainable Development Criteria); S02
(Quality Development); S09 (Sustainable Transport); S10 (Transport Networks); S17
(Dawlish); S21A (Settlement Limits); DA9 (Movement); and EC9 (Developments in Town
Centres).

Page 95



Agenda Item 8

Appendix Il
To PTE/16/61

Planning Conditions

STANDARD COMMENCEMENT
1. The development shall commence within three years of the date of this permission.

REASON: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH PLANS

2. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the details shown on
the approved drawing numbered B1504/28A, documents entitled 'Validation
Requirements' and ‘Construction Management Plan’ and the email from Roger North
dated 27 October 2016 detailing tree protection methods except as varied by the
conditions below.

REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Page 96



Delegated Schedule — 14th November 2016 - Summary

PTE/16/

Agenda ltem 9

Development Management Committee

23 November 2016

District/Location/Application
Number

Proposal

Electoral Division

Action Taken

Teignbridge District Council

Land adjacent to Wolborough
Gate, Gothic Road, Newton
Abbot, TQ12 1EJ

DCC/3840/2016

Removal of spoil/soil from Gothic
Road site to land on adjacent field

Newton Abbot South

Withdrawn After
Validation

South Hams District Council

South West Composting, Venn
Farm, Brixton, Plymouth,
Devon, PL8 2AX

DCC/3883/2016

Extension to the existing on-farm
composting of green waste;
installation of a new access,
leachate pond and concrete pad;
and other operational changes

Wembury & Brixton

Conditional Approval

South Hams District Council

Dartington Primary School,
Shinners Bridge,
DARTINGTON, TQ9 6JU

DCC/3889/2016

Construction of a new 315 place

primary and 30 place nursery school
with associated facilities and external

landscaping on the footprint of the
existing primary school

South Brent & Dartington

Conditional Approval

South Hams District Council

Tip T2, Lee Moor China Clay
Works

DCC/3905/2016

Prior notification of the removal of
material

Wembury & Brixton

No Objection

East Devon District Council

Fluxton Waste Water Treatment
Works, Tipton Vale, Fluxton,
Ottery St Mary, EX11 1RL

DCC/3917/2016

Variation of condition 2 of pp
16/1484/CM (DCC/3880/2016)

Ottery St Mary Rural

Withdrawn Before
Validation

Page 97






	Agenda
	4 Minerals and Waste Development Framework: Devon Minerals Plan: Inspector's Report and Adoption
	5 Minerals and Waste Development Framework: Cornwall and West Devon Mining Landscape World Heritage Site: Supplementary Planning Document:  Adoption
	6 County Matter: South Hams District:  Variation of (i) condition 3 of planning permission 9/42/49/0542/85/3 to allow the continued extraction of tungsten and tin, processing and disposal of mineral wastes until 5 June 2036 and (ii) removal of condition 13 of planning permission 9/42/49/0542/85/3 to remove the restriction on the operating hours of the primary crusher: Location: Drakelands Mine, Drakelands, Nr PLYMOUTH, Devon PL7 5BS
	7 County Matter: Waste East Devon District:  Proposed relocation of the EMS Skip Hire and waste transfer facility including materials recycling building to accommodate the processing, storing and recycling of general skip waste and office accommodation, Hill Barton Business Park, Clyst St Mary
	8 County Council Development: Teignbridge District:  Widening of an existing 60m section of footway to provide a 4.0m wide cycle/footway at Tucks Plot, A379, Dawlish
	9 Delegated Action - Schedules (to include ROMPS Actions) and Summary Schedule

